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I. SUPERVISORY BOARD OF CPD S.A.

As at the day of December 31, 2014, the Supervisory Board of CPD S.A. included the following
persons:

o Ms MARZENA BIELECKA — PRESIDENT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD (SUPERVISORY
BOARD MEMBER MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD)

Ms Marzena Bielecka was appointed to the Supervisory Board of the second term on
24 May 2012. The term of office of Ms Marzena Bielecka expires on 24 May 2015. Ms Marzena
Bielecka has a higher education degree, she graduated from the University of Warsaw, Faculty of
Polish and Slavonic Philology (major: Yugoslav Philology). Marzena Bielecka is a graduate of the
Advanced Management Program conducted by IESE Barcelona, Universidad de Navarra in Spain.

o MR WIiEStAW OLES — VICE PRESIDENT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

Mr Wiestaw OleS$ was appointed to the Supervisory Board of the second term on
24 May 2012. The term of office of Mr. Wiestaw Ole$ expires on 24 May 2015. Mr. Wiestaw Oles has a
higher education degree in law, he graduated from the Faculty of Law and Administration of the
Jagiellonian University in Krakow (major: Law). Mr Wiestaw Ole$ is licensed legal advisor.

e MR MIROSLAW GRONICKI — MEMBER OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD (SUPERVISORY
BOARD MEMBER MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD)

Mr Mirostaw Gronicki was appointed to the Supervisory Board of the second term on
24 May 2012. The term of office of Mr Mirostaw Gronicki expires on 24 May 2015.
Mr. Mirostaw Gronicki has a higher education degree in economics, he graduated from the Faculty of
Economics of Maritime Transport at the University of Gdansk in Gdansk (major: the economics of
maritime transport). Mr Mirostaw Gronicki has also acquired the PhD in economics at the Faculty of
Economics of the Production at the University of Gdansk.

o MR ANDREW PEGGE — MEMBER OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

Mr Andrew Pegge was appointed to the Supervisory Board of second term on 24 October 2013. The
term of office of Mr Andrew Pegge expires on 24 May 2015. Mr Andrew Pegge has a higher education
degree. He graduated from Sussex University (United Kingdom) and has completed postgraduate
studies in marketing in the Chartered Institute of Marketing (United Kingdom) as well as the MBA
(Finance) in City University Business School (United Kingdom). Mr Andrew Pegge holds also
qualifications of Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) of the Association for Investment Management
Research (USA).

e MR WIEStAW ROZLUCKI - MEMBER OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD (SUPERVISORY
BOARD MEMBER MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD)

Mr Wiestaw Roztucki was appointed to the Supervisory Board of the second term on 24 May 2012.
The term of office of Mr Wiestaw Roztucki expires on 24 May 2015. Mr Wiestaw Roztucki graduated
from Warsaw School of Economics (former SGPiS) — Faculty of Foreign Trade (1970). In 1977 he was
conferred the PhD degree in Economic Geography. Between 1973 and 1989, Mr Roztucki was a
research worker at the Institute of Geography and Spatial Development of the Polish Academy of
Sciences (PAN), and subsequently, the Secretary of the Polish Committee of the International
Geographical Union. In 1979-80 he studied at the London School of Economics. Since 1990, he was
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responsible for ownership change processes, first as an advisor to the Minister of Finance, then as the
Director of the Capital Markets Development Department in the Ministry of Ownership Change.
Between 1991 and 1994, Mr Roztucki was a member of the Polish Securities Commission. From 1991
to 2006, he was the President of the Management Board of the Warsaw Stock Exchange as well as
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of the National Depository for Securities. In the 1990s, Mr Roztucki
was a member of the Economic Development Council to President of the Republic of Poland. He was
also a member of the World Federation of Exchanges (WFE), the Federation of European Securities
Exchanges (FESE). Currently, Mr Roztucki is a Supervisory Board member of public companies: GPW
Orange Polska, Bank BPH, TVN; as well as the Good Practices Committee established in 2001. He is
Chairman of the Programming Board of the Polish Institute of Directors and of the Harvard Business
Review Polska. He provides consulting services, acting as a senior adviser to Rothschild and Warburg
Pincus. Since 2011, he has chaired the Chapter of the Polish President’s Economy Award. Mr. Wiestaw
Roztucki was honoured with Polish Commander Cross with the Star of the Order of Rebirth of Poland
and French distinction L'Ordre National du Mérite.

In comparison to the status at the end of 2013, the composition of Supervisory Board of CPD S.A. has
not changed.



CPD S.A.
ANNUAL REPORT OF THE GROUP FOR THE YEAR 2014

LETTER OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD



CPD S.A.
ANNUAL REPORT OF THE GROUP FOR THE YEAR 2014

II. LETTER OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

Warsaw, 18 April, 2014

DEAR SIRS AND MADAMS, DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

We are very pleased to present CPD S.A. Group's Annual Report for 2014. This was a breakthrough
and immensely successful year for the Group, with the Group's key project — real estate development
projects — going into the delivery stage owing to persistent pursuit of the adopted strategic goals and
continuation of projects in progress.

In 2014 authorities of Warsaw approved the local zoning plan for the former ZPC Ursus industrial
facilities where the Group owns over 54 ha of land purchased in 2006. This fact was the key factor for
direction of the Group's further growth. Adoption of the local zoning plan for our Ursus real estate
development and consistent conceptual works on the design, conducted by the Group for the last few
years, made commencement of the first housing development project possible as early as in
September 2014. Adoption of the plan was the key factor affecting the Group's 2014 year end result
and the price of the Company's shares in 2014.

In July 2014 years was initiated by the CPD SA and the authorities m st. Warsaw new chapter in
cooperation between the investor and the government, through free transfer to the city of areas
designated in the plan for public roads. Our goal was to speed up the process of revitalizing the entire
area and convert into a single multi-functional modern city.

In addition to this, similarly to previous years, in 2014 we were taking actions to maximise the lease
revenues. We have achieved high occupancy rate in Iris, Solar, and Aquarius office buildings in
Warsaw.

Moreover, our shareholders have once again showed their confidence in us by letting us manage
another 5,5 min EUR in the form of 3-year bonds convertible to shares.

These measures allowed the Group to achieve a positive financial result in 2014 and retain a stable
financial standing.

Last September, we decided to change the Company's business name to CPD S.A. to make
identification and recognition of the brand easier for the investors and clients. The new name is the
abbreviated previous name — Celtic Property Developments S.A.. Abbreviation of the name facilitates
continuation of the Company's identification and using the brand established on the market.

Summarising the entire previous year, I would like to thank all our Employees and Partners for their
efforts to launch the Group's key project and deliver the remaining projects. I would like to thank our
Clients for their confidence in us. Thank you to the members of CPD S.A.'s Supervisory Board for their
commitment and effort in building the Group's position. And thank you to our Shareholders, for their
confidence in us and allocation of more capital to CPD S.A. than in the previous year.

YOURS SINCERELY,

ELZBIETA WICZKOWSKA
PRESIDENT OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD
oF CPD S.A.
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III. MANAGEMENT BOARD OF CPD S.A.

As at the day of December 31, 2014, the Management Board of CPD S.A. included the following
persons:

° Ms ELZBIETA WICZKOWSKA — PRESIDENT OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

Ms Elzbieta Wiczkowska was appointed to the Management Board of second term on 28 August 2010.
On 25 September 2013, the Company’s Supervisory Board entrusted Ms Elzbieta Wiczkowska with the
function of the President of the Company’s Management Board. The term of office of Ms Elzbieta
Wiczkowska expires on 21 July 2015. Ms Elzbieta Wiczkowska has a higher education degree in
medicine. She completed medical studies at Physicians Faculty of the Medical Academy in Szczecin. Ms
Elzbieta Wiczkowska has an MBA diploma from the University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign (USA).
She has also completed Executive Advanced Management Program at IESE Barcelona Universidad de
Navarra in Spain. Ms Elzbieta Wiczkowska holds qualifications of the ACCA (The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants).

° MR COLIN KINGSNORTH — MEMBER OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

Mr Colin Kingsnorth was appointed to the Management Board on 24 October 2013. The term of office
of Mr Colin Kingsnorth expires on 21 July 2015. Mr Colin Kingsnorth has a higher education degree in
economics (BSc), he graduated from the University of East London UEL (Great Britain). Mr Colin
Kingsnorth is a member of the UK Society of Investment Professionals.

o Ms IWONA MAKAREWICZ — MEMBER OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

Ms Iwona Makarewicz was appointed as a Member of the Management Board of second term on
26 September 2013. The term of office of Ms Iwona Makarewicz expires on 21 July 2015. Ms Iwona
Makarewicz has a higher education degree being a graduate of the Warsaw School of Economics
(Poland); she completed a post-graduate programme in Property Appraisal and Management w
Sheffield Hallam University (Great Britain) and a post-graduate programme in property appraisal at
the Warsaw University of Technology (Poland); she is a member of the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors and she holds the title of a licensed real estate agent.

In comparison to the status at the end of 2013, the composition of the Management Board of CPD
S.A. changed as follows:

e On 22 December 2014, Mr Piotr Turchonski filed a resignation from the Management Board,
effective as of 31 December 2014 r. Mr Piotr Turchonski failed to provide reasons for his
resignation;
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IV. INFORMATION ON THE PARTICIPATION OF MEN AND WOMEN IN
THE MANAGEMENT BOARD AND SUPERVISORY BOARD

CPD S.A., according to the Good Practices of the Companies Listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange
(Chapter II.1.2a) presents below the information about the participation of women and men,
respectively, in the Management Board and Supervisory Board of the Company during past two years.

Supervisory Board CPD S.A.

31 December 2013 1 4
31 December 2014 1 4
Board CPD S.A.

date women men
31 December 2013 2 2

31 December 2014 2 1
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V. MANAGEMENT BOARD’S REPORT ON THE GROUP'S ACTIVITY

1. INFORMATION ON CPD GROUP

CPD Group started its activities in Poland in 1999 from the foundation of Celtic Asset Management Sp.
z 0.0. In subsequent years, 1999-2005, the activities of the company focused on building and
managing a real estate portfolio for external institutions in Poland, Czech Republic, Lithuania,
Romania, Hungary and Germany. In 2005, Celtic Asset Management Sp. z 0.0 started development
activity in cooperation with several funds managed by Laxey Partners. In 2007, the consolidation of
the group under the name Celtic Property Developments SA (BVI) was performed and in 2008 the
listing of the company Celtic Property Developments SA (BVI) began on a deregulated market
(Freiverkehr) in Frankfurt. In the period from 2005 to 2010, the Company operated and managed
projects mainly in Poland. In the same time, the Group has conducted and managed projects also in
Montenegro, Hungary, Italy, Belgium, the United Kingdom, the Netherlands, Germany and Spain.
International experience and practical knowledge of experts and project managers of Celtic Group
contributed to the creation of a strong and stable capital group, which debuted on the Warsaw Stock
Exchange on 23 December 2010. 17" of September the Company has changed the name for CPD S.A.

Today, CPD S.A. is the holding company controlling a group of 37 subsidiaries, focusing on activities in
the office and residential segments. Current Group’s plans focus on the residential development,
mainly through the implementation of its leading project in the Warsaw'’s district of Ursus.

1
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2. GROUP STRUCTURE

As of the day of publication hereof, the CPD Group (hereinafter referred to as “the Group”, “CPD
Group”) was composed of a dominant entity — CPD S.A. (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”)
and 37 subsidiaries. Development activities of the Group are conducted via investment companies,
direct subsidiaries of Buffy Nol Holdings Ltd (Cyprus) and Lakia Enterprises Ltd (Cyprus). Dominant
entity - CPD S.A. - coordinates and supervises the activities of subsidiaries and at the same time is the
decision making centre with regard to the strategic planning. CPD S.A. performs actions aiming at
optimising the operating costs of the whole Group, designs investment and marketing policies and
serves as the coordinator of this activity.

During the reporting period, the following changes occurred in the CPD Group structure:
The following changes in CPD Group's structure took place during the reportin period:

e C(CPD S.A.'s subsidiary - 1/95 Gaston Investments sp. z 0.0. sp. komandytowa changed its
name as of 9 September 2014 to "Smart City w organizacji sp. z 0.0. sp. komandytowa".

e On 17 September 2014, Celtic Property Developments S.A. changed its name to CPD S.A.

e On 9 September 2014, a new company under the business name of Smart City sp. z 0.0. was
incorporated.

e On 14 December 2014, EEPF company was sold.

At the date of report publication, the following changes in CPD Group's structure took place:
e On 30 January 2015, IMES sp z 0.0. company was acquired.
e On 27 February 2015, sale of Geatan Investments sp z 0.0. company was completed.

The above changes are compliant with the Group’s strategy, which is oriented towards concentration
of actions on the Ursus project, sales of inactive projects from the portfolio, and simplification of the
Group'’s structure, and optimisation of its operation costs.

All Group companies are subject to consolidation according to the full consolidation method.

12
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CPD Group structure on the December 31, 2014.
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3. SHAREHOLDERS

° CONTROLLING SHARES

CPD S.A. SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

Codperatieve
Laxey Worldwide
W.A
31%

QVT Fund LP
11% Furseka Trading
16%
The Value
Catalyst Fund plc
12%

According to the information held by the Company in the reporting period, the shareholders who hold
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries at least 5% of the total number of votes at the Company’s
General Meeting of Shareholders (the number of shares provided on the basis of shareholders’ notices
pursuant to Article 69 of the Act on Public Offering or the data included in the prospectus) are:

As % of

Shareholder Amount of Type of Amount of T As % of total

shares shares votes o — numer of votes
Cooperatieve Laxey Worldwide W.A 10 082 930 Na okaziciela 10 082 930 30.68 % 30.68 %
Furseka Trading 5137 222 Na okaziciela 5137 222 15.63 % 15.63 %
The Value Catalyst Fund plc 3975 449 Na okaziciela 3975 449 12.10 % 12.10 %
QVT Fund LP 3701131 Na okaziciela 3701131 11.26 % 11.26 %
LP Value Ltd 2005 763 Na okaziciela 2005 763 6.10 % 6.10 %
LP Alternative Fund LP 2 003 981 Na okaziciela 2 003 981 6.10 % 6.10 %
Pozostali 5956 727 Na okaziciela 5956 727 18.13 % 18.13 %

The above shareholding structure was presented for the total humber of shares, that is 32,863,203,
including series B, C, D, E, and F shares accounting for 100% of votes at the General Meeting of the
Company's Shareholders.

On 5 August 2014, resolution was adopted to issue series A bonds convertible to series G shares in
the Company, conditionally increase the Company's share capital, deny the existing shareholders
entirely their right of subscription for series G shares, amend the Company's Articles, dematerialise

14
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series G shares, and apply for admission and floating of series G shares on a stock exchange.
Redemption date of tranche 1 bonds is 26 September 2017. Issue of tranche 1 bonds was conducted
as a non-public issue. Terms of issue of series B bonds is presented in detail in section 18.

° SHAREHOLDERS WITH SPECIAL RIGHTS

All shares issued by the Company are ordinary bearer shares. The Company’s Articles does not grant
any specific rights to the Company shares, including the preferential vote or the appointment of the
members to the Company Management Board or Supervisory Board. The Company’s shareholders do
not own shares offering special controlling rights.

° RESTRICTIONS ON VOTING RIGHTS

In accordance with Article 4(5) of the Company’s Articles, neither pledgee nor user shall have the
right to exercise voting right from shares which were pledged or given for use. The Company, in
accordance with applicable laws, may not exercise voting rights from own shares.

o RESTRICTIONS REGARDING SHARES TRANSFER

All hitherto issued B, C, D and F series shares of CPD S.A. are the object of free trade and shall not be
subject to any restrictions, except those arising under the Company Articles, Code of Commercial
Companies, Act on Trading in Financial Instruments, Act on Public Offering, as well as other relevant
provisions of the law. E series shares issued in connection with acquisition of B series subscription
warrants by authorised persons (that is by the Members of the Management Board holding functions
in the Management Board as at 8 May 2013 and holding B series subscription warrants), are
prohibited from disposing same for the period of 18 months from the moment of their admission to
trade, i.e. from 5 July 2013 under agreements concluded simultaneously with the acquisition of
shares.

In accordance with Article 4(6) of the Company Articles, bearer shares shall not be subject to
conversion to registered shares. Conversion of registered shares into bearer shares shall be carried
out at the request of the Shareholder by means of a resolution of the Management Board, which
should be adopted within seven days from the date of submission of a written request to the
Management Board to convert the shares. The request should indicate the number of shares covered
by the request for conversion, together with an indication of their numbers. In the case of conversion
of registered shares into bearer shares, the Management Board places on the agenda of the
forthcoming General Meeting a point regarding the amendment of the Articles in respect of the
number of registered shares.

4. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

° RULES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CPD S.A. is regulated by such corporate regulations as the Company Articles, General Meeting by-
laws, Supervisory Board by-laws and Management Board by-laws. All these documents are available
on the Company website: www.cpdsa.pl.

In 2014 the Company applied principles of corporate governance included in the document Good
Practices of the Companies Listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange, available on Attp.//corp-
gov.gpw. pl/assets/library/polish/requlacje/dobre praktyki 16 11 2012.pdf. This text is an appendix
to the resolution of the Council of the Warsaw Stock Exchange No. 19/1307/2012 of 21 November
2012.

15
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° DEROGATIONS FROM CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RULES

The Company does not apply the following rules mentioned in the Good Practices of the Companies
Listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange:

o

Rule II.1. 9a) regarding the publishing on the company website a record of the General
Meeting in audio or video format

Transparency of information policy with regard to General Meetings is secured by performing
by the Company of all the obligations, as provided for by the Regulation of the Minister of
Finance on the current and periodic information reported by issuers of securities. Pursuant to
the above mentioned regulation, the Company publishes information about the time and place
of General Meetings, its agenda and draft resolutions which allows to each shareholder or
other person concerned, participation in the General Meeting. After the end of the General
Meeting, the Company immediately presents to the public content of resolutions taken by the
General Meeting and other relevant information about the General Meeting. According to the
Management Board assessment, the Company uses its reasonable diligence and regulations
applied are sufficient to ensure the transparency and effectiveness of Company's information
policy in the field of recording the proceedings of the General Meeting with existing, it means
traditional, method of registration of the General Meeting. Additionally, each shareholder
pursuant the relevant provisions of the Code of Commercial Companies, has the possibility to
review at any time the book of protocols of General Meeting.

Rule I.12 regarding that a company should enable its shareholders to exercise the voting right
during a General Meeting either in person or through a plenipotentiary, outside the venue of
the General Meeting, using electronic communication means and Rule 1V. 10 regarding that a
company should enable its shareholders to participate in a General Meeting using electronic
communication means through: 1) real-life broadcast of General Meetings and 2) real-time
bilateral communication where shareholders may take the floor during a General Meeting from
a location other than the General Meeting.

The fact of non-transmission of the deliberations of the General Meeting and of the possibility
of two-way communication in real time during the deliberations of the General Meeting, does
not result solely from a policy adopted by the Company’s Management Board but is a
consequence of the adjustment to the regulations being in force in the Company both in
terms of the Company Articles and General Meeting by-laws. None of these documents does
not provide for the solutions provided in Rules no 1.12 and 1V.10 of Good Practices. The
documents governing the way in which the General Meeting is conducted are available to the
public on the Company's website which causes that the rules in carrying out the General
Meetings are clear and available to all shareholders. In addition, the Company on the occasion
of convening of the General Meeting-in the notice of convening the General Meeting-clearly
shows that the Company Articles or General Meeting by-laws do not provide for the possibility
of attending or speaking at the General Meeting using electronic means of communication —
which in some kind is the information about the incidental non-application of Good Practices.

Taking into account the above, it should be considered that Company’s shareholders had
sufficient grounds to conclude that the Company does not currently apply solutions to
broadcast proceedings of General Meetings or to allow the participation of shareholders in
General Meetings by using the means of communication at a distance.

In addition, in the assessment of the Company’s Management Board, the current course of
General Meetings does not indicate in any way the need to make such transmission, or
communications. The Company is not able to provide support for the General Meeting with
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guarantee of technical safety and legal safety for two-way communication in real time, and in
particular the adequacy of the verification of the legitimacy of the shareholder.

The intention of the Company is the continuous compliance with all principles of corporate governance
set out in the Good Practices of the Companies Listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange. The Company
will undertake all efforts within its capacities for the implementation of all the governance rules arising
from the Good Practices of the Companies Listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange as soon as possible.

° INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

The Management Board of the Company is responsible for the Company system of internal control, its
effectiveness in the process of the preparation of financial statements and periodic reports prepared
and published in accordance with the principles of the Regulation of 19 February 2009 on the current
and periodic information reported by issuers of securities.

The assumption of the effective internal control system for the Company's financial reporting is to
ensure the adequacy and accuracy of the financial information contained in financial statements and
periodic reports. The effective system of internal control and risk management in the process of
financial reporting was built through an adequately determined scope of financial reporting as well as
through the definition of the entire process, including division of responsibilities and work
organisation. The Management Board of the Company also regularly reviews financial results of the
Company using the applicable financial reporting.

The Company applies the principle of independent review of the published financial reporting resulting
from the laws. Published half-year and annual financial statements, financial reports as well as
financial data on which this reporting is based, are reviewed (in the case of the half-yearly reports)
and audited (in the case of annual reports) by the Company’s auditor.

In accordance with the principles of corporate governance adopted by the Management Board and
accepted by the General Meeting of Shareholders, an Audit Committee operates in the Company. In
accordance with Article 11(5) of the Company’s Articles, when the Supervisory Board operates in 5-
members composition, the Audit Committee shall consist of all members of the Supervisory Board.

To further mitigate the Company’s exposure to market risks, a correct assessment of the planned
development projects as well as the control of current ones are carried out on the regular basis, based
on the investment models and decision-making procedures in force in the Company. In order to
reduce the risk associated with development projects and rental agreements, the Company obtains
guarantees or insurance policies from sub-contractors and tenants that cover the most common risks
associated with the development or to secure rental income.

Risk management procedure is subject to periodical updates by the Company’s Management Board
with the participation of Company’s key executives and other external advisors.

e MANAGEMENT BOARD, SUPERVISORY BOARD, AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Management Board functions on the basis of the provisions of the Commercial Code, provisions of
the Company’s Articles and Management Board'’s by-laws, available to the public and approved by the
Supervisory Board’s resolution, in accordance with the Principles of Good Practices of Companies
Listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange.

The Supervisory Board acts in accordance with the provisions of the Code of Commercial Companies,
the provisions of the Company’s Articles and Supervisory Board by-laws, available to the public and
determining its organization and manner of performance of the activities as well as on the basis of the

17



CPD S.A.
ANNUAL REPORT OF THE GROUP FOR 2014

Principles of Good Practices of Companies Listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange. The Supervisory
Board is a collegiate body and consists of 5 (five) to 7 (seven) members. The number of members of
the Supervisory Board, in accordance with the provisions of the preceding sentence, shall be
determined by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Supervisory Board is a permanent body supervising the Company’s in all areas of its activities The
Supervisory Board shall take the decisions or deliver opinions on matters reserved to its competence
in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles and according to the mode provided by
the Company’s Articles and relevant law provisions. The Supervisory Board complied with the
condition of having at least two independent members in its composition, in accordance with the
criteria of independence laid down in the Company’s Articles. Remuneration of the members of the
Supervisory Board is established in a transparent manner and did not constitute a significant cost for
the Company, affecting its financial result. The amount approved by resolution of the General Meeting
was disclosed in paragraph 22, REMUNERATION OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD AND THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD of this report.

An Audit Committee was created within the Supervisory Board. The Audit Committee is composed of
three to five members, including at least one independent member of the Supervisory Board who is at
the same time qualified in field of accounting or auditing. Currently, all members of the Supervisory
Board are also members of the Audit Committee.

° MANAGEMENT BOARD — APPOINTMENT, DISMISSAL, POWERS

Members of the Management Board are appointed and dismissed by the Supervisory Board. The
current term of office of the Management Board runs from 21 July 2010 (i.e. from the date of the
General Meeting for 2009 and the appointment of the Management Board of the second term) and
ends on 21 July 2015. The term of office of the current Management Board is common and lasts 5
years (§ 13(1) of the Company’s Articles). Dismissal or suspension of a member of the Management
Board may take place only for significant reasons. Article 368(4) of the Code of Commercial
Companies also provides to for the General Meeting’s right to dismiss or suspend a member of the
Management Board.

The competence to conduct Company’s affair is determined by the Management Board’s by-laws,
approved by the Supervisory Board’s resolution. The Management Board is the managing and
executive body of the Company and as such it runs the Company’s affairs and oversees its activities,
manages the business and represents the Company outside. The rights and obligations of the
Management Board in particular include:

o fixing the date and the agenda and convening General Meetings;

e submitting motions to the General Meeting, together with the opinion of the Supervisory
Board, in matters covered by the agenda of these Meetings

e submitting to the Supervisory Board financial statements and the Management Board's
written report on its activities during the accounting period and the motion on the
distribution of profit or losses, which documents are subject to consideration at the
Ordinary General Meeting;

e adoption of the Company’s Organizational Regulations and other internal acts governing
the operation of the Company’s business;

e creating and adopting Company’s annual, long-term and strategic plans;

e establishing procuration and granting powers of attorney;
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e applying with the Supervisory Board for convening its meetings,

e applying with the Supervisory Board for the approval of the Management Board by-laws,
Company’s Organizational Regulations, annual budgets and Company’s development
plans.

The members of the Management Board are obliged to participate in the General Meeting in the
composition which enables to provide substantive answers to the questions asked in the course of the
General Meeting.

The Management Board was entitled until 30 August 2013 to increase the Company’s share capital
within the limits of the authorised capital by an amount not exceeding PLN 2,500,000. The
Management Board could perform this authorization by making one or more successive increases in
the share capital and the shares could be taken up for both cash and in kind contributions. The
Management Board was authorized, with the consent of the Supervisory Board, to deprive
shareholders, in whole or in part, of their pre-emptive rights for shares issued on the basis of the
aforementioned authorization. D and F series shares were issued as part of the authorised capital.
Issues of both series of shares were described in section 18. ISSUES OF SECURITIES, ACQUISITION
OF OWN SHARES of this report.

° AMENDMENTS TO THE COMPANY ARTICLES

The Code of Commercial Companies regulates in detail the amendments to the articles of association
of a joint-stock company in Chapter 4, 5 and 6 of Provisions on the joint-stock company (Article 430
of CCC et seq.). Amendment to the Articles of Association requires decisions taken by the General
Meeting.

o GENERAL MEETING

The General Meeting is the highest governing body of the Company. The General Meeting acts in
accordance with the principles set out in the Code of Commercial Companies, Company’s Articles and
General Meeting’s by-laws. The Articles and rules of procedure of the General Meetings are presented
on the Company’s website: www.cpdsa.pl. General meetings can be ordinary or extraordinary. The
General Meeting is convened by competent governing bodies or persons whose entittement derives
from the provisions of the law or the Articles. The General Meeting is held at the place and time to
facilitate the participation to the widest circle of shareholders. Shareholders having registered shares
and temporary rights as well as pledgees and users, having the right to vote if they were registered in
the share register at least one week before the date of the General Meeting are entitled to participate
in the General Meeting. The principal powers of the General Meeting include decisions on issuance of
shares with pre-emptive rights, on determination of the date of rights to dividends and the day of
payment of dividends, the appointment and dismissal of the members of the Supervisory Board,
establishment of their remuneration as well as on other matters indicated in CCC.

5. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CPD Group perceives its activities in the field of developer projects in the broader context of creating a
modern, multidimensional urban space, providing new quality of life for residents and users of
implemented investments. The Group expresses its responsibility for the environment through the
support for various social initiatives, directly or indirectly related to its investment business.

As part of such actions and under the Pact for Culture in Ursus, signed in 2011 by CPD Group with
representatives of Ursus authorities and Arsus Cultural Centre, CPD Group reduced the lease rate for
the Arsus building, to the symbolic amount of PLN 100 per month, which allows the centre to allocate

19



CPD S.A.
ANNUAL REPORT OF THE GROUP FOR 2014

more funds for its statutory activities. The Arsus Centre, operating since 1992, is located at
Traktorzystow 14 street on a site belonging currently to CPD Group. It includes a fully equipped
cinema with 500 seats, a room with stage and 120 seats, an “Arsus” basement for alternative
activities (concerts, theatre plays, performance), a modern art gallery “Ad-Hoc”, as well as clubrooms
to conduct artistic amateur activities.

In relation to our key development project on former ZPC Ursus industrial land, and being aware of
our role in such a comprehensive task as revitalisation of this area, CPD Group has for several years
been undertaking initiatives exceeding the scope of typical real estate development and construction.
In 2014, the Group along with the City District of Ursus Office co-organised a cycle of cultural events
"Farewall to Summer with Ursus", and supported preparation of light decorations in the district during
the Christmas season.

Within corporate social responsibility and awareness of the need to actively participate in creating the
public urban space, in 2011 CPD Group declared also the willingness to transfer ca. 14,39 ha of land
owned by CPD, located on the area of the former ZPC Ursus, to the authorities of the Capital City of
Warsaw free of charge. This declaration of the Group regards 14,39 ha, 4.9 ha of which would be
used for social functions and 9,49 ha for road ones. The value of this land according to the Forecasts
of the financial consequences of the enactment of the Master plan for the post-industrial area in the
vicinity of Orfow Piastowskich street prepared on commission of authorities of Capital City of Warsaw
is estimated at approx. PLN 57 million.

In 2015, CPD Group will use spare funds to continue the commenced community support initiatives in
belief that they will bring measurable effects both to direct beneficiaries and to communities in which
they are delivered.

6. STRATEGY AND POLICY REGARDING FURTHER GROUP
DEVELOPMENT DIRECTIONS

In the coming years, the Group is going to implement a strategy aimed at building the value of the
Group’s assets successively and consistently through maximisation of proceeds from rents and
comprehensive implementation of the Ursus project. As part of implementing strategic assumptions,
the Group’s actions will primarily focus on launching the Ursus project. In order to hasten the growth
in the value of the Group’s assets, the Group intends to divide the project in Ursus into smaller
projects and implement them in cooperation with experienced housing developers. Simultaneous
implementation of several smaller developer undertakings as part of the Ursus project will enable the
shortening of the entire project completion time, which will at the same time translate into faster
growth in the value of other Group’s assets in that region, and permit the achievement of the synergy
effect and optimisation of promotion, sales and marketing costs related to those undertakings.

Regardless of the strategic assumptions adopted for the incoming years, the Group does not exclude
that in the future it will be interested in sale of the part of the investment land to other potential
developers or acquisitions of other entities of the development sector. Potential targets of acquisitions
will be primarily companies holding lands in interesting locations and/or executing projects matching
the Group’s image.

The overall strategy, as defined above, executed in very demanding market conditions, determined by
the overall economic slowdown, the decrease in demand for real estate and more difficult access to
the capital, defines the guidelines for each of the areas of Group’s activity during next few years and
aims at increasing the Shareholders’ assets and optimizing their return on investment.
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7. CPD GROUP ACTIVITIES AND IMPORTANT EVENTS IN THE
REPORTING PERIOD
e REVENUES STRUCTURE AND INFORMATION ON PRODUCTS

In 2014, CPD Group's activities consisted in development and sale of own developer projects
(residential and commercial), from which the Group achieved revenues from sale of inventories,
income from lease and income from lease related services;

CPD Capital Group structure of revenues

31.12.2014 — 31.12.2013

Liabilities to total assets 34,9% 30,6%
Non-current liabilities to total assets 20,8% 7,6%
Borrowings including finance leases 11,5% 4,6%
Convertible bonds 3,9% 0,0%
Embedded derivative 3,0% 0,0%
Deferred income tax liabilities 2,2% 2,8%
Trade and other payables 0,2% 0,1%
Current liabilities to total assets 14,1% 23,1%
Borrowings including finance leases 11,5% 19,8%
Trade and other payables 2,5% 3,2%
Income tax liabilities 0,0% 0,1%

The Group's revenue for the year 2014 amounted to PLN 15.1 million and almost entirely related to
the lease and lease-related services. Rental income was generated primarily by three office buildings
in Warsaw - building on the Cybernetics IRIS 7B, Solar Street building Cybernetics 7B and Aquarius
Street building Potczyriska 31A.

e INFORMATION ABOUT CPD GROUP MARKETS, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The main market of the CPD Group is Poland, and in particular the Warsaw metropolitan area where
ca. 99% (in terms of value) of investments held by the Group are located.

Geographical structure of the Group's revenue in 2014 reflects the Group adopted the strategy of
focusing on the Polish market. In the year 2014 100% of the Group came from the domestic market.
Recipients of the Company and its Group are divided into two basic groups of closely related to the
type of projects carried out by the Group: specialized real estate funds and individual customers. Of
the commercial projects are ultimately sold to specialized institutional investors operating in the real
estate market. Smaller projects are sold to individual investors. Before the start of the sale, the
Company makes the commercialization of the building. Accordingly Commercial tenants are also
indirect audience.

Regarding the fact, that a part of Group’s portfolio is intended for residential development, individuals
looking for a new flat are also Group’s customers. The characteristics of target clientele will depend on
individual projects. Until now CPD has implemented projects intended for individual customers having
a higher purchase capacity (Wilanéw Classic housing development, Koszykowa 69 apartment house).
Having in mind the planned start of the Ursus project, the Company customer base will be extended
by persons seeking apartments in the popular segment (at affordable prices), and by developers
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looking for interesting investment areas. It should be expected that the share of this kind of
customers in the Company’s portfolio will systematically grow.

Due to the nature of CPD’s business, the main suppliers_for the Company and its Group are general
contractors, construction companies, engineering companies, architects and design studios, real
estate management firms, brokerage offices and legal firms employed within the ongoing investment
projects as well as other bodies involved in the process of preparation and implementation of the
development process.

° EVENTS AFFECTING GROUP ACTIVITIES AND FINANCIAL RESULTS

> VOTING OF MASTER PLAN FOR URSUS

Work on the master plan since the enactment of the study of conditions and directions of spatial
m. St. Warsaw, as amended, and adoption of a resolution on the accession to the preparation of
local development plan in the area of Ortdw Piastowskich Street until its enactment lasted almost
eight years.

Finally, the culmination of these years was put to the vote on 3 July 2014. City Council session
Warsaw draft local development plan in the area of Ortdw Piastowskich Street - part I.

City Council Warsaw, following a vote passed a resolution adopting the local development plan in
the area of Ortéw Piastowskich Street - part I.

This document allows to start area revitalization of degraded urban and organize an area of
about 220 hectares, which represents 25% of the whole district Ursus. Currently, it is the area
with the greatest potential investment in the m. St. Warszawa covered uniform development plan
with excellent modern infrastructure solutions in the field of public transport: rail and road,
located only 9 km from the city center and 5 minutes drive from the Frederic Chopin Airport.

The final stage of work on the development plan in the area of Ortdw Piastowskich Street - part
I was his legitimacy, and therefore become a local law, which took place 30 days after notice by
the authority empowered in the Official Journal of the Mazowieckie Province, the date of August
15, 2014 r.

> VALIDATION OF A MASTER PLAN IN URSUS

August 15, 2014, the last stage completed formal validation of Local Development Plan (LDP) for
Ortéw Piastowskich Street - Part I.

The resolution, together with all documentation has been forwarded to the Governor Mazowiecki,
who as part of his powers, on 5 August 2014 in the pages of the Official Journal of the Mazovian
Province published Settlement Boards.

Therefore, the Development Plan for the area of Ortéw Piastowskich Street - Part I, in the
version corrected by the Governor Mazovian, shall enter into force after 30 days from the date of
its publication in the Official Journal of the Region, the day of August 15, 2014 year.

In accordance with the provisions of the local plan for the area just CPD Group, as the largest
investor can realize investments floor area of about 750 thousand square meters with about 652
thousand square meters can be used for housing, and 58 thousand for building commercial
service and 40 thousand m2 under public building. The Company intends to modify the above
assumptions in order to optimize and increase the attractiveness of building locations for
potential residents and thus achieve the maximum design value for its shareholders.
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CPD Capital Group intends to develop a multi-functional urban area with buildings covering
mainly residential apartments with an area of 40 - 80 m2. Dwellings built under the project will
be designed primarily for young working people or families looking for their first home. Housing
price will be adjusted to market conditions and purchasing power of potential buyers. Easy and
convenient access to the city center is to be the particular advantage of the project for the target
audience. Easy access by public transport is an additional advantage of the area:

e access by train - the location of the project between stations Warsaw Ursus and Warsaw
Ursus North, Doves and Bear lying on the two main railway routes, allows access to the
center in approx. 14 minutes;

e access by car / bus - the immediate vicinity of the project, bus lines and twelve western
bypass built as Warsaw connected through the streets Nowomory and 4 June 1989.
Guarantees closeness important hubs.

Current market trends show strong demand for housing market for small areas and moderately
priced. Ursus project was intended to make their products perfectly fit the needs of the market,
the Company expects strong demand for housing supplied. In addition, the Company expects a
big interest in the project among the target audience because of the competitive advantage
resulting from the location and design flexibility, innovative Smart City and planned attractive
prices.

These facts indicate that the adoption of the plan and the investments made in infrastructure
have opened a new chapter in the history of the Ursus district. Development of such a large area
and putting her back is not only the people of the revitalization process. It's a great start of the
investment process, creating hundreds of new jobs, new residents settle and realize many
investments are important from the point of view of the district, even in the educational layer.

It is also the implementation of a new model of cooperation between the city, district and
investors. In the process of adopting the Group CPD plan to donate to the city of more than 10.1
hectares of land allocated in the plan for public investment. This action also freed from the
budget of the local government a serious expense associated with the redemption of the land,
the money will be spent on investments district in the area.

» NOTARIAL DEEDS

As the culmination of nearly four years of ongoing discussions with the Capital City of Warsaw
and the State Treasury, 3 July 2014., Subsidiaries of the Issuer: Challenge Eighteen limited
liability company, 2/124 Gaston Investments Limited Liability Company LLP, 3 / 93 Gaston
Investments Limited Liability Company sp.k. 5/92 Gaston Investments Limited Liability Company
LLP, 6/150 Gaston Investments Limited Liability Company LLP, 8/126 Gaston Investments
limited liability company sp.k., 9/151 Gaston Investments Limited Liability Company LLP, 10/165
Gaston Investments Limited Liability Company LLP, 11/162 Gaston Investments Limited Liability
Company LLP, 12/132 Gaston Investments Limited Liability Company LLP, 13/155 Gaston
Investments Limited Liability Company LLP, 15/167 Gaston Investments Limited Liability
Company LLP, 18 Gaston Investments Limited Liability Company LLP and the city of Warsaw,
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and

Eighteen Challenge a limited liability company and the Treasury,

entered into a contract in the form of notarial acts, including the transfer of perpetual usufruct of

land plots for the city of Warsaw and the Treasury areas in the draft local development plan in the

area of area Ortow Piastowskich Street - Part I, are intended for public spaces.

The subsidiaries have entered into the following agreements:

preliminary sales agreement signed on 3 July 2014. In the form of a notarial deed between the
company 18 Gaston Investments Limited Liability Company LLP and the Capital City of Warsaw
for the sale of the Subsidiary, the right of perpetual usufruct of immovable property with the
following numbers KW WA1M / 00228713 ninths, WA1M / 00283412/2, WA1M / 00338241
thirds, WA1M / 00359139 eighths, WA1M / 00453511 ninths, WA5M / 00444063 fifths, WA5M /
00444810 sevenths, WA5M / 00460144 fifths, located in Warsaw's Ursus district. The total book
value of the right of perpetual usufruct of immovable property in the books of the companies is
5 687 012.99 PIn, respectively. The sale price for the amount of 1 gold for the property.

donation agreement signed 3 July 2014. In the form of a notarial deed between Challange
Eighteen companies with limited liability, 2/124 Gaston Investments Limited Liability Company
LLP, 3/93 Gaston Investments Limited Liability Company LLP, 5/92 Gaston Investments Limited
Liability Company LLP, 6/150 Gaston Investments Limited Liability Company LLP, 8/126 Gaston
Investments Limited Liability Company LLP, 9/151 Gaston Investments Limited Company
Liability Company LLP, 10/165 Gaston Investments Limited Liability Company LLP, 11/162
Gaston Investments Limited Liability Company LLP, 12/132 Gaston Investments Limited Liability
Company LLP, 13 / 155 Gaston Investments Limited Liability Company LLP, 15/167 Gaston
Investments Limited Liability Company LLP and the capital city of Warsaw applicable gratuitous
transfer of the right of perpetual usufruct of immovable property numbers WAS5M KW /
00444808/0, WASM / 00473247/1, WA5M / 00470813 ninths, WA5M / 00470814 sixths, WA1M
/ 00283410 eighths, WA1M / 00283123 ninths, WA1M / 00283128 quarters, WA1M / 00338197
ninths, WA1M / 00454073 thirds, WA1M / 00283125 thirds, WA1M / 00060388 fifths, WA1M /
00359150/1 WA5M / 00443952 sevenths, WA1M / 00060218 thirds, WA1M / 00060294 ninths,
WASM / 00444064/2, WA5M / 00444065 ninths, WA1M / 00233103 eighths, WA1M / 00377082
fifths, WA1M / 00432820 fifths, WASM / 00443951/0, WA5M / 00444066 sixths, located in
Warsaw Ursus district. The total book value of the right of perpetual usufruct of immovable
property in the books is 23 462 396.59 PIn, respectively.

Contract termination of perpetual usufruct signed 3 July 2014. In the form of a notarial deed
between the company Challange Eighteen limited liability company and the Treasury, provide a
solution to the perpetual usufruct contract numbers WA1IM KW / 00228714 sixths and WA5M /
00444807 thirds, located in Warsaw's Ursus district. The total book value of real estate in the
books is 12 758 402 PIn, respectively.

Free to get these areas through the city, is the next step in the Ursus district approximates a

comprehensive revitalization of degraded brownfield sites of the former Industrial Plant Ursus.
This enhances synchronized and balanced launch of a multifunctional urban investment in the
above areas, and at the same time is extremely important impulse for the economic development
of the whole district.
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CPD Group, as the largest investor in the area wants in a sublime way to mark the start of the
investment in the area covered by the newly adopted plan, which is part of a new chapter of
cooperation between the government and the developer in the field of rural development in public
buildings - roads, educational, cultural, including is organizing a museum dedicated to the history
of Ursus, thereby stressing the importance it was to enact the plan of development of these areas
not only for the residents of the district, but the whole of Warsaw. The adoption of the local plan
is the culmination of all the other public investments in this area: among others, Warsaw Western
Bypass, hub Salome and the newly built street thoroughfares. June 4, 1989. And st. Nowomory
the railway tracts.

» AGREEMENT SIGNED BY CPD AND SUBSIDIARIES — BEGINNING OF INVESTMENT IN
URSUS

Start of housing investment in Ursus took place on September 10, 2014 year. That day was
signed an investment agreement on a joint venture with The Group of Unibep, in terms of
realization of complex buildings with services and associated infrastructure in Warsaw Ursus
district.

The agreement was made between:

CPD SA in Warsaw, Challenge Eighteen limited liability company in Warsaw, 1/95 Gaston
Investments limited liability limited partnership with its registered office in Warsaw, Lakia
Enterprise Ltd in Nicosia (Cyprus),

and
Unibep SA from Bielsko Podlaski, Unidevelopment SA from Warsaw.

The Agreement provides for a joint project be completed on the part of the property belonging to
the Capital Group CPD ie. The company 1/95 Gaston Investments Sp. Z oo limited partnership in
Warsaw. The property consists of the above plot no 95, no rev. Reg. No. 2-09-09, with an area of
3.6811 ha and is located at ul. Traktorzystow in Warsaw (Warsaw district - Ursus).

On the Property will be implemented in two phases, the construction of multi-family building
complex services with accompanying infrastructure, with a projected area of approx. 20,000 m2 of
usable space, which will be the general contractor company Unibep SA and the company
Unidevelopment SA will be provided services investor representation on the Undertaking. The
agreement also includes operations to conduct marketing activities related to the sale of
apartments in the context of projects, and then on the total sales of usable space projects and
profit distribution rules of the Operation.

Participation Group companies in the implementation of projects CPD is, among others, to:

a) the implementation of the projects on the Property belonging to the Company's limited
partnership,

b) the provision by Gaston Investments Sp. z 0o services, financial and operational control over
the Undertaking and supervision Unibep SA as the general contractor.

The agreement was conditional and entered into force after agreement by the parties to all the
Annexes to the Agreement and, as regards the accession Unidevelopment SA a limited partnership
company, after obtaining the consent of the President of the Office of Competition and Consumer
Protection for the concentration of entrepreneurs.
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»

V4

APPROVAL OF UOKIK

On February 2015 issued by the President of the Office of Competition and Consumer Protection
after antitrust proceedings initiated upon Challange Eighteen sp. with its registered office in
Warsaw (the "Subsidiary"), Smart City sp. with its registered office in Warsaw and
Unidevelopment SA with its registered office in Warsaw, the President of the Office of Competition
and Consumer Protection approved for concentration, involving the establishment of a joint
venture Smart City sp. in the organization of a limited partnership with its registered office in
Warsaw by the Subsidiary, Smart City sp. with its registered office in Warsaw and Unidevelopment
SA with its registered office in Warsaw.

In this way, fulfilled the condition precedent of the Investment Agreement of September 10 2014
for accession Unidevelopment SA Smart City company o.0 limited partnership with its registered
office in Warsaw.

ACCESSION UNIDEVELOPMENT SA TO LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

On 9 March 2015, the Memorandum of Association of Smart City w organizacji sp. z 0.0. sp.k. was
annexed, and under this annex Unidevelopment S.A. joined the Limited Partnership as a Limited
Partner, made the first portion of their contribution, and committed to make the remaining portion
of financial contribution until the date stipulated in the investment agreement of 10 September
2014.

INCREASE VALUE OF REAL ESTATE AT THE END OF THE YEAR 2014

In accordance to valuations made by Savills sp. at the end of 2014. total fair value of the
property held by the Group and including investment properties and inventories amounted to PLN
587.9 million and was higher by PLN 137.3 million from the value reported at the end of 2013.
The increase in value of the property has been recognized as a result of valuation of investment
properties, which at the end of 2014. was positive and amounted to PLN 114.8 million. To
increase the value of the property portfolio of the Group was mainly due to an increase in the
value of the investment project in Ursus. It should be noted that the reduction in the real estate
portfolio of parcel traffic as a result of gratuitous transfer of public land for m st. Warsaw, has
not affected the value of the property portfolio and the opposite. Facilitated the transfer of the
road to take a councilor m st. Warsaw decision to adopt a local development plan in the area of
the former factories ZPC Ursus, thereby increasing the investment value of the whole area.

Significant impact on the increase in value of real estate in Ursus was also in return for the
transfer of the company 4/113 Gaston Investments Sp. z 0.0. sp. k. The right of perpetual
usufruct, which is a plot number 113 in conjunction with the ownership of buildings, structures
and facilities located on the property, which are separate items of property ,.

Additional factors that positively affected the value of the Group's real estate portfolio had
increases in the value of buildings Iris, Solar and Aquarius resulting from rising rental income in
view of the increasing commercialization of space and the expected by analysts improvement on
the commercial real estate rental market in Warsaw.

COMMERCIALIZATION IRIS STREET BUILDING. CYBERNETYKI 9, IN
WARSAW

Iris is a six-storey building office building with a total leasable area of approx. 14,3 thous. m2 with
233 parking places and is the final stage of the project office and residential located at the
intersection of Cybernetics and Progress in Warsaw. At the date of this report are still under active
efforts to commercialize 100% of the building. At the date of this report the building is 88.5%
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leased. Issues are currently being finalized documentation to make the conversion of the
construction loan granted by BZ WBK the investment credit granted by the bank.

> CHANGES IN THE COMPOSITION OF THE COMPANY’'S MANAGEMENT BOARD

In 2014, the composition of the Company’s Management Board changed as described in detail in
section IV of this report. As a result of the changes, the following persons constituted the
Management Board as of the day of publication hereof:

= Ms Elzbieta Wiczkowska — President of the Management Board
= Mr Colin Kingsnorth — Member of the Management Board
= Ms Iwona Makarewicz — Member of the Management Board

8. ASSESSMENT OF INVESTMENT POSSIBILITIES AND PROJECT
OPPORTUNITIES

CPD Group, implementing development projects, finances them both using its own funds, debt
securities and bank loans. In the future, the Group assumes the implementation of projects through
subsidiaries or joint ventures, and the financing of construction projects and investments (loans
targeted) will be obtained directly by the company or through CPD SA

Value of the property held by the Group, including investment properties and inventories stood at the
end of 2014 PLN 587.9 million to 450.6 million PLN at the end of last year. A factor that positively
affected the value of the Group's property portfolio was an increase in the value of real estate in
Ursus and Iris building due to the increased level of lease. Valuation of the property at the end of
2014, the same as last year, have been carried out by an independent expert - the company Savills
Poland Sp. with 0.0

The following table summarizes the properties belonging to the Group as at 31 December 2014.

Building Area — Valuation for Valuatin for
Site Area leasing, sale (m  31.12.2013 (min 31.12.2014 (min
kw) PLN) PLN)

Investment properties 798 003 442,80 581,39
1 URSUS Residential / office / retail 45,3 ha 740 000 272,40 387,56
2 SOLAR Office 3908 m kw 5792 34,40 34,10
3 IRIS Office 7449 m kw 14 300 85,00 100,59
4 AQUARIUS Office 15480 m kw 5211 26,50 27,28
5  WOLBORZ Logistic park 10 ha - 2,40 2,60
Capitalised rights of perpetual usufruct of land 32700 22,00 29,26
Inventories (of fair value) 18 875,00 7,80 6,53
6 tODZ Residential / office / retail 1457 m kw 3814 5,00 4,10
7  KOSZYKOWA Residential 744 m kw 454 0,40 0,37
8  CZOSNOW Land 15,2 ha nd 1,10 0,80
9  JAKTOROW Land 2,0 ha nd 0,30 0,33
10 NOWA PIASECZNICA Land 6200 m kw nd 0,10 0,15
11 ALSONEMEDI (Wegry) Warehouse / office 42 495 m kw 14 607 0,90 0,76
TOTAL 816 878 450,60 587,92
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» URSUS

In the second half-year of 2006, CPD Group purchased over 58 hectares of land formerly occupied
by ZPC Ursus industrial facility for, financed from its own funds, in order to launch a multiple
function urban development project.

In addition to this, on 30 January 2015, CPD SA Group through one of its subsidiaries purchased
Imes sp. z 0.0., a company owning land on the corner of Gierdziejewskiego and Silnikowa streets
on the Smart City Ursus premises. This acquisition was financed by series B bonds issued in
January 2015.

The purchased land of 7 hectares will allow building over 80,000 sq m or residential and
commercial space in an area where also educational and leisure facilities are planned to be
built. The purchased property is directly adjacent to other land owned by CPD S.A. capital group.
Its acquisition expanded our real estate portfolio in the Smart City premises by the key area
directly neighbouring with the areas allocated for educational and leisure purposes. According to
the local zoning plan, the acquired property along with the adjacent land, will ultimately become a
unique and modern residential, leisure, and educational complex of over 20 hectares. Owing to its
location and extraordinary combination of the residential, educational, and leisure functions, it will
offer high comfort of living to its residents.

As a result of the above transaction, CPD SA Capital Group controls an area of approx. 54 ha within
the Smart City project.

This land is in the area covered by the local zoning plan adopted in July 2014, comprising approx.
220 hectares, including also post-industrial premises around the Ortdw Piastowskich street in
Ursus.

The plan provides for development of a modern urban area which - apart from housing estates for
around 25,000 residents - will feature offices of many companies, businesses, craft trades, and
services shops, including those currently operating in the district of Ursus. It is estimated that
around 20,000 new jobs will be created in the new office and service buildings in the plan-covered
area. The plan also sets aside areas for public utility buildings such as schools, nurseries,
kindergartens, parks, greeneries, and cycling paths, necessary for proper functioning of the newly
created urban space.

The project is attractive for prospective buyers owing to proximity of the city centre (9km),
convenient public transport access (3 suburban railway stops within the project premises and
dense network of bus services), as well as reasonable pricing of apartments on offer.

The original intent of CPD Group for this area was to develop a comprehensive, multiple function
urban development project, with dominant residential function, offering over approx. 750,000 sq m
of area. Advantage of this solution for the future residents consisted in delivery of the architectural
and urban planning concept by a single real estate developer, ensuring coherence of both
functions and design. However, due to the long-lasting process of adoption of the local zoning plan
for former ZPC Ursus premises, the Management Board made a strategic decision to divide the
project into smaller projects to be delivered in co-operation with other developers, as joint venture
projects.

On 10 September 2014, the investment process commenced for stage 1 of the residential and
service buildings on an area of 1.1 ha, with around 20,000 sq m of usable area to be built in two
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phases. The investment process is being delivered jointly with Unibep S.A. capital group, with an
active involvement of Unidevelopment S.A. — its subsidiary.

Stage 1 of the project consists in development of an area of 88,890 sq m with around 101,964 sq
m of residential and service space. Design works in stage 1 were commenced in co-operation with
HRA Architekci design studio which has been operating on the design market since 2004 and is the
successor of Hermanowicz MWH - Architekci studio, established in 1990. Completion of these
works is planned for late first half of this year.

The investment is situated on the corner of Hennela and Dyrekcyjna streets, in direct vicinity of the
District of Ursus Office, Factory Outlet shopping mall, Ursus city railway stop, Arsus Cultural
Centre, and a private schools complex of the Educational Society in Warsaw.

The planned complex of 4 apartment blocks will mainly offer apartments with an area of 40 to 80
sq m. Apart from the apartment blocks, also office buildings and educational facilities tailored to
the purposes of the local community will be built. The offer of apartments will primarily be
addressed at young, employed adults and families looking for their first living quarters in the
Warsaw agglomeration.

We also plan to regenerate the greenery directly adjacent to the south-western side of the first
residential housing project. The aim of this regeneration is to transform the area directly
neighbouring with the Arsus Cultural Centre and private schools complex into a public park with a
playground. Sale of apartments is planned to start in September 2015.

Further stages of Smart City Ursus project will be launched successively over the next few years so
that there is a standing supply of apartments and shops available throughout the duration of the
Smart City project. Current market trends show a large demand for small apartments at relatively
low prices. The Ursus project perfectly matches these market needs which is why the Group
anticipates high demand for apartments offered in the project.

Moreover, in the last few years the Group transferred to the Treasury road plots which according
to the draft local zoning plan are allocated for four-strip road arteries which provide a collision-free
connection of the regenerated areas with Al. Jerozolimskie by construction of Nowolazurowa street,
and with Potczynska street by construction of Nowomory street. The City Road Investments Board
in 2013 successfully completed and commissioned both road arteries. Construction of
Nowolazurowa and Nowomory streets is one of key elements of regeneration of the former ZPC
Ursus industrial facilities by inclusion of the regenerated areas into the uniform network of city
roads, owing to fast-lane and collision-free road connections. Commissioning of road arteries so
important for this area is a part of consistent and comprehensive policy of Warsaw city and Ursus
district authorities to regenerate post-industrial areas formerly owned by ZPC Ursus and transform
them into a living and diverse urban fabric, serving all residents of the capital city. As a part of
social responsibility and having noticed the need for active involvement in forming public urban
space, CPD Group in July 2014 committed to transfer free of charge to Warsaw city authorities
approx. 9,49 ha of land for road investments.

Transfer of this land for infrastructural purposes to strategic investors was aimed at allowing such
institutions as City Road Investments Board, Dalkia Polska, Dalkia Warszawa, or RWE to launch
their investment projects in the Ursus district. These actions are a part of conceptual and design
works of the Group, continuing for several years and aimed at achieving full structural regeneration
of post-industrial areas of former ZPC Ursus factory by building state-of-the-art road, energy,
heating, water mains and sewage infrastructure so that the regenerated section, covering approx.
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20% of the entire Ursus district, becomes a uniform, modern, and multi-function urban fabric.
Although at the date of this report the Group has the necessary infrastructural conditions ensured
by providers of all utilities, situation of the above-mentioned comprehensive infrastructural
investments in direct vicinity of the Group's planned projects is of vital importance for delivery of
the entire project as it will significantly streamline the infrastructure costs.

Acting further as a part of social responsibility and having noticed the need for active involvement
in forming public urban space, CPD Group on 10 September 2014 committed to transfer free of
charge to Ursus district authorities approx. 4.9 ha of land for public education investments
(schools, kindergartens, and nurseries). Transfer of land for public investments of the district
authorities will bring a positive result in the form of synchronised and balanced launch of muilti-
functional urban development investments in these areas and will also be an important impulse for
the entire district's economic growth.

IRIS BUILDING, 9 CYBERNETYKI STREET, WARSAW

The IRIS building, which is the final stage of the office and residential project located at the
corner of Cybernetyki and Postepu streets in Warsaw’s Mokotow district. It is a six-storey office
building with the total lease area of circa 14.3 k sgm together with 233 parking spaces. The
project at the corner of Cybernetyki and Postepu streets is composed of Cybernetyki Office Park
(Helion, Luminar, Solar and Iris buildings) and Mokotéw Plaza office complexes, as well as
Mozaika residential complex. The Group has constructed and sold 3 buildings in Cybernetyki Office
Park to date: Helion, Luminar and Mokotow Plaza.

SOLAR BUILDING, 7B CYBERNETYKI STREET, WARSAW

The eight storey B+ class office building of 5,792 sqgm of was built in 1998 and refurbished by the
Group in 2008. The building is currently leased to such companies as Beko S.A., Berlin Chemie,
Akzo Nobel, Liqui Moly Polska, ZPUE S.A. and Bard Poland. On 31 December 2014, the building
was leased in 97 %.

AQUARIUS BUILDING, POLCZYNSKA 31A STREET, WARSAW

The Aquarius Office Park consists of a five storey B class office building of 5,211 sgm, an
investment site with a valid building permit for the construction of an A class office building of
ca 2,500 sgm as well as an investment site of approx. 10,000 sgm intended for the construction of
an office and warehouse complex. The office building is currently leased to such companies as VB
Leasing, Betacom S.A., Fly Away Travel. On 31 December 2014, the building was leased in 88 %.

WoLBORZ, MAZOWIECKIE VOIVODSHIP

The 10-hectare real estate is located in Wolbdrz, close to Auchan Distribution Centre and E67 road
from Warsaw to Cracow and Katowice. In accordance with the applicable land use permit, there is
a possibility to construct a logistics and distribution centre with area of 32.700 sqm. The Group
intends to sell the undeveloped land together with a building permit design to a final investor.

PROJECTS IN PROGRESS AND REAL ESTATES FOR SALE (INVENTORIES):

>

18 LEGIONOW STREET, LODZ

The real estate in £6dz is the building with total area of 3,814 sqm on a plot of 0.1457 ha, located
on 18 Legiondow street, in the vicinity of Piotrkowska street. The Group intends to realize a
thorough renewal of the building and in the next stage to sell residential, office and commercial
premises.
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KoszykowaA 69

The real estate at Koszykowa 69 includes a four-storey row house (Ludwik Szanser’s row house)
and the outbuilding. The building was renovated and extended by Celtic Group, offering 14
apartments and commercial areas which were sold in 2011. As of 31 December 2013 Group’s
investment properties portfolio still included the outbuilding. The Group is currently taking actions
to relocate the present lessees of the outbuilding and to commence renewal of this part of the
row house.

CzosNOW

The land in Czosndw has been purchased by the Group as part of the acquisition of 100% shares
in Antigo Investments Sp. z 0.0. The land in Czosnow has a total area of 15.2 hectares, the most
part of which is agricultural land. These plots offer a potential for the development, which will be
possible to release as a result of change of category of part of plots from agricultural land to
construction land.

JAKTOROW

The land in Jaktorow of the area of 3.2 ha has been purchased by the Group as part of the
acquisition of 100% shares in Antigo Investments Sp. z 0.0. This is agricultural land that can be
released upon changing the intended use of the land from agricultural land to construction land
or sold for country houses habitation. As of the day of publication hereof, there were still 20.4 k
m? for sales.

NowA PIASECZNICA

The land in Nowa Piasecznica has been purchased by the Group as part of the acquisition of
100% shares in Antigo Investments Sp. z 0.0. The land in Nowa Piasecznica had a total area of
1.5 ha. The half of the land is construction plots, designated for single-family housing projects
while the second half is agricultural land which will increase in value when the category changes
to construction land. As of the day of publication hereof, there were still 6.2 k m? for sales.

ALSONEMEDI, HUNGARY

In 2009 the Group purchased land near Budapest measuring 42,495 sgm to develop warehouse
space. The real estate is situated in a logistically good location: 20 km south of Budapest and in
proximity to main roads. The Group intends to sell this property to a final investor.

FACTORS AND UNUSUAL EVENTS AFFECTING GROUP FINANCIAL
RESULTS

In the Management Board’s opinion, in the year 2014 there were no unusual events which affect the
Group results.

10. FACTORS IMPORTANT FOR FURTHER GROUP DEVELOPMENT

The decline in real estate prices on the Polish market in recent years has forced the group to change
the strategy for the implementation of projects and their disposal. Due to the prevailing market
conditions and in order to prevent further accumulation at the time the return on investment of the
Company's projects, at the end of 2011, the Management Board decided on the sale of investment
projects that are in various stages of development and distribution of Ursus project into smaller sub-
projects. In 2014, this strategy has been consistently implemented: solved Hungarian operating
company of the Group, focusing activities on the Polish market.
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° MACROECONOMIC SITUATION IN POLAND

Due to the concentration of the Group's activities on the Polish market, the overall condition of the
Polish economy, with particular emphasis on its growth rate and the level of unemployment, will play
a key role in shaping the demand for real estate offered by the Group.

In 2014, Polish GDP growth was 3.3%, and so much more than in 2013 (an increase of 1.7%).
According to government forecasts the growth rate of the Polish economy in 2015 should be at the
level of 3.4%. The main driver to maintain the current level of growth will be according to analysts
domestic demand, mainly the higher growth rate of private consumption and maintaining high growth
rate of private investment. Increase in the average wage and employment growth coupled with low
inflation and low interest rates should support the continued growth of domestic demand in 2015.
These factors should positively translate into improved consumer sentiment among workers and
among entrepreneurs, and thus to increase in demand for housing and office space and commercial.

o SITUATION ON FINANCIAL MARKETS

The availability of sources of funding and the cost of capital have a direct impact on the interest of
institutional investors in investment projects, since their purchases are also largely financed by debt
financing.

° BANKS’ LOAN POLICY AND ACCESS TO MORTGAGE LOANS

The impact of the credit policy of banks on the Group is twofold. The company, implementing new
development projects, benefit greatly from bank financing. The terms of financing, such as credit
margins and required own contribution, determine the return on equity of the Company involved in
the implementation of the project. The availability of bank financing is also a key factor in determining
the size of the population demand for housing, which must be taken into account when launching
residential projects within the Group. The credit policy of the banks in turn depends on
macroeconomic factors and monetary policy pursued by the central bank.

In 2014, we witnessed another rate cut - the reference rate of the National Bank of Polish decreased
from 2.5% to 2.0% in October 2014 r 1.50% in March 2015. Maintaining the current level of interest
rates in 2015 should contribute increase the attractiveness of mortgage loans as well as to extend
their availability, which was significantly reduced in 2013, the introduction of the so-called.
Recommendation S, which establishes stricter rules for the calculation of credit and the maximum
amount of the credit limit.

° GOVERNMENTAL POLICY SUPPORTING CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY

MdM program was launched on 1 January 2014. The new government assistance program is given in
the form of a single payment for their contribution in the amount of 10 to 15% of the property,
subject to certain limits on the surface of the housing and the price per square meter is determined
according the location of the property. Just like in the Family on its own, the aid is directed to persons
under 35 years of age, buying first apartment. Due to the target group of customers for the project in
Ursus, a new assistance program in the future may have a positive influence on the demand for
housing offered by the Group CPD.

° ADMINISTRATIVE DECISIONS ON THE HELD LANDS

Group's ability to implement development projects intended CPD is dependent on the Group's local
administration bodies to a number of licenses. Any legislative initiatives aimed at simplifying the
construction will have a positive impact on operations.
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11. OVERVIEW OF BASIC ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

12 months period

From 01.01.2014 From 01.01.2013

to 31.12.2014 to 31.12.2013

(EUR ths.) (EUR ths.)
Revenue 15 067 13 880 8,6%
Cost of sales -3 648 -9 429 -61,3%
Gross profit 11 419 4451 156,5%
Administrative expenses - property related -9 732 -11 290 -13,8%
Other administrative expenses -10 645 -14 750 -27,8%
Selling and marketing costs -561 -119 371,4%
Gain (loss) on disposal of investment properties 0 -2597 -100,0%
Other income 420 606 -30,7%
Gain (loss) on revaluation of investment properties 114 810 -10 702 -1172,8%
Gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries -41 0 -
Profit (loss) from operations 105 670 -34 401 -407,2%
Finance income 9734 909 970,8%
Finance costs -10 546 -7 042 49,8%
Profit (loss) before tax 104 858 -40 534 -358,7%
Income tax -364 -2 527 -85,6%
Profit (loss) for the period 104 494 -43 061 -342,7%
Earnings per share (PLN) 3,04 -1,27 -339,7%
Diluted earnings per share (PLN) 2,66 -1,27 -309,1%

By 2014, the Group recorded an improvement of CPD SA net result by PLN 147.6 million compared to
2013. Net profit in 2014 amounted to PLN 104.5 million.

Among the factors that had a positive impact on such a significant improvement in the Group's results
in 2014 compared to 2013, driven by a positive result of the revaluation of investment property in the
amount of PLN 114.8 million, which is a consequence of the change in land use investment in Ursus,
financial income valuation of the embedded derivative in the amount of PLN 9.1 million, the Group
recorded a result of the issuance of bonds and an increase in profit on sales in the amount of PLN 7.0
million resulting from the optimization curve implemented by the Board in recent years.

Also, reducing administrative costs PLN 5.7 million as a result of the implemented and consistently
implemented by the Group in the last few years and optimization strategy for reducing operating costs
has contributed significantly to the Group's net profit on an annual basis.

On the other hand, the main negative factor on the net as compared to 2013 was an increase in
financial expenses by PLN 3.5 million, mainly due to the increase in foreign exchange losses of 1.3
million PLN and the use by the company of the Group, given bank financing of the building dedicated
to the commercialization of Iris.
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Sales revenues in 2014. Amounted to € 15.1 million PLN. The largest, 66-percent share in the amount
of rental income accounted for. With respect to the value for the 12 months 2014 years rental income
amounted to PLN 9.9m to PLN 6.8 million in 2013. Rental income was generated by the 3 office
buildings in Warsaw - building Potczynska Aquarius Street 31A, Solar building at 7B Cybernetics street
and the building of Iris Street Cybernetics 9. The main factor to increase the positive impact of rent
were active groups to full commercialization of the building Iris, which resulted in 2014 to increase the
coefficient of renting space in the building Iris, who the date of publication of the report reached the
level of 88.5% and the Group's activities aimed at maintaining a high level of cavities in two other
office buildings Solar and Aquarius.

In addition, the Group implemented actions to reduce the cost of selling produce tangible results in
the form of a reduction in cost of sales of more than 5.8 million PLN.

Planned, implemented and consistently implemented these actions resulted in the Group achieve a
significant increase in profit from the sale of as much as 156%, reaching more than 11 million z.
Factors such an important component of growth is the increase in sales of 1.2 million and a decrease
in cost of sales of 5.8 million.

In 2014. The Group did not record significant revenues from the sale of stocks or no operations
consulting services for third parties.

The chart below shows the structure of revenues from sales in the years 2014 and 2013.
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In 2014. The Group recorded a very significant (up to PLN 125.5 million) as a result of the
improvement in the valuation of investment property. The increase in value of the property in 2014
led to a positive result of the revaluation of investment property in the amount of PLN 114.8 million.
The increase in value mainly concerned plots located in Warsaw's Ursus district and was the result of
the enactment in July 2014. the local development plan in the area of brownfield sites Eagles
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Piastowskich street. As the Group has investment areas where an area of over 50 hectares, the
adoption of the local plan was extremely significant impact on the valuation of the property.
Additionally, the increase in the value of investment property due to growing value of the building Iris,
achieved thanks to the constant raising of the building lease.

Reduction of the Group's total operating costs recorded in 2014 compared with 2013 are presented in
the table below is the result of the adopted and consistently implemented strategy focused on the
optimization of the Group's expenses related to the maintenance, operation and administration of the
estate.

In 2014 Group as a result of the consistent implementation of the deployed and monitored by the
Group's strategy to optimize costs, administrative expenses decreased by the amount of the remaining
PLN 4.1 million and administrative expenses of maintaining the property, the amount of PLN 1.6
million compared to 2013. The reduction of these cost is mainly the effect of a reduction in personnel
costs PLN 0.9 million and other property maintenance costs PLN 0.6 million.

The chart below shows the structure of the Group's operating expenses in the years 2014 and 2013.
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Negative impact on the final amount of the Group's net profit had while the increase in financial costs
in the amount of PLN 3.5 million, mainly due to the increase in foreign exchange losses of PLN 1.3
million (2.6 million foreign exchange losses in 2014 compared with 1.3 million foreign exchange losses
in 2013). Also, an increase in interest expenses associated with an increase in the Group's debt
contributed to the increase in financial expenses in 2014 compared to 2013. The increase in debt was
due to continue building Iris commercialization and financing related expenses with funds obtained
from the bank loan granted by BZ WBK, but also the issue of convertible bonds in September 2014.
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31.12.2014 31.12.2013
(PLN ths.) (PLN ths.)
TOTAL ASSETS 621 056 474 923 30,8%
Non-current assets, including: 585 907 447 304 31,0%
Investment properties 581 386 442 793 31,3%
Bonds 3430 3190 7,5%
Current assets, including: 35 149 27 619 27,3%
Inventory 6 525 7773 -16,1%
Trade and other receivables 9 854 7 865 25,3%
Cash and cash equivalents 18770 11 981 56,7%
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 621 056 474 923 30,8%
Equity, including: 404 493 329 362 22,8%
Share capital 3286 3460 -5,0%
Own shares 0 -12 300 -100,0%
Reserve capital 987 987 0,0%
0 :
Translation reserve -5 301 -3847 37,8%
Retained earnings 433 430 341 062 27,1%
Total liabilities, including: 216 563 145 561 48,8%
Non-current liabilities 129 240 35879 260,2%
Current liabilities 87 323 109 682 -20,4%

At the end of December 2014. Value of the total assets of the Group increased compared to the end
of 2013 by more than 30%. The main growth driver Group's assets was an increase in the value of
investment properties (an increase of 138.6 million PLN). The biggest determinant of growth in the
Group's assets was the adoption of the local development plan for the area located in Warsaw's Ursus
district. Areas used so far as the industrial areas were reclassified as residential areas - service. In
addition, investment properties increased by PLN 16.5 million as a result of capital expenditures that
are largely a consequence of the commercialization of the building Iris.

Furthermore, the Group recorded an increase in the value of assets (27%), mainly as a result of the
issuance of convertible bonds and the consequent increase in the balance of cash.

At the end of December 2014. Group's equity amounted to PLN 404.5 million, which accounted for
65% of the total assets of the Group, while liabilities accounted for 35% of total assets. These
indicators have changed slightly (4 percentage points.) Compared to the end of 2013, and so the ratio
of equity to assets ratio was 69% and the ratio of liabilities in relation to assets stood at 31%.

In 2014 years significantly increased the value of liabilities resulting from the need to finance capital
expenditures related to the adoption of the local development plan and thus setting up a project in
Ursus service residential and office building progressive commercialization of Iris. The increase in
liabilities was mainly due to the issue of convertible bonds and borrowing subsequent tranches of the
loan at the bank BZ WBK to finance finishing equipment associated with office space.

The following table shows the share of each category of liabilities in the balance sheet total.
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31.12.2014 — 31.12.2013

Liabilities to total assets 34,9% 30,6%
Non-current liabilities to total assets 20,8% 7,6%
Borrowings including finance leases 11,5% 4,6%
Convertible bonds 3,9% 0,0%
Embedded derivative 3,0% 0,0%
Deferred income tax liabilities 2,2% 2,8%
Trade and other payables 0,2% 0,1%
Current liabilities to total assets 14,1% 23,1%
Borrowings including finance leases 11,5% 19,8%
Trade and other payables 2,5% 3,2%
Income tax liabilities 0,0% 0,1%

Changed compared to the end of 2013 was also the structure of liabilities. The share of long-term
debt to total assets increased from 7.6% at the end of December 2013. To 20.8% at the end of
December 2014. This change is mainly due to refinance the loan previously granted by HSBC Bank
Poland mBank Mortgage SA in July 2014. . By a loan is a loan mBank 15 years and its total repayment
is planned for the year 2029. Also, the September issue of 3-year bonds convertible into shares
contributed to an increase in long-term debt of the Group.

The share of short-term debt decreased from 23.1% whereas on 31 December 2013. To 14.1% at
December 31, 2014. This was due to refinance the loan previously granted by HSBC Bank Poland
mBank Mortgage SA, whose repayment falls in 2029 and therefore, it was necessary to reclassify the
short-term liabilities in the long term.

12. RISK FACTORS AND THREATS

CPD Group activities are exposed to financial, operational and economic risks. Risk management policy
adopted by the Group aims at minimizing the effects of adverse events. Occurrence of the specified
risks both alone and in combination with other circumstances, might have a significant negative
impact on the Company’s and its Group’s business, its financial position, prospects of development, or
Company’s and Group's results and may have an impact on the evolution of the Company’s share
price quotation.

Risks listed below do not represent a complete or exhaustive list and therefore may not be treated as
the only risks to which the Company is exposed. Additional risks that at present are unknown by the
Company or which are considered by the Company as irrelevant, may also have a significant negative
impact on the activities, financial position, prospects, or results of the Company and its Group.

o RISK RELATING TO THE MACROECONOMIC SITUATION ON THE MARKETS ON WHICH
THE COMPANY AND ITS GROUP OPERATES

Polish general macroeconomic situation, including factors such as GDP growth, inflation and interest
rates, the level of investment in the economy and unemployment have a direct impact on the level of
wealth and purchasing power of the public and the financial situation of companies. As a result of
these factors also affect the demand for products and services offered by the Company and the Group
and may have an impact on their financial situation.

The growth rate of the Polish economy in 2014 was 3.3% and was significantly faster than in 2013,
when it stood at 1.7%. Government forecasts for 2015 predict Polish GDP growth at 3.4%, while it
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can not be ruled out that GDP growth in the coming years will be lower. In the event of a reduction in
GDP growth, the demand for products offered by the Company and the Group may fall, which may
lead to a decline in prices of residential and commercial real estate, and have a negative impact on
the financial condition of the Company and its Group.

° RISK RELATING TO THE PROCESS OF OBTAINING ADMINISTRATIVE DECISIONS, THE
POSSIBILITY OF APPEAL AND THE NON—EXISTENCE OF MASTER ZONING PLANS

The developer’'s business activity conducted by the Company and its Group requires obtaining
numerous administrative decisions enabling the implementation of building projects, such as decisions
on the project location, land use permits (if there is no master plan for a given area), building permits,
occupancy certificates for the newly built structures, environmental decisions. The obligation to obtain
the above administrative decisions entails the risk of inability to complete or delay in completing the
building project implementation if the decisions are not obtained or the relevant procedures are
protracted.

Moreover, the Company cannot exclude the risk that the decisions already issued will be appealed
against by the parties to the administrative procedures or repealed, which would adversely affect the
ability to further conduct or complete the current building projects and, consequently, the business
operations, financial position and the results of the Group.

Furthermore, there is also the risk of inability to implement building projects within the areas where
master plans have not been adopted and where the possibility to obtain a land use permit is
prevented or hindered to a great extent.

° RISK RELATING TO THE COMPETITION

The Company, while focussing on the developer activity in the housing and office sector, faces strong
competition on the part of domestic and foreign developers. The competition may create obstadles for
the Company in acquiring appropriate lands at attractive prices for new projects. The increasing
competition might also lead to increased supply of housing and commercial real estates and,
therefore, to the stagnation of, or drop in, prices of flats and lease rents. Such a situation may
adversely translate into the results generated by the CPD Capital Group.

° RISK RELATING TO THE IMPLEMENTATION OF DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS

The efficient implementation of development projects depends on a number of factors, some of which
are not directly controlled by the Company. At the project preparation stage the Company might, for
instance, not obtain administrative permits required to commence the construction works (e.g.
passing and adoption of the master plan for the post-industrial area adjacent to Ortéw Piastowskich
street in Ursus) or may face obstacles in obtaining appropriate enterprises for their implementation.
Also, a number of factors exist that might cause the general contractor or subcontractors to fail to
comply with the construction completion deadlines. The most important factors are, among others,
weather conditions, unforeseeable technical difficulties, shortage of building materials or equipment,
failure to obtain permits enabling the buildings to be delivered for use, as well as amendments to the
laws regulating the use of land. Should any of the above described risks occur, the development
project completion might be delayed, the costs might increase, the funds invested in land rendered
illiquid, and also, in extreme cases, the project completion totally prevented. The above described
situations which, should they arise, might also adversely affect the Company’s goodwill, which fact
would impair its ability to implement further projects.
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° RISK RELATING TO LOCATION OF REAL ESTATES

The assessment of the location of land for development projects is one of the most material criteria of
determining the expected income from the project. Inaccurate assessment of the location for its
intended use might hinder or prevent the sales of flats contained in such property at the price
assumed by the Company, or the rent of office spaces at expected rates. In such a situation the risk
exists that the CPD Group will fail to generate the expected sales revenue; or, if construction works
are contracted earlier, the Company will generate margins at a level lower than predicted. Moreover, if
the office space is not rented and the sale of flats is delayed — the Company will be reliant on external
financing to a greater extent.

° RISK RELATING TO INABILITY TO BUY AN ATTRACTIVE LAND FROM THE COMPANY’'S
PERSPECTIVE

The Company's and its Group’s capacity to purchase land of hidden potential at moderate prices
determines the business activity and profitability of the Group to a great extent. Due to increasing
competition and the limited number of pieces of land showing appropriate investment parameters, the
Company cannot exclude that in the nearest future it will not be able to acquire the desired number of
projects at attractive prices. The purchase of land at high prices or in less attractive locations may
trigger a drop in the profitability of the Company’s development projects. The above factors may
adversely affect the Company’s and its Group’s business operations and financial results.

° RISK RELATING TO LACK OF LIQUIDITY OF REAL ESTATE PROJECTS

Compared to other types of investments, development projects might be characterised by a low level
of liquidity. This concerns in particular the projects implemented in the office building sector. The
extended period for selling real estate assets might lead to funds being frozen in the project, which —
in turn — may lead to a greater need for debt financing in the CPD Group and other projects being
suspended or renounced. The low level of liquidity of real estate assets may also result in the
necessity to decrease the selling price. The above described factors may to a significant extent
adversely affect the operations, financial position and results of the Group.

° RISK RELATING TO GEOGRAPHICAL CONCENTRATION OF THE COMPANY’'S AND
GROUP'S PROJECTS

The concentration of the majority of property portfolio in Warsaw, including the residential project in
the Ursus District, exposes the Company to a higher risk of changes in the local market and business
environment than that faced by other development companies with a greater geographical
diversification of their property portfolio. The Group also owns a real estate in Hungary. The
Hungarian market is less politically and economically stable than the Polish market, so it cannot be
excluded that the negative perception of the Hungarian economy by investors might affect the
valuation of the real estate owned by the Group. However, given the size of the project, its negative
influence, if any, on the Group's result is very limited.

° RISK RELATING TO INCREASE OF CONSTRUCTION COSTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT
PROJECTS

During the implementation of the development project the project costs might increase. This increase
may result from: changes introduced to the building permit design, increased material costs, increased
labour costs, sub-contractor costs, land/facility use fees, taxes and other administrative fees.
Consequently, the Company might fail to achieve the expected return on investment, which in turn
might result in financial results worse than planned. The Company endeavours to mitigate the above
risk through striving to enter into contracts with general contractors and subcontractors providing for
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lump sum fees. The increased labour and material costs might also adversely impact the profitability
of future development projects.

° RISK RELATING TO UNFAVOURABLE SOIL CONDITIONS

This risk embraces unforeseen situations where, despite a detailed technical analysis of the land to be
acquired, it might prove during the project implementation phase that there is some groundwater, the
soil is unstable or archaeological findings or duds are discovered, or any other unpredictable situation
arises. Such situations may cause a material increase in the project costs, delay or even totally
prevent its implementation, which, in turn, can affect the financial results of the CPD Group.

° RISK RELATING TO UNFAVOURABLE WEATHER CONDITIONS

Progress in construction works depends, to a large extent, on the weather conditions in which the
construction is conducted. The Company strives to select such building companies, which thanks to
modern building technologies are able to carry out work also during unfavourable weather conditions.
Nonetheless, this measure does not eliminate the risk of delayed construction works due to extreme
weather phenomena, such as, for instance, long and frosty winter with temperatures falling below -
20°C or wind storms. Material damage at construction sites due to weather conditions also cannot be
excluded. Any delays connected with bad weather conditions may result in time schedules of the
projects being delayed and, consequently, in cost increases.

o RISK RELATING TO CHANGES IN SELLING PRICE OF FLATS AND LEASE RENT RATES

The Company’s profitability depends largely on the level of the prices of flats and on lease rent rates
for office space in the cities where the Company operates or intends to operate as a developer, as
well as on discount rates at which investors are willing to purchase commercial real estate. The
Company is unable to guarantee that, should the prices of flats or lease rates drop, it will be able to
sell apartments or offices at expected prices. If, in turn, the capitalization rates applied for commercial
real estate valuation increase, the Company may be unable to sell the commercial real estate at the
expected price, which may have a negative effect on the Group’s business operations, financial
position or its financial results.

] RISK RELATING TO LEGAL DEFECTS IN THE REAL ESTATE AND THE RISK OF
EXPROPRIATION

The Company and other members of its Group conduct relevant analyses and reviews of the legal
status of real estate prior to purchase, however this does not completely rule out the risk of legal
defects, which may emerge during the project implementation process, e.g. in the form of
reprivatisation claims. There is also the risk of expropriation of real estate held by the Company to the
benefit of the State Treasury or local government units, for public purposes. In such a situation (legal
defects, reprivatisation claims, expropriation procedure) the results and business operations of the
Company and its Group may be materially affected. In extreme situations, such risk may lead even to
the loss of the real estate.

o RISK RELATING TO ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company and other members of its Group are perpetual usufructuaries of post-industrial real
estates which have been checked for hazardous substances and pollution/contamination, which,
however, does not totally preclude the risk of liability under environmental regulations. In accordance
with Polish law, the entities that use the land with hazardous substances or other
pollution/contamination may be obliged to remediate the land or to pay penalties for
contamination/pollution or to be otherwise held liable. It cannot be excluded that in the future the
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Company or its Group members will not be charged with the costs of remediation or monetary
penalties in connection with the pollution/contamination of the environment in respect of the real
estate used, which fact might adversely affect the business operations, financial position or
development perspectives of the Company and its Group.

° RiIskK RELATING TO CONTRACTS CONCLUDED WITH CONTRACTORS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS OF CONSTRUCTION WORKS

The Group uses services of specialized construction contractors, who often employ subcontractors, in
order to implement its development projects. The Company cannot rule out the risk of non-
performance or improper performance of the obligations of such contractors and subcontractors,
which might adversely affect the performance of construction projects and, consequently, the
business operations, financial position and results of the Group.

Moreover, taking into account the joint and several liability of the project owner and the contractor for
payment of remuneration to subcontractors, the Company may not rule out the risk of the contractor’s
incapacity to pay such remuneration and, therefore, the occurrence of liability on the part of the
Company or its subsidiary, acting as the project owner. The above risk will be limited by allocating
individual projects to individual companies. Additionally, the payment for services provided by the
general contractor is dependent on its timely payments to subcontractors. The Company monitors
payments made by the general contractors to their subcontractors on an ongoing basis.

° RISK RELATING TO LEASE AGREEMENTS

7

The value of real estate to be leased depends on the time left to the elapse of the lease agreements
term and on the financial standing of the lessees. If the Company and its Group’s members are not
able to prolong, on favourable conditions, the agreements which are due to expire in the near future,
or gain and maintain appropriate lessees of good financial standing and willing to enter into long-term
lease agreements, this might adversely affect the market value of the real estate portfolio. The
financial position of a lessee may deteriorate in the short or long term, which in turn might lead the
lessee to bankruptcy or inability to pay its liabilities resulting from the lease agreement. If any of the
above factors occurs, it might have a significant negative effect on the Company’s financial results.

° RISK RELATING TO FAILURE TO ATTAIN ASSUMED STRATEGIC GOALS

The Company may not guarantee that its assumed strategic goals will be attained, specifically the
expected significant extension of its business operations scale. The implementation of strategy is
dependent on many factors determining the real estate market situation, which fall outside the
Company’s control. The Company endeavours to build its strategy on the basis of the current market
situation. The Company may not ensure, however, that the strategy has been grounded on a
complete and accurate analysis of current and future trends of the market. It cannot be excluded that
the activities undertaken by the Company will prove insufficient or mistaken from the point of view of
implementation of the assumed strategic goals. An erroneous assessment of market tendencies and
any erroneous decisions by the Company might have a significant adverse effect on its financial
results.

° RISK RELATING TO THE MANAGERIAL STAFF

The business activity of the CPD Group and its further development are largely dependent on the
knowledge, experience and qualifications of its managerial staff and key employees. It is the
competence of the managerial staff that determines success of all milestones of the development
project implementation. If key employees leave the Company, there might be a risk relating to
inability to employ equally experienced and qualified experts who would be able to continue the
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Company’s strategy implementation, which may materially and adversely affect the Company’s
financial results.

o RISK RELATING TO FINANCING DEVELOPMENT WITH BANK LOANS AND OTHER DEBT
INSTRUMENTS

Usually development projects are implemented with the use of significant debt financing. Thus, the
Company and its Group are exposed to the risk of increase in interest rates and more significant
service costs of the loan on the one hand. On the other hand, if the demand for the Company’s
products decreases, in an extreme case the company implementing the investment may be unable to
serve the debt. Thus, if the terms of loan agreements providing funds for construction projects are
breached, there is risk that the lenders will take over those assets of the CPD Group members which
secure the repayment of the loans. The Company can neither exclude the risk of impaired access to
debt financing or a material rise in the costs of debt due to a change in a bank’s lending policy. This
may hinder the Company’s opportunities to begin new projects and, therefore, materially affect its
financial results to be generated in the future.

° FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

CPD Group's debt denominated in foreign currencies amounted to 31 December 2014. Equivalent of
PLN 137.8 million. Also in the future, the Company and the Group does not rule out further borrowing
loans denominated in foreign currencies, primarily the euro. In view of the above, the Company and
the Group is exposed to the risk of depreciation of the zloty against the currencies in which they are
incurred loans, which could adversely affect the Company's financial position. This risk is partly
compensated by the fact that the settlement proceeds from the rental and sale of office projects
carried out in foreign currencies.

° RISK RELATING TO ACCESS OF PROSPECTIVE CLIENTS OF CELTIC GROUP TO LOAN
FINANCING

The regulations on mortgage loans issued by the Financial Supervision Authority in 2010 - 2012 (so-
called T-recommendation issued in August 2010 and the amended S-recommendation in force since
January 2012) may substantially limit the accessibility of loans designated to finance the purchase of a
property. As a result they may cause a drop in demand for flats and houses and consequently reduce
the interest in the Group’s development projects.

13. COURT, ADMINISTRATIVE AND ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS WITH
VALUE OF OVER 10% OF THE EQUITY

CPD S.A. and any of its subsidiaries are not party to proceedings before a court, an authority
competent for arbitration or a public administration body, with total value exceeding 10% of CPD S.A.

equity.
14. ORGANIZATIONAL OR CAPITAL RELATIONSHIPS

CPD S.A. organizational and capital relationships as well as the structure of the Group are presented in
the Section V7.2 GROUP STRUCTURE.

15. SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS

In FY2014, the Company and other Capital Group companies entered into two new agreements being
material agreements as defined in the Regulation of the Minister of Finance of 19 February 2009 on
current and periodical information published by the issuers of securities.
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At the date of report publication, the Company and its subsidiaries have been parties to the following
agreements considered material according to the above-mentioned Regulation:

e Credit agreement between Belise Investments sp. z 0.0. and Bank Zachodni WBK S.A.. The
agreement is material because of its value at 31-12-2014 amounting to PLN 70.608 (at the
average EUR exchange rate published by the National Bank of Poland on 31 December 2014,
amounting to 4.2623 PLN/EUR) which exceeds the value 10% of CPD S.A.'s equity at 31
December 2014;

e Credit agreement between Lakia Investments sp. z 0.0. and mBank. The agreement is
material because of its value at 31-12-2014 amounting to PLN 24,273,978.5 (at the average
EUR exchange rate published by the National Bank of Poland on 31 December 2014,
amounting to 4.2623 PLN/EUR) which exceeds the value 10% of CPD S.A.'s equity at 31
December 2014;

e Credit agreement between Robin Investments sp. z o0.0. and mBank. The agreement is
material because of its value at 31-12-2014 amounting to PLN 18,796,743 (at the average
EUR exchange rate published by the National Bank of Poland on 31 December 2014,
amounting to 4.2623 PLN/EUR) which exceeds the value 10% of CPD S.A.'s equity at 31
December 2014;

The above agreements are described in item 17: CREDIT AND LOAN AGREEMENTS, SURETIES AND
GUARANTEES hereof.

16. MATERAL TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In the reporting period, the Company did not enter into transactions with related parties other than
market conditions. Transactions with related parties are described in the explanatory note 24 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

17. LOAN AND BORROWING AGREEMENTS, SURETIES AND
GUARANTEES

In FY2014, the liabilities under the following two most important credit agreements of the Group were
being performed in a timely manner:

CREDIT AGREEMENT WITH BANK ZACHODNI WBK S.A.

This agreement was signed on 12 August 2011 between Bank Zachodni WBK S.a. and our subsidiary
Belise Investments Sp. z 0.0. as the borrower, with guarantors being: CPD S.A., Lakia Enterprises Ltd.
with registered office in Nicosia (Cyprus), and East Europe Property Financing A.B. with registered
office in Stockholm (Sweden), and concerned funding of construction and finishing of Iris office
building located at Cybernetyki 9 in Warsaw, commissioned in October 2012. Funding under this credit
agreement included:

1) Investment Credit up to EUR 20,141,000 granted for financing or re-financing of some project
costs or costs of finishing the leasable area;

2) open-end VAT credit up to PLN 2,100,000, granted for financing or partial re-financing of VAT
due in relation to project delivery.

In the case of VAT Credit, final repayment shall be made not later than on the date of conversion of
the building credit into an investment credit. If the building credit is converted to an investment credit,
final repayment shall not be made later than on 12 August 2019.
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Under the current agreement, the conversion of the construction loan on an investment loan was to
be repaid on 31 12 2014. Among other things, the terms of a conversion loan and thus change the
date of final repayment to August 2019., Was to achieve in the credit agreement debt service
coverage ratio and an appropriate level of space rental. At the date of this report has been achieved
the expected debt coverage ratio was not achieved but the degree of rental properties. Due to the
fact that the most important indicator of ability to repay the loan is debt service ratio, with the
consent of the bank, the loan can be converted at the current level of 88.5% of rental space.
Preparations are underway to collect all the documents required to convert the loan and thus change
the date of the final repayment of the loan in August 2019. At the date of this report has not yet
signed the necessary agreement, therefore, the bank shall have the theoretical right to terminate the
contract and demand repayment of the entire debt. In the opinion of the Management Board of the
Group, based on credit history CPD Group, existing cooperation in BZ WBK bank as well as real
opportunities for the Group to refinance the acquisition of another bank at current rates achieved by
Belise Investments Sp z 0o (88.5% of rental level), the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its
credit obligations to the bank BZ WBK is very limited.

During the reporting period did not change guarantees granted in connection with the loan
agreement.

e CREDIT AGREEMENT WITH MBANK

On 18 June 2014, a credit agreement was signed between Robin Investments sp. z 0.0., the Issuer's
subsidiary, and mBank Hipoteczny S.A. under which Robin Investments Sp. z 0.0. was granted a credit
of EUR 4,450,000 for refinancing of Aquarius office building, among others by a complete and
irrevocable repayment of this company's debt under credit agreement with HSBC Bank Polska S.A.

As a collateral for repayment of a mortgage loan, the following mortgages and pledges have been

established:

1) contractual joint mortgage up to EUR 8,900,000;

2) registered pledge on all shares in the Borrower's share capital, with a total nominal value of PLN
50,000.00 along with the statement of LAKIA ENTERPRISES LIMITED with registered office in
Nicosia ("Shareholder") of submission to enforcement from the pledged shares, drawn up in line
with Article 97 of the Banking Law, up to the amount of EUR 4,450,000.

3) registered pledges (and financial pledges as a transitional collateral until the registered pledges are
entered into the register of pledges) on the Borrower's receivables from Bank Accounts;

Other credit collaterals typical for such agreements include: bank transfer to secure receivables under

the Property and Building insurance agreement, bank transfer or receivables under Lease Agreements,

blockade and power-of-attorney to use the Borrower's bank accounts, Debt Service Reserve
equivalent to 3 capital with interest instalments.

The credit was disbursed and used by the Borrower in the amount of EUR 4,450,000 to refinance the

existing credit granted to the Shareholder by HSBC.

Final repayment of the Mortgage Loan will take place not later than on 20 June 2029. The due

amounts shall be repaid in EUR according to the agreed repayment schedule. For the credit granted,

the Subsidiary will pay interest at the 6M EURIBOR floating interest rate increased by the Bank's profit
margin.

e CREDIT AGREEMENT WITH MBANK
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On 18 June 2014, a credit agreement was signed between our subsidiary Lakia Investments sp. z o.0.
and mBank Hipoteczny S.A. under which Lakia Investments Sp. z o.0. is to be granted a credit of EUR
5,850,000 for refinancing of Solar office building, among others by a complete and irrevocable
repayment of this company's debt under credit agreement with HSBC Bank Polska S.A.

As a collateral for repayment of a mortgage loan, the following mortgages and pledges have been
established:

1) contractual joint mortgage up to EUR 11,700,000 established on:

2) registered pledge on all shares in the Borrower's share capital, with a total nominal value of PLN
50,000.00 along with the statement of LAKIA ENTERPRISES LIMITED with registered office in
Nicosia ("Shareholder") of submission to enforcement from the pledged shares, drawn up in line
with Article 97 of the Banking Law, up to the amount of EUR 5,850,000.

3) registered pledges (and financial pledges as a transitional collateral until the registered pledges
are entered into the register of pledges) on the Borrower's receivables from Bank Accounts;

Other credit collaterals typical for such agreements include: bank transfer to secure receivables under
the Property and Building insurance agreement, bank transfer or receivables under Lease Agreements,
blockade and power-of-attorney to use the Borrower's bank accounts, Debt Service Reserve
equivalent to 3 capital with interest instalments.

The credit was disbursed and used by the Borrower in the amount of EUR 5,850,000 to refinance the
existing credit granted to the Shareholder by HSBC.

Final repayment of the Mortgage Loan will take place not later than on 20 June 2029. The due
amounts shall be repaid in EUR according to the agreed repayment schedule. For the credit granted,
the Subsidiary will pay interest at the 6M EURIBOR floating interest rate increased by the Bank's profit
margin.

® INVESTMENT AGREEMENT
The agreement was September 10, 2014, by and between:

CPD SA in Warsaw, Challenge Eighteen limited liability company in Warsaw, 1/95 Gaston Investments
limited liability limited partnership with its registered office in Warsaw, Lakia Enterprise Ltd in Nicosia

(Cyprus),
and
Unibep SA in Bielsko Podlaski, Unidevelopment SA in Warsaw.

The Agreement provides for a joint project be completed on the part of the property belonging to the
Capital Group CPD ie. The company 1/95 Gaston Investments Sp. Z oo limited partnership in Warsaw.
The property consists of the above plot no 95, no rev. Reg. No. 2-09-09, with an area of 3.6811 ha
and is located at ul. Traktorzystéw in Warsaw (Warsaw district - Ursus).

® PURCHASE AGREEMENT
30 January 2015. CPD belonging to the group of companies:

(1) Buffy Holdings No. 1 Limited, based in Nicosia, Cyprus,
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(2) Challenge Eighteen limited liability company with its registered office in Warsaw

signed with the company

I.M.E.S. - INDUSTRIA MECCANICA E stampaggio S.P.A. based in Sumirago, Italy

a sales agreement for Buffy Holdings No. 1 Limited, 100% of the shares of IMES POLAND Sp. Z oo.

The Company has acquired the right of perpetual usufruct, consisting of plot No. 98, No. rpm. Reg.
No. 2-09-09, with an area of 69 457 m2 and located near the street Gierdziejewskiego in Warsaw
(Warsaw district - Ursus). In accordance with the provisions of the Local Development Plan, the
property allows you to build about 80 000 m2 of residential and commercial. Purchase of the above
assets play an important part in the strategy of the Group CPS SA because it is a strategic
complement to the portfolio of building land with great potential residential- service in the district of
Ursus. With this transaction, the Company controlled area of over 57 hectares, of which 80% are
residential areas - service. Through this transaction, the Company has become a major investor in one
of the most attractive investment areas in Warsaw.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Subsidiary Buyer guarantees payment:

- Full price adjusted in accordance with the conditions set out in the Agreement;
- Contractual penalties resulting from the events specified in the Agreement;
- Any payments under the guarantees and false representation of the Buyer under the Contract.

18. ISSUES OF SECURITIES, ACQUISITION OF OWN SHARES

o ISSUE OF SERIES F SHARES

Series F shares on 19 February 2014 were floated on the parallel market of Warsaw Stock Exchange
under resolution no. 178/2014 of the Management Board of Warsaw Stock Exchange of 17 February
2014.

° REDEMPTION OF OWN SERIES B SHARES

On 1 December 2014, District Court for the capital city of Warsaw in Warsaw registered decrease of
the Company's share capital by PLN 173,239.40 (say: one hundred seventy three thousand two
hundred thirty nine zlotys 40/100) as a result of redemption of 1,732,394 (say: one million seven
hundred thirty two thousand three hundred ninety four) of the Company's own series B shares with a
nominal per-share value of PLN 0.10 (say: 10/100 zlotys), carrying 1,732,394 votes at the General
Meeting of the Company's Shareholders. The shares were redeemed under Resolution no. 22 of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of 29 May 2014 (Roll of Deeds A no. 6337/2014).

o ISsSUE OF SERIES A BONDS

On 26 September 2014, the Company issued tranche 1 of convertible bonds. The issued bonds are
series A registered bonds with a nominal value of EUR 50,000.00 each, convertible to series G
ordinary bearer shares in the Company with a nominal per-share value of PLN 0.10. Total nominal
value of the issue under Resolution 3 of the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of 5
August 2014 does not exceed EUR 8,000,000.00. As a part of tranche 1, the Company issue 110
series A bonds with a nominal value of EUR 50,000 (say: fifty thousand euros) each and total nominal
value of EUR 5,500,000. Bonds will be redeemed by the Company 3 years of the Issue Date, that is on
27 September 2017.
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Apart from the above-mentioned issues, no other securities were issued by the Company in 2014.
Until the report publication date, the Company has issued series B bonds.
e ISSUE OF SERIES B BONDS

On 13 January 2015, the Company issued a total of 30,000 series B secured bonds. The bonds were
issued in the manner defined in Article 9.3 of the Bonds Act, i.e. as a private offering.

The bonds were issued on the following terms:

e The issuer did not determine the purpose of issue, as defined in the Bonds Act, or the project
which is to be funded by issue of the Bonds.

e The issued Bonds are series B bearer bonds with a nominal value of PLN 1,000 each, secured
and dematerialised.

e Total nominal value of all Bonds issued does not exceed PLN 30,000,000.

e Nominal value of each Bond is PLN 1,000. The issue price of one Bond is equivalent to its
nominal value, that is PLN 1,000.

e The Bonds will be redeemed by the Company 4 years of the Bonds issue date, i.e. on 13
January 2019 (hereinafter "Redemption Date") except for cases of earlier redemption of
Bonds should the Issuer infringe the terms on which the Bonds had been issued or upon the
Issuer's request.

e The bonds bear a fixed interest of 9.1% per year.

e If the Issuer fails to redeem Bonds earlier in the case of infringements, at the Bond Holder's
or the Issuer's request, the Bonds shall be redeemed on the Redemption Date by payment of
an amount equivalent to nominal value of the Bonds increased by the unpaid and due interest
on the Bonds.

19. DESCRIPTION OF DIFFERENCES IN FORECAST FINANCIAL RESULTS

CPD Group and its dominant entity did not publish financial result forecasts for the year 2014.

20. FINANCIAL RESOURCES MANAGEMENT ASSESSMENT

CPD Group finances its operations primarily with equity. In the financial year 2014 the Group's
financial resources are used in accordance with the plans, specifications and current needs. Group
fulfilled its regularly with its obligations to customers, banks and the mandatory duty to the State.
Liabilities representing 34.9% of the total assets of the Group do not pose a threat to the financial
condition of the Group.

Supplementary source of financing for the Group's loans and bonds. At the end of 2014, the total
value of liabilities from loans and borrowings amounted to PLN 143 million compared to PLN 116.1
million at the end of 2013. As part of the liabilities from loans and borrowings CPD Group recognizes
liabilities from finance leases, which is the obligation of the Group with perpetual usufruct of land. At
the end of 2014. These commitments amounted to PLN 29.3 million, which represented 20.5% of
total liabilities from loans and borrowings.

In September 2014, the Group issued convertible bonds. At the end of 2014. Value of these liabilities
amounted to PLN 24.1 million, and also taking into account the value of the embedded derivative (PLN
18.8 million) total liabilities on the balance sheet of the Group amounted to PLN 42.9 million.
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21. CHANGES IN MANAGEMENT POLICIES

In 2014, continuing the Group's strategy of focusing on the Polish market, and in particular on the
project in Ursus, further simplifying the structure underwent Group. The process of decommissioning
of the operating company in Hungary, continued investment company liquidation procedure Celtic
Asset Management Sp. z 0o, as well as the decision was made to liquidation or sale of three other
companies not engaged in investment activities or operations (Mandy Investments Sp. z oo, 14/119
Gaston Investments Sp. Partnership and Gaetan Investments Sp. z 0o, East Europe Property Finance
AB) in connection with the sale of the property belonging to them or discontinuation of their
operations. In 2014 the company was sold to East Europe Property Finance AB, while in February
2015, was completed the sale of Gaetan Investments Sp. z oo. The reduction of the number of
subsidiaries of 44 at the end of 2011 to 37 at the date of this report, contributed to simplify the
management of the Group. In addition to changes in the structure of the Group in 2014 (described in
detail in Section VI.2 GROUP STRUCTURE of this report) and further simplification of organizational
procedures, there were no major changes in the Group's management.

22. REMUNERATION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD AND THE
MANAGEMENT BOARD
e SUPERVISORY BOARD REMUNERATION

In 2014, the following remuneration amounts for holding an office in the Company’s Supervisory
Board were disbursed to the members of the Supervisory Board of CPD S.A.:

Name Function Currency PLN Period Comments
Marzena Bielecka President PLN 60 000 01.2014 - 12.2014
Wiestaw Oles Vice President PLN 44 640 01.2014 - 12.2014
Andrew Pegge Secretary PLN 44 640 01.2014 - 12.2014
Mirostaw Gronicki Member PLN 44 640 01.2014 - 12.2014
Wiestaw Roztucki Member PLN 44 640 01.2014 - 12.2014
TOTAL PLN 238 560

° MANAGEMENT BOARD REMUNERATION

In 2014 CPD S.A. Management Board members received cash remuneration for the function on the
appointment basis in the Management Board of the Company as well as the remuneration for services
provided to companies being part of the CPD Group.

Wynagrodzenie
z tytuly
petnienia

Wynagrodzenie

z tytulty

petnienia 1(-23‘:;- Comments
innych funkgji
w Grupie (PLN)

GEpeHe funkcji w

Zarzadzie
Spotki (PLN)

Elzbieta Wiczkowska President 60 000 1584 125 1647125  01.2014 - 12.2014
Iwona Makarewicz Member 60 000 486 461 546 461 01.2014 - 12.2014
Colin Kingsnorth Member 60 000 - 60 000 01.2014 - 12.2014
Piotr Turchoriski Member 60 000 1935 000 1995000  01.2014 - 12.2014 Resignation for
31.12.2014
Total 240 000 4005586 4248586
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23. AGREEMENTS WITH MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD -
COMPENSATIONS

CPD S.A. Management Board members are not employed under employment agreements in the
Company. The Company did not conclude such agreements with members of the Management Board
that provide for compensation in the event of their resignation or dismissal from their function without
valid reason or if the dismissal results from the merger of the Company following an acquisition.

24. SHARES IN POSSESSION OF MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT
BOARD AND SUPERVISORY BOARD

The following table presents the number of shares of the Company owned by the members of the
Management Board holding their function at the day of the report publication, according to the
information held by the Company:

Nominal value of  As % of total As % of total no. of

Function O shares (PLN) no. of shares votes

Elzbieta Wiczkowska President 42 498 4250 0,13% 0,13%
Iwona Makarewicz Member 4734 473 0,01% 0,01%
TOTAL 47 232 4723 0,14% 0,14%

The Company has no information that other members of the Management Board or the Supervisory
Board are in possession of the Company'’s shares.

25. AGREEMENTS CHANGING OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

At the date of this report, the Company has not received other complaints concerning the changes in
the proportion of shares held by shareholders holding not yet at least 5.0% of the shares of the
Company.

26. CONTROL SYSTEM FOR EMPLOYEE SHARES SCHEMES

During the reporting period the Company did not implement employee shares schemes.

27. AGREEMENT WITH AN ENTITY AUTHORISED FOR AUDITING
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of CPD SA and the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
years 2013 and 2014 were reviewed and audited by an auditing firm PricewaterhouseCoopers. with
0.0 with its registered office in Warsaw.

The total remuneration of the auditor for the audit, inspection Financial Statements for the year 2014,
and other services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers with net amounted to PLN 250,000, of which:
e PLN 85,000 was the reward for a review of the financial statements of CPD SA and the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the period from 1 January 2014. June 30,

2014. (agreement dated 4 August 2014.)

e PLN 111,000 was the fee for the audit of the financial statements of CPD SA and the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the period from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2014. (agreement dated 3 February 2015.)

e PLN 18,000 was the fee for the audit of the financial statements of the company Belise
Investments Sp. with 0.0 (Agreement dated 3 February 2015.)
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e PLN 36,000 was the fee for the audit of financial statements of subsidiaries Celtic Investments
Ltd, Buffy Holdings No 1 Ltd, Lakia for Enterprises Ltd period from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2014. (Based on the agreements between these companies and PwC in some
countries).

The total remuneration of the auditor for the year 2013 amounted to PLN 325,000 net, of which:

e PLN 102,000 was the reward for a review of the financial statements of CPD SA and the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the period from 1 January 2013. June 30,
2013. (agreement of 25 July 2013.)

e PLN 134,000 was the fee for the audit of the financial statements of CPD SA and the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the period from 1 January 2013 to 31
December 2013. (agreement dated 9 January 2014.)

e PLN 50,000 constituted remuneration for advisory services related to the consolidation of the
Group, including: presentation of examples of accounting records using consolidation
accounting principles recognized in the IFRS, provide examples of financial statement
presentation and disclosure requirements in accordance with IFRS; advice on the preparation
of the information needed for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

e PLN 19,000 was the fee for the audit of the financial statements of the company Belise
Investments Sp. with 0.0 (Agreement dated 9 January 2014.)

e PLN 20,000 was the fee for the audit of financial statements of subsidiaries Celtic Investments
Ltd, Buffy Holdings No 1 Ltd, Lakia Enterprises Ltd and East Europe Property Finance AB for
the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013. (Based on agreements between the
two companies and PwC in some countries).

28. STRUCTURE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES — BY LIQUIDITY

CPD Group assets structure on 31 December 2014 and changes compared with the status at the end
of 2013:

Change

% i % i
S o esets  2014/2013
(PLN ths.) (PLN ths.) 2014 2013 (%)
Investment properties 581 386 442 793 93,6% 93,2% 31,3%
Property, plant and equipment 914 853 0,1% 0,2% 7,2%
;Zt:g\?liiﬁle assets, excluding 9 108 0,01% 0,02% -14.8%
Deferred income tax assets 85 360 0,01% 0,08% -76,4%
Bonds 3430 3190 0,6% 0,7% 7,5%
Non-current assets 585 907 447 304 94,3% 94,2% 31,0%
Inventories 6 525 7773 1,1% 1,6% -16,1%
Trade and other receivables 9 854 7 865 1,6% 1,7% 25,3%
Cash and cash equivalents 18 770 11981 3,0% 2,5% 56,7%
Current assets 35149 27 619 5,7% 5,8% 27,3%
TOTAL ASSETS 621 056 474 923 100% 100% 30,8%
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CPD Group liabilities structure on 31 December 2014 and changes compared with the status at the
end of 2013:

Change
% in total % in total

assets assets AR
(PLN ths.) (PLN ths.) 2014 2013 (%)
Share capital 3286 3 460 0,5% 0,7% -5,0%
Own shares 0 -12 300 0,0% -2,6% -100,0%
Other reserves 987 987 0,2% 0,2% 0,0%

Fair value of capital element at

inception date -27 909 0 -4,5% 0,0% -
Translation reserve -5301 -3 847 -0,9% -0,8% 37,8%
Retained earnings 433 430 341 062 69,8% 71,8% 27,1%
Equity 404 493 329 362 65,1% 69,4% 22,8%
Trade and other payables 1494 384 0,2% 0,1% 289,1%
Fef;:g:“"gs' including finance 71 484 22 027 11,5% 4,6% 224,5%
Convertible bonds 24 065 0 3,9% 0,0% -
Embedded derivative 18 815 0 3,0% 0,0% -
Defferred income tax liabilities 13 382 13 468 2,2% 2,8% -0,6%
Non-current liabilities 129 240 35 879 20,8% 7,6% 260,2%
Trade and other payables 15 830 15 370 2,5% 3,2% 3,0%
Current income tax liabilities 0 267 0,0% 0,1% -100,0%
Fe‘;:g;’“"gs' including finance 71493 94 045 11,5% 19,8% -24,0%
Current liabilities 87 323 109 682 14,1% 23,1% -20,4%
Total liabilities 216 563 145 561 34,9% 30,6% 48 8%

TOTAL EQUITY AND o o o
LIABILITIES 621 056 474 923 100,0% 100,0% 30,8%

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

e FREE-OF-CHARGE TRANSFER OF LAND

In 2011, CPD Group declared that they would give the authorities of Warsaw, free of charge, approx.
14,39 ha of land, of which 4.9 ha would be allocated for social functions and 9,49 ha for road
functions. Value of this land, according to the Forecast of financial consequence of adoption of the
local zoning plan for post-industrial areas around Orfow Piastowskich street, ordered by the Capital
City of Warsaw, is estimated at approx. PLN 57 min.

The Management Board intended this declaration to facilitate the city authorities in regenration of
post-industrial areas in Warsaw and support the City's budget as well.

On 3 July 2014, CPD S.A.'s subsidiaries, the State Treasury, and the Capital City of Warsaw entered
into agreements in the form of notarial deeds, transferring the rights of perpetual usufruct of these
land plots to the Capital City of Warsaw and the State Treasury. The above land plots in the draft
Local Zoning Plan for Post-Industrial Areas around Ortéw Piastowskich Street — Part I are allocated for
public areas. The title to the land plots can be divided provided that the land plots for road
investments are separated by an administrative decision, and for land plots for educational purposes —
provided that the city obtains funding for individual educational investment projects.

e INVESTMENT AGREEMENT

On 10 September 2014, an investment agreement for a joint venture to build a complex of apartment
blocks with service shops and appurtenant infrastructure in Warsaw city district of Ursus was signed
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between the Issuer, subsidiaries on one side and Unibep S.A. and Unidevelopment S.A. on the other
side.

The subject matter of the Agreement was joint delivery of a construction project on a part of real
property owned by a CPD Capital Group company, that is 1/95 Gaston Investments sp. z 0.0. sp.k. in
Warsaw. The above-mentioned property comprises plot no. 95, cadastral district no. 2-09-09, with an
area of 3.6811ha, and is situated at Traktorzystow in Warsaw (Warsaw city district of Ursus).

The agreement was to enter into force provided that the parties thereto agree to (approve) all
schedules to the Agreement by 13 October 2014. Moreover the agreement concerning
Unidevelopment S.A. joining the Limited Partnership entered into force on condition that the President
of the Office for Protection of Competition and Consumer (UOKiK) grants approval for merger of
companies.

On 24 February 2015, the companies obtained permission from the UOKIK President for the merger
consisting in establishment of a joint enterprise under the name of Smart City sp. z 0.0. w organizacji
spotka komandytowa with registered office in Warsaw.

On 9 March 2015, the Memorandum of Association of Smart City w organizacji sp. z 0.0. sp.k. was
annexed, and under this annex Unidevelopment S.A. joined the Limited Partnership as a Limited
Partner, made the first portion of their contribution, and committed to make the remaining portion of
financial contribution until the date stipulated in the investment agreement of 10 September 2014.

52



CPD S.A.
ANNUAL REPORT OF THE GROUP FOR 2014

MANAGEMENT BOARD STATEMENT
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VI. MANAGEMENT BOARD STATEMENT

The Management Board of CPD S.A. ("Company") confirms that according to its best knowledge, the
consolidated financial statements of the CPD Group ("the Group") for the financial year ending on 31
December 2014 and all comparative figures were prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting principles and give a true, fair and clear financial and assets situation of the Group and its
financial results, and that the Group’s annual activity report includes the true picture of Group’s
development, achievements and situation, including threats and risks.

The Management Board confirms that the entity authorized to audit the annual consolidated financial
statements was selected in accordance with the law, and the both the entity and the chartered
auditors carrying out the audit meet the conditions for issuing an unbiased and independent opinion
on the audited annual consolidated financial statements, in accordance with the applicable regulations
and professional standards. In years 2013 and 2014 financial statements of CPD S.A. and the Group
were reviewed and audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers Sp. z 0.0., an audit firm based in Warsaw.

ELZBIETA WICZKOWSKA CoOLIN KINGSNORTH
PRESIDENT OF THE MANAGEMENT MEMBER OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD
BOARD

IWONA MAKAREWICZ
MEMBER OF THE MANAGEMENT
BOARD
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VII. INDEPENDENT CHARTERED AUDITOR’S OPINION

VIII. CHARTERED AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR FROM 1 JANUARY
TO 31 DECEMBER 2014.
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Independent Registered Auditor’s Opinion

To the General Shareholders’ Meeting and the Supervisory Board of CPD
S.A.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Celtic Property
Developments S.A. Group (hereinafter called “the Group”), having Celtic Property
Developments S.A., Cybernetyki 7B Street, Warsaw, as its parent company (hereinafter called
“the Parent Company”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2014, showing total assets and total equity and liabilities of PLN 621.056
thousand, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the period from 1 January
to 31 December 2014, showing a total comprehensive profit of PLN 103 040 thousand; the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
financial year and additional information on adopted accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

The Parent Company’s Management Board is responsible for preparing the consolidated
financial statements and Group Directors’ Report in accordance with the applicable
regulations, and for the correctness of the accounting records. Members of the Management
Board and Members of the Supervisory Board of the Parent Company are obliged to ensure
that the consolidated financial statements and the Group Director’s Report comply with the
requirements of the Accounting Act of 29 September 1994 (“the Accounting Act” — Journal of
Laws of 2013, item 330 as amended).

Our responsibility was to perform an audit of the accompanying consolidated financial
statements and to express an opinion on whether the consolidated financial statements
comply, in all material respects, with the applicable accounting policies and whether they
present, in all material respects, a true and clear view of the Group’s financial position and
results.

We conducted our audit in accordance with:
a. the provisions of Chapter 7 of the Accounting Act;

b. national standards of auditing issued by the National Council of Registered Auditors.

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. Howeuver, in all
matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.



Independent Registered Auditor’s Opinion

To the General Shareholder’s Meeting and the Supervisory Board of Celtic
Property Developments S.A. (cont.)

Our audit was planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatements and omissions. The
audit included examining, on a test basis, accounting documents and entries supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The audit also included
assessing the Group’s accounting policies and significant estimates made during the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation thereof. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements, in all material respects:

a.  give a fair and clear view of the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2014 and
of the results of its operations for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014, in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by
the European Union;

b.  comply in terms of form and content with the applicable laws;
c.  have been prepared on the basis of properly maintained consolidation documentation.

The information contained in the Group Directors’ Report for the year from 1 January to 31
December 2014 has been presented in accordance with the provisions of the Decree of the
Minister of Finance dated 19 February 2009 concerning the publication of current and
periodic information by issuers of securities and the conditions of acceptance as equal
information required by the law of other state, which is not a member state (“the Decree” —
Journal of Laws of 2014, item 133) and is consistent with the information presented in the
audited consolidated financial statements.

Person conducting the audit on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers Sp. z 0.0., Registered Audit
Company No. 144:

Piotr Wyszogrodzki

Group Registered Auditor, Key Registered
Auditor
No. 90091

Warsaw, 19 March 2015

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. Howeuver, in all
matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.



CPD S.A. Group

Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated

financial statements
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

Translation note:
This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible
J care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. Howeuver, in all
matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
ch precedence over this translation.
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Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

To the General Shareholders’ Meeting and the Supervisory Board of CPD
S.A.
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CPD S.A. Group
Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

General information about the Group

a.  CPD S.A. (“the Parent Company”) with its seat in Warsaw Cybernetyki 7B Street is the
parent company of the CPD S.A. Group (“the Group”).

b.  The Parent Company was formed on the basis of a Notarial Deed drawn up on 23
February 2007 by notarial assessor Radostaw Chorabik at the Notary Public’s Office
of Dorota Mika in Cracow and registered with Rep. No. 863/2007. On 23 March 2007,
the Company was entered in the Register of Businesses maintained by the District
Court in Cracow, XI Business Department of the National Court Register, with the
reference number KRS 0000277147. On 2 September 2010 the Extraordinary General
Shareholders’ Meeting adopted a resolution changing the Parent Company’s name from
Poen S.A. to Celtic Property Developments S.A. On 29 May 2014 the Extraordinary
General Shareholders’ Meeting adopted a resolution changing the Parent Company
name from Celtic Property Developments S.A. to CPD S.A. The change of Company’s
name was registered in the National Court Register on 17 September 2014.

c.  The Parent Company was assigned on 22 March 2007 a tax identification number
(NIP) 677-22-86-258 for the purpose of making tax settlements and on 6 March 2007
a REGON number 120423087 for statistical purposes.

d.  Asat 31 December 2014 the Parent Company’s share capital amounted to PLN
3 286 320,30 and consisted of 32.863.203 shares, with a nominal value of PLN 0,10
each.

e.  Asat 31 December 2014, the Parent Company’s shareholders were:

Shareholder’s name Number of Par value of Type of Votes (%)
shares held shares held shares held
(PLN) (ordinary
/preference)

Cooperatieve Laxey 3 3 di 3

Worldwide W.A. 10.082.930 1.008.293,0 ordinary 30,6

Furseka Trading and 127 999 127999 di 156
Investments Ltd. 5-137- 513.722, ordinary 503
The Value Catalyst Fund Plc 3.975.449 397.544,9 ordinary 12,10
QVT Fund LP 3.701.131 370.113,1 ordinary 11,26
LP Value Ltd 2.005.763 200.576,3 ordinary 6,10
LP Alternative Fund LP 2.003.981 200.398,1 ordinary 6,10

Shareholders with less than 6.72 672 ordinar 18.1
=% of shares 5.956.727 595.672,7 y 13
32.863.203* 3.286.320,3 100,0

On 5 August 2014, Company’s share capital was conditionally increased by PLN 979.136
pursuant to the resolution of Extraordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting. Conditional
increase of share capital was performed to allow the holders of convertible bonds to convert
them into shares.

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. Howeuver, in all
matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.
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CPD S.A. Group
Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

General information about the Group (cont.)
f. In the audited year, the Group’s operations comprised:

e property development,
e asset management,
e leasing of the properties.

g.  During the audited year, the Management Board of the Parent Company comprised:

° Elzbieta Donata Wiczkowska Chairman

o Colin William Kingsnorth Board Member

° Iwona Ewa Makarewicz Board Member from

° Piotr Sylwester Turchonski Board Member till 31 December 2014

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all
matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.
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CPD S.A. Group

Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

General information about the Group (cont.)

h.  Asat 31 December 2014, the CPD S.A. Group comprised the following entities:

Limited, Cyprus

financial statement was
not completed.

Nature of equity . 3... | Auditor of the
. . Consolidatio . - Balance sheet
Name relationship financial statements | Type of opinion
. . o n method date
(interest in %)

CPD S.A. Parent Company Full gglc;\(/)vz:)terhouseCoopers Unqualified 31 December 2014

Mandy Investment Sp. z 0.0. Subsidiary (100 %) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
As at 19 March 2015 the

. . .. - PricewaterhouseCoopers | audit of this entity’s
o,

Lakia Enterprises Limited Subsidiary (100 %) | Full Limited, Cyprus financial statement was 31 December 2014
not completed

Lakia Investments Sp. z 0.0. Subsidiary (100 %) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014

Gaetan Investments Sp. z o0.0. Subsidiary (69 %) Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014

Celtic Asset Management

Sp. z 0.0. w likwidacji (previous .1 o . .

name: Liliane Investments Sp. z Subsidiary (100 %) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014

0.0.)

Blaise Investments Sp. z 0.0. Subsidiary (100 %) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014

Robin Investments Sp. z 0.0. Subsidiary (100 %) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014

Hub Developments Ltd Sp. zo.0. | Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014

Elara Investments Sp. z 0.0. Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
As at 19 March 2015 the

Celtic Investments Limited Subsidiary (100%) | Full PricewaterhouseCoopers | audit of this entity’s 31 December 2014

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an

accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes

precedence over this translation.

4



pwc

CPD S.A. Group

Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

General information about the Group (cont.)

Sp.k.

Natu.r e of equity | consolidatio Audltqr of the - Balance sheet
Name relationship financial statements | Type of opinion
. . o n method date
(interest in %)
Gaston Investments Sp. z 0.0. Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
As at 19 March 2015 the
. - PricewaterhouseCoopers | audit of this entity’s
o,
Buffy Holdings No 1 Ltd Subsidiary (100%) | Full Limited, Cyprus financial statement was 31 December 2014
not completed.
— S
Challange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0. Subsidiary (100%) Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
Celtic Trade Park Kft. Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
Blaise Gaston Investments Spotka Full
z ograniczona odpowiedzialnoScia | Subsidiary (100%) Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
Sp.k.
Smart City Spolka z ograniczong
odpowiedzialno$cig w organizacji
sp.k. (previous name: 1/95 Gaston | Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
Investments Spoltka z ograniczona
odpowiedzialno$cig Sp.k.)
2/124 Gaston Investments Spotka
z ograniczona odpowiedzialnoécia | Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
Sp.k.
3/93 Gaston Investments Spdlka z
ograniczong odpowiedzialno$cia Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
Sp.k.
4/113 Gaston Investments Spotka
z ograniczong odpowiedzialno$ciag | Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an
accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes

precedence over this translation.
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CPD S.A. Group

Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

General information about the Group (cont.)

Name

Nature of equity
relationship
(interest in %)

Consolidatio
n method

Auditor of the

financial statements

Type of opinion

Balance sheet
date

4/113 Gaston Investments Spotka
z ograniczona odpowiedzialno$cia
Sp.k.

Subsidiary (100%)

Full

Not applicable

Not applicable

31 December 2014

5/92 Gaston Investments Spétka z
ograniczona odpowiedzialno$cia
Sp.k.

Subsidiary (100%)

Full

Not applicable

Not applicable

31 December 2014

6/150 Gaston Investments Spotka
z ograniczong odpowiedzialno$cia
Sp.k.

Subsidiary (100%)

Full

Not applicable

Not applicable

31 December 2014

7/120 Gaston Investments Spotka
z ograniczong odpowiedzialno$cia
Sp.k.

Subsidiary (100%)

Full

Not applicable

Not applicable

31 December 2014

8/126 Gaston Investments Spotka
z ograniczong odpowiedzialno$cia
Sp.k.

Subsidiary (100%)

Full

Not applicable

Not applicable

31 December 2014

9/151 Gaston Investments Spotka
z ograniczong odpowiedzialno$cia
Sp.k.

Subsidiary (100%)

Full

Not applicable

Not applicable

31 December 2014

10/165 Gaston Investments
Spolka z ograniczona
odpowiedzialno$cig Sp.k.

Subsidiary (100%)

Full

Not applicable

Not applicable

31 December 2014

11/162 Gaston Investments Spotka
z ograniczong odpowiedzialno$cia
Sp.k.

Subsidiary (100%)

Full

Not applicable

Not applicable

31 December 2014

12/132 Gaston Investments
Spoétka z ograniczong
odpowiedzialnoscia Sp.k.

Subsidiary (100%)

Full

Not applicable

Not applicable

31 December 2014

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an

accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.
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CPD S.A. Group

Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

I. General information about the Group (cont.)
Natu.r e of equity | consolidatio Audltqr of the - Balance sheet
Name relationship financial statements | Type of opinion
. . o n method date
(interest in %)
13/155 Gaston Investments
Spolka z ograniczona Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
odpowiedzialno$cig Sp.k.
14/119 Gaston Investments Spolka
z ograniczona odpowiedzialnoScia | Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
Sp.k.
15/167 Gaston Investments
Spolka z ograniczona Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
odpowiedzialnoScig Sp.k.
16/88 Gaston Investments Spotka
z ograniczona odpowiedzialno$cia | Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
Sp.k.
18 Gaston Investments Spolka z
ograniczong odpowiedzialnoécia Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
Sp.k.
19/97 Gaston Investments Spotka
z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoécia | Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
Sp.k.
20/140 Gaston Investments
Spoélka z ograniczong Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014
odpowiedzialno$cig Sp.k.
As at 19 March 2015 the
Belise Investments Sp. z o.0. Subsidiary (100%) | Full PricewaterhouseCoopers apd1t qf this entity’s 31 December 2014
Sp. z o.0. financial statement was
not completed
Antigo Investments Sp. z 0.0. Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable Not applicable 31 December 2014

Translation note:
J This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an
pwc accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.
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CPD S.A. Group
Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

I. General information about the Group (cont.)

Nature of equity . 1..: . | Auditor of the
. . Consolidatio . - Balance sheet
Name relationship n method financial statements | Type of opinion date
(interest in %)
Smart City Sp. z 0.0. Subsidiary (100%) | Full Not applicable No applicable 31 December 2014

Translation note:
J This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an
pwc accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.
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I.

CPD S.A. Group
Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

General information about the Group (cont.)
i.  During the financial year, the following changes took place in the scope of consolidation:

e Shares of EEPF (Sweden) were sold,

e Smart City Sp. z 0.0. was founded, with Lakia Enterprises Limited (Cyprus) being the
only shareholder,

e 100 of 320 shares of Gaetan Investments sp. z 0.0. were sold,

e 1% of shares of Smart City Sp. z 0.0. sp. k. were sold from Gaston Investments
Sp. z 0.0. to Smart City sp. z o.0.

j- The Parent Company is an issuer of securities admitted for trading on the Warsaw Stock
Exchange. In accordance with the choice of selecting accounting policies permitted by
the Accounting Act, the Company has decided to prepare its consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union.

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. Howeuver, in all
matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.
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CPD S.A. Group
Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

Information about the audit

a.  The audit of the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year from 1 January
to 31 December 2014 was conducted by PricewaterhouseCoopers Sp. z 0.0. with its seat
in Warsaw, Al. Armii Ludowej 14, registered audit company no. 144. The audit was
conducted on behalf of the registered audit company under the supervision of the key
registered auditor, the Group’s registered auditor Piotr Wyszogrodzki (no. 90091).

b.  PricewaterhouseCoopers Sp. z 0.0. was appointed registered auditor to the Group by
Resolution No. 2/VII/2014 of the Supervisory Board dated 2 July 2014 in accordance
with paragraph 11 point 8 of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Association.

c.  PricewaterhouseCoopers Sp. z 0.0. and the key registered auditor conducting the audit
are independent of the entities belonging to the Group within the meaning of art. 56,
clauses 2-4 of the Act dated 7 May 2009 on registered auditors and their self-
government, registered audit companies and on public supervision (Journal of Laws
No. 77, item 649, as amended).

d.  The audit was conducted in accordance with an agreement dated 3 February 2015 and
conducted during the period from 16 February to 19 March 2015.

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all
matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.



CPD S.A. Group
Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

III. The Group’s results, financial position and significant items of the
consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2014 (selected lines)

Change Structure
31.12.2014 31.12.2013 31.12.2014 31.12.2013
PLN ‘o000 PLN ‘o000 PLN ‘o000 (%) (%) (%)
ASSETS
Non-current 8500 o 128.60 ) 5
assets 565.907 447.304 35.603 3 94,3 94,
Current assets 35.149 27.619 7.530 27,3 5,7 5,8
Total assets 621.056 474.923 146.133 30,8 100,0 100,0
LIABILITIES
AND
EQUITY
Share
capital 3.286 3.460 (174) 5) 0,5 0,7
gﬁ‘g;es o (12.300) 12.300 100 o (2,6)
Reserve
capital 987 087 0 0,00 0,2 0,2
Equity
component
on initial
recognition (27.909) 0 (27.909) 100 4,5) 0
Translation
reserves (5.301) (3.847) (1.454) 37,8 (0,9) (0,8)
Retained o
earnings 433-43 341.062 92.368 27,1 69,8 71,8
Liabilities 216.563 145.561 71 002 48,8 34,9 30,6
Total
liabilities 621.056 474.923 146.133 30,8 100,0 100,0
and equity

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014 (selected lines)

Change Structure
2014 2013 2014 2013
PLN ‘o000 PLN ‘ooo0 PLN ‘o000 (%) (%) (%)
Revenues 15.067 13.880 1.187 8,6 14,6 (32)
Costs of sales (3.648) (9.429) 5781  (61.3) (3,5) 22
Gross profit 11.419 4.451 6.968  156,5 11,1 (10,4)
Operating profit / (loss) 105.670 (34.401) 140.071  (407) 102,6 80
Profit / (loss) for the
year 104.494 (43.061) 147.555 (343) 101,4 100,2
Currency translation
adjustment (1.454) 86 (1.540)  (1791) (1,4) 0,2
Total comprehensive
income for the year 103.040 (42.975) 146.015  (340) 100,0 100,0

Translation note:
J This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all
ch matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.
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CPD S.A. Group
Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

The Company’s results, financial position and significant items of the
consolidated financial statement (cont.)

Selected ratios characterizing the Group's financial position and results

The following ratios characterize the Group’s activities, results of operations during the year
and its financial position as at the balance sheet date compared with previous years:

2014 2013 2012
Asset ratios
- receivables turnover 80 days 175 days 144 days
- inventory turnover 705 days 444 days 1484 days
Profitability ratios
- net profit margin (63)% (156)% (220) %
- return on capital employed 28% (12)% (35)%
Liability ratios
- gearing 35% 31% 26%
- payables turnover 95 days 39 days 124 days
31.12.2014 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
Liquidity ratios
- current ratio 0,4 0,3 5.1
- quick ratio 0,3 0,2 41

The above ratios have been calculated on the basis of the consolidated financial statements

It was not the purpose of the audit to present the Group in the context of the results of
operations and ratios achieved. A detailed interpretation of the ratios requires an in-depth
analysis of the Group’s operations and its circumstances.

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all
matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.
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CPD S.A. Group
Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

The Company’s results, financial position and significant items of the
consolidated financial statement (cont.)

The consolidated financial statements do not take into account the effects of inflation. The

consumer price index (on a December to December basis) amounted to -1% in the audited
year (0,7% in 2013).

CPD S.A. is as at 31 December 2014 a parent company in a Group which consists of 37

associated companies (including 37 fully consolidated).

The following comments are based on information obtained during the audit of the
consolidated financial statements.

. At the end of the financial year, the Group’s total assets amounted to PLN 621.056
thousand. During the year total assets increased by PLN 146.133 thousand (i.e. by
30,8%.). This increase resulted mainly from the increase in value of investment
properties of PLN 138.593 thousand.

° As at 31 December 2014 the inventory amounted to PLN 6.525 thousand, which
comparing to the end of prior financial year represented a decrease of PLN 1.248
thousand. Changes in 2014 resulted mainly from impairment write-off (PLN 1.172
thousand). As at 31 December 2014 inventory consisted of properties for sale in a
normal course of business.

° As at 31 December 2014 total equity amounted to PLN 404.493 thousand and

compared to prior financial year increased by PLN 75.131 thousand (22,8%) due to net

profit for the current financial year of PLN 104.494 thousand and valuation of the
embedded component related to the bonds issued in the amount of PLN 27.909
thousand that was recognized through equity.

As at 31 December 2014 the balance of long-term liabilities amounted to PLN 129.240
thousand and consisted of bank loans in the amount of PLN 42.221 thousand, finance
lease liabilities in the amount of PLN 29.263 thousand and bonds issued in the amount
of PLN 42,880 thousand. Increase of long-term liabilities by PLN 93.361 thousand
(260,2%) resulted mainly from increase of credit liabilities by PLN 42.221 thousand
which were reclassified from short-term liabilities and issuance of bonds in the amount
of PLN 42.880 thousand as at 31 December 2014.

Current liquidity ratio was 0,4 as at 31 December 2014 in comparison to 0,3 as at 31
December 2013. Quick liquidity ratio as at 31 December 2014 was 0,3 in comparison to
0,2 as at 31 December 2013.

Gearing ratio increased from 31% as at 31 December 2013 to 35% as at 31 December
2014.

Group’s revenues for the financial period amounted to PLN 15.067 thousand and
increased as compared to prior financial period by PLN 1.187 thousand (8,6%). The
main reason for the change was increase of revenues from office space rental by PLN

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all
matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.
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CPD S.A. Group
Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

The Company’s results, financial position and significant items of the
consolidated financial statement (cont.)

3.138 thousand, which was partially offset by the drop of revenues from the sales of
inventory by PLN 2.521 thousand.

° Cost of goods sold decreased by PLN 5.781 thousand (61%). The Group achieved gross
profit in the amount of PLN 11.419 thousand which was higher than gross profit
generated in prior financial period by PLN 6.968 thousand.

o The receivables turnover ratio dropped from 175 days in 2013 to 80 days in 2014. The
main reason for the change was increase of revenues and decrease of trade receivables
balance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Group
will continue in operation as a going concern.

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all
matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.
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CPD S.A. Group
Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

The independent registered auditor’s statements

a.

The Management Board of the Parent Company provided all the information,
explanations, and representations required by us in the course of the audit and
provided us with a representation letter confirming the completeness of the
information included in the accounting records and the disclosure of all contingent
liabilities and post balance-sheet events which occurred up to the date on which that
letter was signed.

The scope of the audit was not limited.

The Group has up-to-date documentation of its accounting policies, approved by the
Parent Company’s Management Board. The Parent Company’s accounting policies were
tailored to the Group’s needs and ensured the recognition of all events having a
material effect on the assessment of its financial position and results, taking into
consideration the prudence principle. There were no changes to the accounting policies
compared with the previous year.

The consolidation of equity items were carried out properly in all material respects.

The elimination of mutual balances (receivables and payables) and transactions
(revenue and costs) of the consolidated entities were carried out, in all material
respects, in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union.

The elimination of unrealized gains/losses of consolidated entities included in the book
value of assets and in respect of dividend payments was carried out, in all material
respects, in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union.

The impact of the disposal or partial disposal of shares in subordinated entities was
accounted for properly in all material respects, in accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the European Union.

The consolidation documentation was complete and accurate and it is stored in a
manner ensuring proper safeguarding.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended 31
December 2013 were approved by Resolution No. 4 passed by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting of the Parent Company on 29 May 2014 and filed with the
National Court Register in Warsaw on 10 June 2014.

The consolidated financial statements for the previous year were audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers Sp. z 0.0. The registered auditor issued an unqualified opinion
with emphasis of matter.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include the introduction and
additional notes and explanations present all the significant information in accordance
with IFRS as adopted by the European Union.

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all
matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.
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CPD S.A. Group
Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

L. The information in the Group Directors’ Report for the year from 1 January to 31
December 2014 has been presented in accordance with the provisions of the Decree of
the Minister of Finance dated 19 February 2009 on current and periodic information to
be provided by issuers of securities and conditions for recognizing as equivalent the
information required by the provisions of law of a country not being a member state
(Journal of Laws of 2014, item 133) and is consistent with that presented in the
consolidated financial statements.

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all
matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.
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CPD S.A. Group
Registered auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

Final information

This report has been prepared in connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the CPD S.A. Group having CPD S.A., Cybernetyki 7B Street, Warsaw, as its
Parent Company. The consolidated financial statements were signed by the Parent
Company’s Management Board on 19 March 2015.

This report should be read in conjunction with the Independent Registered Auditor’s
unqualified Opinion to General Shareholders’ Meeting and Supervisory Board of CPD S.A.
dated 19 March 2015, concerning the said consolidated financial statements. The opinion on
the consolidated financial statements expresses a general conclusion drawn from the audit
and involves assessing the materiality of individual audit findings rather than being a sum of
all the evaluations of individual financial statement components. This assessment takes
account of the impact of the facts noted on the truth and fairness of the consolidated financial
statements.

Person conducting the audit on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers Sp. z 0.0., Registered Audit
Company No. 144:

Piotr Wyszogrodzki

Group Registered Auditor, Key Registered
Auditor
No. 90091

Warsaw, 19 March 2015

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Polish language. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all
matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes
precedence over this translation.

L3

PricewaterhouseCoopers Sp. z 0.0. is entered into the National Court Register (KRS) maintained by the District Court in Warsaw, with the reference number (KRS) 0000044655,
and tax indentification number (NIP) 526-021-02-28. Share capital amounts to PLN 10,363,900. Headquarters in Warsaw, Al. Armii Ludowej 14.
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I. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR FROM
1 JANUARY TO 31 DECEMBER 2014



Consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014



CPD S.A.

Consolidated financial statements for the period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014

{All amounts in PLN thousand unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated property portfolio

INVESTMENT PROPERTY {Note 5)

Property
Sofar (Viterra)
Aquarius
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Ursus
Wolbdrz
IRIS
Capitalised rights of perpetual usufruct of land

INVENTQRIES (Note 6)

Property
Tenement house in Lédz
Koszykowa

Jaktorow
Czosnow

Nowa Piasecznica
Lesznowola
Alsonemedi

Total fair value of property portfolio

As at
31 December 2014

Company Failr value
Lakia Investments 34098
Robin Investments 27279
Blaise Gaston Investments 39 200
Challange Eighteen 3500
1/95 (Gaston Investments 29 260
2/124 Gaston investments 32 240
3/93 Gaston investments 32920
4/93 Gaston investments 47 330
5/92 Gaston Investments 42 830
6/150 Gaston Investments 17 210
71120 Gaston Investments 11 460
8/126 Gaston Investments 16 610
9/i151 Gaston Investments 6430
10/165 Gaston Investments 15 800
11/162 Gaston Investments 13120
12/132 Gaston Investments 17 740
13/155 Gaston investments 25 800
15/167 Gaston Investments 16 010
16/88 Gaston Investments 3560
18 Gaston Investments 3336
18/97 Gaston Investments 8810
20/140 Gaston Investments 4390
HUB Developments 2600
Belise Investments 100 590
29 263
581386

As at
31 December 2014

Company Carrying amount Fair value
Antigo Investments 4100 4100
Elara Investments 370 370
4470 4470
Antigo Investments 330 330
Antigo Investments 860 800
Antigo Investmenis 150 150
Antigo Investments 17 17
Celtic Trade Park 758 758
2055 2055
6525 6525
587 91T




CPD S.A.

Consolidated financial statements for the period from 1 Januvary 2014 tc 31 December 2014

{All ameunts in PLN thousand unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Revenue 15 15 067 13880
Cost of sales 16 (3648) (9 429)
Including: Costs of inventories sold (14) (4 338)
Inventory impairment (1172) (3638)
Cost of services sold (2 462) (11 453)

Administrative expenses - property related 17 (9 732) {11 280)
Administrative expenses - other 19 (10 645) (14 750)
Selling and marketing expenses (561} (119}
Net loss on safe of investment property 28 0 (2 587)
Other income 18 420 606
Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment property 5 114 810 {10 702)
Net gain / (loss) on sale of subsidiares 27 {41) g

Finance incorme 20

9734 209
Finance costs 20

(10 548) (7 042)

BROET (I O5S

Income tax expense 21

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Currency translation adjustment

(1 454) 86

Al COMPREHENSIVE INEOM

o]

5 5

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Group

104 494 (43 061)
Total comprehensive income atfributable to:
Equity holders of the Group 103 040 (42 975)
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (PLN) 32 3,04 1,27
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (PLN) 32 2,66 1,27

Elzhieta Donata Wiczkowska
Chairman

Colin Kingsnorth
Board Member

Iwona Makarewicz
Board Member

Explanatory notes set out on pages from 10 to 57 comprise the part of these consolidated financial statements
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CPD S.A.

Consolidated financial staternents for the peried from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014

{All amounts in PLN thousand unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated cash flow statement

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 22 (10 821) (2 338}
interest paid (1815) {1 608)
Income tax paid 0 0

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital expenditure on investment property (16 547 {9 776)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (290) {15}
Proceeds from sale of investments properties 0 13130

Repayment of loans granted
E NBt cish (sddn

Cash flows from financing activities

Received borrowings 56 999 6 502
Repayments of borrowings (42 752) (6 012}
Bonds received 0 {3 000}
Acquire of own shares 0 {12 300)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds 22 966 29

Nt (Hbcreeoifineranco

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 11 981 27 101

Gl

HVEIERES

Elzbieta Donata Wiczkowska Colin Kingsnorth
Chairman Board fMember

lwona Makarewicz
Board Member

Explanatory notes set out on pages from 11 to 52 comprise the part of these consclidated financial statements.



CPD S.A.

Censolidated financial statements for the period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014

(All amounts in PLN thousand unless ctherwise stated)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 General Information
1.1 Information on the parent company

Details about the existing parenl comparny

Celtic Properly Developmenis S.A. {the "Company”, "CPD") with ils registered office in Warsaw (02-677), ul. Cybemetykl 7B, was
estabiished on the basis of the Arlicles of Assccialien on 23 February 2007 (as Celtic Development Corporation S.A., then on 22
February 2008 the Company changed its name to POEN S.A.). On 23 March 2007 District Court in Cracow, X! Business Department of
the National Court Register entered the Company into the Register of Businesses with the KRS number 0000277147, The Company’s
shares are quoted on the Warsaw Stock Exchange.

0On 2 Seplember 2010 the Extraordinary General Shareholder's Meeting adopted a resolution changing the Company’s name from
Poen S.A. to Celtic Property Bevelopments S.A.

On 23 August 2010, an entry was made in the National Court Register to record a cross-border merger of the previcus parenti
company of the Group, i.e. Celtic Property Developments S.A, (the Acquired Company) and Poen S.A. (the Acquiring Company)
through transfer of the assets of the Acquired Company to the Acquiring Company in return for new shares of the Acquiring Company
with a value of PLN 3,483,000. The merger process took place under the Merger Plan, whereby Celtic Property Developments Plc was
to be acquired by Poen S.A., a full subsidiary of Celtic Property Developrments Plc, As a result of the merger: (i} the previous
shareholders of Celtic Property Developments Ple became 100% shareholders of Poen S.A., and (i) Poen §.A. acquired, through
general succession, freasury shares of PLN 500,000 from Gellic Property Developments Plc for the purpese of their redemption. The
parity for the exchange of shares of Celtic Property Developments Plc for the shares of Poen 8.4, was determined at such a leve! as
net to cause changes in the ownership structure of Poen S.A.

Cn redernption of the treasury shares, the shareholders of Cellic Propedy Develepmenis Plc became shareholders of Poen S.A.
hawing the same stake in the share capital of Poen S.A- and in the total number of vetes at the General Meeling of Poen S.A. as they
held in Cellic Property Devefopments Plc before the merger date.

Accordingly, on 23 August 2010, Celtic Properfy Developments Plc ceased to exist and Poen S.A. became a parent company of the
Group.

Details about the parent company before fhe merger date

Cellic Peoperty Developmenis Plc ("CPD Pic”, the "Company™} was incorporated in Jersey as The East Eurcpe Development Fund
Limiled on 20 Decernber 1980, Cn 24 October 2008 the company moved to the British Virgin lslands and the name was c¢hanged lo
Cellis Property Developments 5.A. on 1 November 2007. In February 2410, the Cempany has redomiciled again 1o Cyprus under the
name Cellic Properly Developments Plc. The Company's address ill 22 February 2010 was Craigmuir Chambers, PO Box 71,
Roadtown, Tertola, British Virgin lslands. From 23 February 2010 to 22 August 2010 the address of the Company was as follows: 1
Naousis, 1 Karapatakis Building PC 608, Larnaca, Cyprus.

On 14 December 2010, the prospecius of Cellic Property Developments S.A. with its registered office in Warsaw was approved. On
17 December 2010 the Board of the National Depository of Securities ("KDPW™) granted to the Company the stalus of participant of
KDPW, type ISSUER, registered 34,088,252 Company’s ordinary bearer shares, series B with a nominal value of PLN (.10 each and
marked them with code PLCELPDD0013. Three days later, the shares were admitted 1o trading on the parallel market. The shares
were registered in the National Depository and on 23 December 2010 infroduced to the continuous trading syster.

On 29 May 2014 ihe Extraordinary General Shareholder's Meeling adopted a resolution changing the Company’s name from Cellic
Property Developments S.A. to CPD S.A. The change was recorded in the National Court Register on 17 September 2014,

The core business of CPD S.A. (according to the Company's Articles of Association) is financial holding aclivity, services for real
estate market and head offices aclivities.

As at the date: of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the composition of the managing and supervising bodies of the
parent comgany was as follows:



1.2

Management Board:
Elzbieta Donata Wiczkowska President of {he Management Board

Calin Kingsnerth Managemen] Board Member

Iwona Makarewicz Management Board Member
Supervisory Board:

Marzena Bielecka Chairwarman cf the Supervisory Board
Wiestaw Oles Vige-Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Miroslaw Gronicki Supervisory Board Member

Andrew Pegge Secretary

Wiestaw Roziucki Supervisory Board Member

As at 31 December 2014, the Cempary's shareholders were:*

=

Coopertaive Laxey Worldwide W.A., Netherlands 10082 930 30,7% 30,7%
Furseka Trading and Investments Lid Cyprus 5137 222 15,6% 15,6%
The Value Catalyst Fund plc Cayman Islands 3875449 12,1% 12,1%
QvT Fund LP Cayman Islands, 3701131 14,3% 11,3%
uUsA
LP Value Lid British Virgin Istands 2005762 6,1% 6.1%
LP Alternative Fund LP USA 2003981 6.1% 6,1%
Shareholders with stakes below 5% 5956727 18,1% 18,1%

'I:l{e above sh;réhbtéer's slrut.:ture |s%ésed on 6wn data as at 31 Decémber 2014

Information about the Group

As at the balance sheet date, CPD Group comprised CPD S.A. as a parent enlity and 37 subsidiaries ("CPD Group"). In 2014, ong of
the subsidiaries — EEPF (Sweden) was offloaded. A detailed list of subsidiaries is included in Note 2.2.

Details about consolidated Group undertakings are presented in Note 2.2,

The individual Group comparnies are going concerns. The financial staterments of all subsidiaries have been prepared for the same
reporting period as the financial stalements of the parent company, using consistent accounting policies.

The financiat year of CPD and other Group undertakings fs the calendar year.
The core business of CPD Group is:

- property development (ofce and residentiat market),

- land acquisilion and consiruclion of residential and office buildings; purchase of existing properties with the potential to create
additional value that ¢an be achieved by changing the purpose of the property or by raising the standard and optimizing the usable
area,

- leasing of office buildings and warehouses for its own agsount,
- commercial real estate management.

10
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2.1

Summary of significant accounting policies

The key accounting principles used in preparation of these consofidated financial statements are oullined below. The principles were
applied in all the presented years on a continuous basis, unless specified olherwise.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of CPD 8.A, prepared as at 31 December 2014 cover the period from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2014, and the comparable period from 1 January 2013 lo 31 December 2013,

These consolidated financial statements of Celtic Property Developments S.A. have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS™) appraved by the EU. The consolidated financial stalements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except invesiment property measured at fair value,

These consofidated financiat stalements have been prepared on the assumption that the Group will conlinue as a going concern in the
foreseeable future. As at the dale of preparation of the consclidated financiat statements, there are no circumstances indicating a
threat to the continizalion of gperations by the Group.

New and amended standards and interpretations which came into force on or after 1 January 2014 and their impact on these
consolidated financial stafements:

IFRS 10 "Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”

The new standard replaces all of the guidance en control and consolidalion in IAS 27 “Consclidated and separate financial statements”
and SIC-12 “Consclidation - special purpose entities”. IFRS 10 changes the definition of control sc that the same criteria are applied to
all entities to determine contral. This definition is supported by extensive application guidance.

The Group uses the provisions of this standard in these censolidated financial statements.

IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangements”

The new standard replaces IAS 31 "Interesis in Joint Ventures® and SIC-13 “Jointlly Controlled Entities—Non-Monetary Contributions
by Ventures®. Changes in the definitions have reduced the number of types of jeint arrangements to two: joint cperations and joint
ventures. The existing policy cholce of proportienate consotidation for joinily controffed entities has been eliminated. Equity accounting
is mandatory for participants in joint ventures.

Adopticn of the standard did not have any impact on these consolidated financial statements.

i1



2.1

IFRS 12 "Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities™

The new standard applies to enlities that have an interest in a subsidiary, a joint arrangement, an asscciale or an unconsolidated
structured entity. The standard replaces the disclosure requirements now set cut in IAS 27 "Consolidated and Separale Financial
Statements®, IAS 28 “Investments in Associales” and 1AS 31 "Interests in Joint Venlures". IFRS 12 requires enfities fo disclose
information that belps financial stalements readers 1o evaluate the nature, risks and financial effects associaled with the entity’s
interests in subsidiaries, associates, joirt arrangements and unconsolidated structured entiies. To meet these objectives, the new
siandard requires disclosures in a number of areas, including significant judgments and assumplions made in determining whether an
entity conirofs, jointly cenirafs, or significantly influences its interests in other eniities, extended disclosures on share of non-controlling
interesls in group aciivities and cash flows, summarised financial information of subsidiaries with materiat non-controlling interests,
and detailed disclosures of interests in unconsolidated structured entities.

The Group uses the provisions of this standard in these consolidated financial statements.
Amended [AS 27 "Separate FInancial Statements"

I1AS 27 was amended as a result of publication of IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statemen(s™. The purpose of the amended 1AS 27 is
to define the requirements for disclosure and presentation of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and assotiates where an enfity
prepares separale financial statements. The guidance on control and consolidated financial statements was reptaced by IFRS 10.

Adeptien of the standard did not have any impact on these consclidated financial statements.
Amended 1AS 28 "Investmaents In Associates and Joint Ventures”

The amendmaents to IAS 28 resulted from the project of the [nternalional Accounting Standards Board regarding joint ventures. When
discussing that project, the Board decided to incorporate the accounting for joint ventures using the equity method into IAS 28 because
this melhod is applicable to both joint ventures and associates. With this exception, other guidance remained unchanged.

Adoption of the standard did not have any impact on these consolidated financial statements.
Basis of preparation — cont.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — Amendments to 1AS 32

The amendments added application guidance to IAS 32 to address inconsistencies identified in applying some cf the offselting criteria.
This includes clarifying the meaning of "currenlly has a legally enforceable right of set-off" and that some gross settlement systems
may be considered equivalent to net setllement subject to fulfilment of certain conditions.

Adoption of the standard did not have any impact on these consolidated firancial staternents,

Transition Guidance Amendments to [FRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12

The amendments clarify the {ransition guidance in IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements". Entities adopting IFRS 10 should
assess control at the first day of the annual pericd in which IFRS 10 is adopted, and if the consolidation conclusion under IFRS 10
differs from 1AS 27 and SIC 12, the immediately preceding comparative period is restated, unless impracticeble. The amendments
also provide addilional transition relief in IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 by limiting the requirement to provide adjusted comparative
information only for the immediately preceding comparative period. Further, the amendments wiil remove the requirement to present
comparative informalion for disclosures refated to unconsolidated structured enlities for periods before IFRS 12 s first applied.

The Group uses the provisions of this standard in these consclidated financial statemenits.

investment Entities ~ Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 27

The amendment introduced a definition of an invesiment enlity to iFRS 10. An investment enlity will be required to account for its
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss, and lo consofidate only those subsidiaries thal provide services that are related to the
enlity's investment activities. IFRS 12 was amended to introduce new disclosures about investment entities.

The Greup uses the provisions cof this standard in these consolidated financial stalements.

i2
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2.1. Basis of preparation - cont.
Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets — Amendments to [AS 36

The amendmenls remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable amount when a CGU contains goodwill or indefinite-lived
intangible assels but there has been no impairment,

Adoption of the standard did not have any impact en these consolidaled financial statements.

Novatlon of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting — Amendments to EAS 39

The amendments will allow hedge accounling o continue in a situation where a derivative which has been designated as a hedging
instrument is novated (i.e parlies have agreed o replace their original counterparty with a new one) to effect clearing with a central
counterparty as a result of laws cr regulation, if specific conditions are met.

Adoplion of the standard did not have any impact on these consolidated financiat statements.

Published standards and interpretations of existing standards which are not effective yet and which were not adopted by
the Group before

In these consofidated financial statements the Group did aot decide on early adoption of the following pubfished standards,
interpretations or improvemenis before their effective date:

IFRS 8 "Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement and Hedge Accounting™

IFRS % replaces 1AS 39. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 20118.

The standard intreduces one medel with only twe classificalion categories for financial assels: those to be measured al fair value, and
those to be measured at amortised cost. The decision is to be made at initial recognition. The classificalion depends on the entily’s
business medel for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument.

IFRS 9 intreduces a new model for recognition of impairment — the model of expected credit losses.

Most of the requiremenis in [AS 3% for classification and measurement of financial liabilities were carried forward unchanged to IFRS
9, The key change is that an entity will be required to present the effecls of changes in own credit risk of financial liabililies designated
at fair value through profit or loss in other comprehensive income.

Hedge accounting requirements were amended to affgn accounting more closely with risk management.

Tihe Group will adopt IFRS 9 on its approval by the EEE.

Athe date of preparation of these financial statements, IFRS 9 was not yet approved by the Eurcpean Union,



IFRIC 21 "Levies™
IFRIC 21 was issued on 20 May 2013 and is effective for annual pedods beginning on or afler 17 June 2014.

The interpretation clarifies the accounting for an obligation o pay a levy that is not income tax. The otligaling evenl that gives rise to a
tiability Is the event identified by the legislation that triggers the obligation to pay the levy. The fact that an enfity is economically
compelled to continue operating in a future period, or prepares its financial statements under the going concern assumption, does not
create an obligation. The same recognition principles apply in annual and inlerim financial stalemenis. The applicalion of the
interpretation to liabifilies arising from emissions trading schemes is optional.

The Group is geing to adopt IFRIC 21 on 1 January 2015.

Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions — Amendments to [AS 19

Amendments to [AS 18 "Employee contributions” were issued in November 2013 by the Inlermational Accounting Standards Board and
are effective in the EU for annual periods beginning on or after § Febroary 2015.

The amendment alfows entifies to recognise employee contributions as a redustion in the service cost in the period in which {he related
employee service is rendered, instead of attributing the contributions fo the periods of service, if the amount of the employee
contribution is independent of the number of years of service.

The Group adopted the amendments fo 1AS 19 on 1 January 2016.

Improvements to [FRSs 2010-2012

In December 2013, the Internalional Agccounting Standards Board published “Improvements to IFRSs 2090-2012", which amend 7
standards. The improvements include changes 1o presentation, recognition and measurement, as well as terminology and editorial
changes. The changes are effective in the EU for anneal periods starding on 1 February 2015.

The Group is going to adopt the impravemenis {o IFRSs on 1 January 2016,

improvements to EFRSs 2011-2013

In December 2013, the International Accounting Standards Board published *Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013, which amend 4
standards. The improvements include charges to presentation, recognition and measurement, as well as ferminclogy and edilorial
changes. The changes are effective in the EU for annual periods starting on 1 January 2015.

The Group is going to adopt the improvements to IFRSs on 1 January 215,

IFRS 14 "Regulatory Deferral Accounts™

IFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, The standard allows an entity which is a first-time adopter
of IFRSs 10 centinue fo account for regulatory deferral account balances in accordance with its previous accounting policy. To improve
comparability with the enlities that already use [FRSs and do not report such balances, in accordance with the published IFRS 14
regulatory deferral account balances should be presented separately in the statement of financial position and statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income,

The Group is going to adopt the improvements to IFRSs on 1 January 20176,

Al the date of preparation of these financial statements, IFRS 14 was not yat approved by the Eurepean Union,
Amendments to IFRS 11 - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendment requires 1hat the acguirer of an interest in a joint operation in which the aclivily constilutes a business, as defined in
IFRS 3, is required to apply all of the principles on business combinations accounting in IFRS 3 and other IFRSs with the exception of
those principles that conflict with the guidance in IFRS 11.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015,

The Group Is going to adept the amendment on 1 January 2016,
Al the date of preparation of these consolidated financial statements, the amendment was not yet approved by the Eurepean Union,

Amendments to1AS 16 and [AS 38 - Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendment clasifies that the revenue-based methad should not be used 1o calculate charges for the depreciation or amortisation
of items of property, plant and equipment or intangible assets. This is because a revenue-based method reflects a pattern of economic
benedits being generated from the asset, rather than the expecied patiern of consumgtion of the future economic benefits embodied in

fThe Grc;up.'Company] is going 10 adopt the amendrments on 1 January 2016,

14



At the date of preparafion of these consolidated financial statements, the amendment was not yet appraved by the European Union.

IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers"

IFRS 15 was published by the International Accounting Standards Board on 28 May 2014 and is effective for the annual periods
commencing on of after 1 January 2017.

IFRS 15 provides principles to be applied to all contracts resulting in reverues. The fundamental principal of the new standard is to
recognise revenues at ihe fime of transfer of goods or services to the customer in the amount of the transaction price. Any good or
senvice soid In @ package that is separalely identifiable within the package should be recognised separately. Furthermore, any
discourts regarding transaction price should as a rule be allccated to specific parls of the package. Where revenue is variable,
variakle amounts are only included in revenue if, and to the extent that, it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal will not
oceur in the future as a result of re-estimation. Moreover, under IFRS 15, the costs incurred lo obtain and secure a coniract with a
customer should be capitalised angd accounted for over the period of consumption of benefits from the contract.

The Group is going to adopt IFRS 15 on 1 January 2817.
At the date of preparation of these financiat statements, IFRS 15 was not ye! approved by the European Union.

Amendments to [AS 16 and IAS 41 for beargr plants

The amendments require that bearer plants, such as grape vines, rubber Irees and oil palms (i.e. which yield crops over many years
and are not intended for sale as seedlings or for harvest) should be accounted for in accordance with the requirements of 1AS 56
“Property, Plant and Equipment” because their culfivation is similar to manufacturing. Consequently, the amerdments include such
plants within the scope of IAS 16, instead of [AS 41. The produce growing on bearer plants will rerrain within the scope of 1AS 41,

The amendments were published on 30 June 2014 and are effective for the annual periods comrmencing on or after 1 January 2016,

The Group is going to adopt the amendment on 1 January 2016,
Al the date of preparalion of these {consolidated) financial statements, the amendment was not yet approved by the European Unicn.

Amendments to 1AS 27 — Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

The amendments to IAS 27 allow an enlity to account for investments in subsidiaries, Joint ventures and associates in its separate
financial statements using the equity method as one of alternative methods.
The amendments were published on 12 August 2014 and are effective for the annuat periods commencing on or after $ January 2016.

Al the dale of praparation of these consolidated financial statements, the amendment was not yet approved by the European Union.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 — Sales or contributions of assets between an investor and its associatesfjoint
ventures

The amendments address the conflict between the requirements of IFRS 10 and IAS 28B. Accounling {reaiment depends on whether
the non-assets sold o7 contributed to an associate or a joint venture constilute a business.

The gain or loss resulting from the sale or conkribution to an asseciate or a joint venture of assets that constilule a business is
recognised in full. The gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of a subsidiary that does not constilute a business to an
associate or joint venture is recognised only to the extent of unrelated invesiors’ interests in the associale or joini venlure.

The amendments were published on 11 September 2814 and are effeclive for the annual periods commencing on of after 1 Januaty
2016.

The Group is going 1o adopt the amendment on 1 January 2018.

At the date of preparation of these consclidated financial statements, the amendments were not yet approved
by the European Union.

Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014

In September 2014, the Internatfonat Accounting Standards Board published “Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014", which amend 4
standards: IFRS 5, IFRS 7, |AS 19 and 1AS 34. The amengments are effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The Group is geing to adopt the impravements to iIFRSs on 1 January 2016,

At the date of preparation of these {condensed} financial statements, the amendments to IFRS were not yet approved by the Surcpean
Unien.

Amendments to [AS 1

On 18 December 2014, as part of Disclosure Irdtiative, the International Accounting Standards Board published amendments to 1AS 1,
The amendment is designed to clarify the concept of materiality and explain that if an enlily decides that certain informafion is
immaterial, it should not include it in the financial statemenls, even if its inclusion is as a rule required by ancther IFRS. The amended
IAS 1 clarifies that flems presented in the statement of financial posilion and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income can be disaggregaled and aggregated depending on their materiality. Also, additional guidance is inlroduced on presentation
of subtotals in these statemenis. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The Group is going to adopt the amendment on 1 Sanuary 20186.

15
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At the date of preparation of these consolidated financial statements, the amendments to IFRS were not yet approved by the European
Union.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 - Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

Cn 18 Becember 2014, the laternational Accounting Standards Board issued narow-scope amendments. The amendments to IFRS
10, IFRS 12 and 1A5 28 clarify the requirements for investment entities and infroduces certain facilitations.

The standard clarifies that an entity shoutd measure at fair vatue through profit and loss all its subsidiaries that are investment entities.
Further, a clarification was introduced that exemption from the chbligation to prepare consclidated financial statements applies if the
ultimate parent company prepares pubic accounts, regardless of whether or its subsidiaries are consolidated or measured at fair value
through profit and loss in accordance with IFRS 10 in the financial statements of the uflimale or inlermediate parent. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 20186.

The Group is going 1o adopt the amendmenis on 1 January 2018.

Al the date of preparation of these consolidated financial stalements, the amendments to IFRS were not yet approved by the European
Union.

Consolidation
{a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are any entities (including special purpose companies) whose financial and cperational policies may be controffed by
CPD Group, which is usually connected with its shareholding that ensures more than a half of the voling power in the entity. In the
assessment of whether the CPD Group has a controliing interest in the entity, acgount is taken of existence and influence of any
petential veting rights that at any time can be exercised or converted into equity.

Subsidiaries are fully consciidated from the date they are eslablished or the date CPD Group acquires control over them.
Consclidation stops with the less of centrol.

If necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to adapt the accounting policies of the Group pclicy.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as ihe fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and lizhilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
the obligations arising from the determination of the remuneration element of the conditiona! egresment. Acquisition-related cosls are
recognized in the consclidated profit or loss as incurred. Identifiable assets acguired and ligbilifes and conlingent Eabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. For each acquisition the Group recognizes
the shares do not have con¥rol of the acquiree at fair value or per share by not having coniral of a proportion of net asseis acquired
business,

The surplus of the ameunt transferred for the acquisition, the amount of all non-controlfing shares in a entity being acquired and fair
value as at acquisition date of participation in a capital of an entity being acquired, over the fair value of acquired identifiable net assets
is recognised as goodwill. If the acquisifien cost is fower than the fair value of the net assets of the acquired entity, the different is
reflected direcily in the consolidated profig and less account.

Goodwill represents the surplus of the amount transferced for the acqisition, the amount of all non-conlrolling shares in a entity being
acquired and fair value as at acquisition date of participation in a capitaf of an entity being acquired, before geliing a control, over the
net ameunt recegnised at the dale of acquisition of the value of identifiable acquired assets and liabifities of an acquired subsidiary.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on lransactions belween CPD Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment. Where necessary, the accounting
policies use by the subsidiaries are changed to ensure compliance with the accounting policies operated by CPD Group.
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These consolidated firancial statements include the results and assets and liabilities of the following subsidiaries:

31 grudnia 31 grudnia 2013

Name Country Shareholder 2014

Mandy Investments 8p. z 0.0. Poland Lakia Enterprises Limited t00% 100%
Lakia Enterprises Limited Cyprus CPD S.A. 100% 100%
Lakia Investments Sp. z 0.0 Pdlang Lakia Enterprises Limited 100% 100%
Gastan Investments Sp.z 0.0.  Poland Lakia Enlerprises Limited 69% 100%
Cellic Asset Management Sp.z  Poland Lakia Enterprises Limited 100% 100%

0.0, v likwidacji {fermerly: Liliane
Investments Sp.  0.0.)

Blaise Investments Sg. z 0.0 Poland Lakia Enterprises Limited 100% 100%
Robin Investments Sp. z a.0. Poland Lakia Enterprises Limited 100% 100%
East Europe Property Financing  Sweden CPD S.A. 0% 100%
AB

Hub Devetopments Lid 8p. z 0.0. Poland Lakia Enterprises Limited 160% 100%
Elara Invesiments Sp. z ¢.0. Poland Lakia Enterprises Limited 160% 100%
Celtic Investmenis Limited Cyprus CPD S.A. 100% 100%
Gaston Investments Sp. 2 0.0. Poland L.akia Enterprises Limited 100% 100%
Buffy Hotdings No 1 Ltd Cyprus CPD S.A. 100% 100%
Challange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0. Paland Buffy Holdings No £ Lid 100% 100%
Celtic Trade Park Kit Hungary Celtic Investments Limited 100% 100%
Blaise Gaston Investments Poland Blaise Investments Sp. z 0.0. 49% 99%
Spéika z ograniczong Gaston Invesiments Sp. Z 0.0. 1% 1%
odpowiedzialnoscia Sp.k,

Smart City Spoéika z ograniczong  Poland Challange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0, 95% 89%
odpowiedzialnoscig w Gaston investments Sp. z 0.0./ Smart City 1% 1%
crganizacji Sp.K.(formerly: 1/95 $p.z 0.0,

Gaston Investments Spotka z

agraniczong odpowiedziainoscig

Sp.k.)

2124 Gaslon Invesimenis Poland Chatlange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0. 99% 95%
Spdtka z agraniczong Gaston Invesiments Sp. z o.c. 1% 1%
cdpowiedzialnascig Sp.k.

3493 Gaston Investments Spdtka Pelang Challange Eighteen Sp. z .0. 99% 99%
Z ograniczony Gaston Investments Sp. z o.0. 1% 1%
odpowiedzialnoscig Sp.k.

41113 Gaston Invesiments Poland Challange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0, 99% 9%
Spélka z ograriczong Gaston Investments Sp. z 0.0. 1% %
odpowiedzialnoscig Sp.k.

5/92 Gasten Investments Spélka  Poland Challange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0, 99% 99%
Zograniczong Gaston Investments Sp. % 0.0, 1% 1%
odpowiedzialnoscig Sp.k.

6150 Gasten invesiments Poland Chaltange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0. 99% 9%
Spélka z ograniczong Gaston Investments Sp. 2 0.0. 1% 1%

odpewiedzialnosdy Sp.k.
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Name

7120 Gaslen Invesimenis
Spdélka z ograniczong
odpowiedzialnoscig Sp.k.
8/126 Gastor Investments
Spotka z ograniczong
odpowiedziainoscig Sp.k.
97151 Gaston Investments
Spétka z ograniczong
odpowiedzialnodcig Sp.k.
104165 Gaston Investmenis
Spokaz agrariezong
odpowiedzialnoscia Sp k,
111162 Gaston Investments
Spéika z ograniczong
adpowiedzialnogcia Sp.k.
12/132 Gaslon Investments
Spdfka z egraniczona
odpowiedzialnoscia Sp.k.

13/155 Gaston Investments
Spélka z ograniczong
adpowiedzialnoseig Sp.k,
14119 Gaston Investments
Spotka z ograniczeng
odpowiedzialnoscig Sp.k.
16/88 Gaston [pvesiments
Spdlka z egraniczeng
odpowiedzialnoscig Sp.k.
151467 Gaslon Invesiments
Soélka z ograniczong
odpowiedzialnoscia Sp.k.

18 Gaston Invesiments Spolkaz
ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig

Spk.

19/97 Gaston Invesiments
Spoika z ograniczona
odpowiedzialnosciy Sp.k,
201140 Gasten Invesiments
Spélka z ograniczona
adpowiedrialnoseia Sp.k,
Belise Investments Sp. z 0.0.
Anlige nvestments Sp. z 0.0.

Smart City Sp. z 0.0.

Changes in the CPD Group structure

In the finangial year ended 31 December 2014, the following changes took place in the structure of CPD Group:

Country
Poland

Poland

Poland

Potand

Poland

Poland

Paoland

Paland

Poland

Poland

Potand

Poland

Poland

Poland
Poland
Poland

Sharehotder
Challange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0,
Gaslon Investiments Sp. z a.0.

Challange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0.
Gaston lnvestments Sp. z o.c.

Challange Eighieen Sg. 2 0.0.
Gaston Investments Sp. z ¢.0.

Challange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0.
Gaston investments Sp. z 0.0.

Challange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0.
Gasten Invesiments Sp. z 0.0.
Chaltange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0

Gasten Investments Sp. z 0.0,

Challange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0
Gaston [nvestments Sp. z 0.0.

Challange Eighteea Sp. 2 ¢.¢.
Gaston investments Sp. 2 0.0.

Challange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0.
Gaston Investments Sp. z 0.0,

Challange Eighteen Sg. z 0.0.
Gaston Investments 8p.z 0.0

Challange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0
Gaslen invesiments Sp. z 0.0.
Challange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0,
Gaston Investments Sp. z 0.0.
Challange Eighteen Sp. z 0.0,
Gaston Investments Sp. z 0.0,
Lakia Enterprises Limited

Lakia Enterprises Limited
Lzkia Enterprises Limited

31 grudnia 31 grudnia 2013
2614
99% 99%
1% 1%
99% 99%
1% 1%
99% 99%
1% 1%
99% 95%
1% 1%
89% 99%
1% 1%
99% 9%
1% %
95% 99%
1% 1%
99% 99%
1% 1%
99% 99%
1% 1%
99% 95%
1% 1%
89% 95%
1% 1%
99% 99%
1% 1%
99% 99%
1% 1%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 0%

«shares were sold to the subsidiary EEPF of Sweden {see Note 27 for delails cn impact of this transaction on consofidated profit)

« Smari Cily 5p. 2 0.0. was established, with Lakia Enterprises Limited {Cyprus) as its sole shareholder

« 1% stake in Smart Cily Spolka z ograniczong odpowiedzialno$ciq w organizacji Sp.k.(formerly:1/95 Gaston Investments Spotka z
ograniczong cdpowiedzialnodcia Sp.k.) was sold by Gasten Investments Sp. z 0.0, te Smart City Sp. z 0.0,

- 100 out of 320 shares of Gastan Investments Sp. z 0.0. were sold, as a result of which, as at 31.12.2014, CPD Group had 69% in that
entity {(see Note 27 for details on impact of this transaction on consolidated profit)
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Valuation of FX positions

(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statemenls of each of CPD Group's entilies are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entily operates (the "funclional currency™). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Polish zloty
("PLN™), which is the parent company’s functional currency and the CPD Group’s presentation currency.

(b} CPD Group Companies

The results and financial position of all the CPD Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a funclional currency different from ihe presentation currency are translaled into the presentalion currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the ¢losing rate at the date of that balance sheat

(i) income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasongsble approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the fransaction dales, in which case income and expenses are transtated at the dates of the
transaclions); the profit and loss transaction are valued using the average exchange rate for the financial period,except for profit from
sales of investment properties and inventories, which are translated into PLN using the exchange rate from the date of transaction, and

{iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in olher comprehensive income.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the profit o loss as part of the gain of 1055 on sale.
Goodwill and fair vatue adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are ireated as assels of the foreign entity and
translated at the ciosing rate at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange differences are recognized in olher comprehensive income.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by ihe consolidated
companies of CPD Group, is classified as investment property. Investment property comprises freehold land, freehold buildingsand
land held under operating leases (perpetual usufruct}).

Land, for which fulure plans are uncertain, are classified as investment property. The future plans may be dependeni upon planning
constraints and thus remain uncertain until a project design is definitive and the relevant permits are obtained. Transfers to, or from,
investment property are made when, and only when, there is a confirmed change in its purpose. For a lransfer from inventories {0
invastment propesty {hat will be carried at fair value, any difference between the fair value of the properly at that dale and its previous
carrying amount shall be recognised in profit or foss. For a transfer from investment property caried at fair value lo inventories, the
properly’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting in accordance with IAS 2 shall be its fair value at the date of change in use.

Land heid under operating feases is classified and accounted for as invesimen? property when the rest of the definilion of invesiment
property is met, The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance tease.

Investrnent property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaclion costs. The cost is increased by external financing
directly atiributable to development of investment properiies calculated for the period when active development works are materdally in
progress.
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After initial recognition, investment properly is carried at fair value. Fair value is calculated using cash flow projections based onactive
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. These valuations are
prepared annually by independent professional appraisers Savills Sp. z o.0. The invesiment properly porifolic is appraised in
accordance with RICS Valuafion ~ Professional Standards incorporating the Inlernationat Valuation Standards published by the Royal
Institulion of Chartered Surveyers {RICS). Valualion fees are not relaled to the preperty value and valuation resuits,

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases and assumplions about rental
income from fullre leases in the light of current market condiliens. The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the properly. Some of those cutflows are recognised as a liability, including finance lease liabilities
in respest of land ¢lassified as investment property. Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefils associated with the itern will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Changes in fair values are recorded in the profit or lass within "Net gain from fair value adjustment on investment property”.

Gains and lasses on dispesals of property are determined by comparing the gains with the carrying amount and are recognised in
"gains/(losses) on dispesal of investment property” in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost less depreciation. The historical cost includes the expenditure directly
assaciated with acquisition of the assets.

Any subsequent expenditure is reflected in the carrying amount of the asset or is recognised as a separale asset (where applicable)
only when it is likely that the asset will generate economic benefits for the Group, and the cost of such an asset can be reliably
estimaled. Any other expenditure on improvement and maintenance is carried in profit or loss in the accounting period in which it was
incurred.

Depreciation of tangible assets {or compenents thereof, if any) is calculated using the straight-ine method to allecate their inftial value,
less residual value, over the assel's estimated useful lives. The residual value and the eseful life of the tangible assels is reviewed
{and changed if necessary) at each balance sheet date. Tangible assets are deprecialed over their estimated useful lives (three to five
years).

Where the carrying amount of the tangible asset is greater than ils estimated recoverable amount, the asset's carnying amount is
inmediately written down to the recoverable amount.

The gains or tosses on disposal of tangible assets are determined by comparing ike inflow from their sale with their carrying amount,
and are reflected in the profit or loss of the pericd when the disposal took place.

Leases

(a} A group company is tha lessor

Properties feased out under operating leases are included in investment propedy in the bafance sheet. Paymenls made under
operaling leases are recognized in the profit or foss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

{b) A group company is fhe lessee

Leases in which a significant porlion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by another parly, the lessor, are classified as
operating leases, Payments, including prepayments, made under operaling leases (net of any incenlives received from the lessor) are
charged o the profit or loss on a siraight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Land that is keld by CPD Group under an cperaling iease has been classified and accounted for as invesiment property onfy if all
reguired conditions are met:

- the rest of the definition of investment property is met

- the cperating [ease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease in accordance with IAS 17 Leases, and

-~ the CPD Group uses the fair value model set out in JAS 40 for the asset recognized.
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In this case finance feases are capitalised at the time of commencement of the lease at the lower of: the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the ability and finance
charges using an effeclive interest rate, The corresponding perpetual usufruct obligations, net of finance charges, are induded in other
fong-term liabilties.

Intangible assets, excluding goodwill

Intangible asseis consist of computer software licences, The expenditure on acquired licences is capitalised with regard to the cost of
acquisition of the software and {he cost of ensuring operability of the software. Software licences are amortised over their estimated
ugeful life from 3 {o 5 years on a straight-line basis,

Goodwill

The rules for goodwili measurement at the time of acquisition of a subsidiary are presented in Note 2.2.

Each year goodwill is tested for impairment and reflected at ¢ost less cumulated impairment charges. Impairrnent of goedwill is nat
reversible. Profits and losses on disposal of the entily include the carrying amount of the goodwill of the disposed entity,

For the sake of impairment test, goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating units. The allocation relates to the cash-generating units
{or group of such units) which are expecied to derive benefits from the merger that gave rise to the goodwill.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of a foreign entity and any adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabifities tofalr value,
arising from the acquisition of a foreign entity, are trealed as assels and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at closing rate.
Foreign exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.1

Assets with undefined useful life, such as goodwill, are not amortised, but are gach year tested for impairment. The amortised assels
are tested for impairment each time any indications of impairment emerge, The impairment is recognised in the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of; fair value of assels decreased
by their cost of sale or value-in-use. For the purpose of impairment test, assels are grouped at lhe lowest level at which separate
identifiable cash flows occur (cash generating units). Non-financial assets olher than goodwitl, for which impairment was idenlified, are
at each balance sheet date tested for indicaliens that would permit reversat of the impairment charge.

Financial assets

The CPD Group ¢lassifies ils financial assets in the category of loans and receivables. The classification is based on the purpose of
acquisition of financial assels, Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates
this designation at every balance sheel date.

Financial assels are removed from the books when the rights to the related cash flows have expired or have been iransferred, and
CPD Group has transferred essentially the whele risks and benefits from their ownership.

Loans and receivables are financial assets other than derivatives, wilh determined or determinable payments, not quoted on active
market and with no intention of frading. They are included in current assets unless their maturity date is fonger than 12 months from the
balance sheet date. Assets with maturity date longer than 12 months are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are
included in "Trade and other receivables” in the consolidated statement of financial posilion,

At the end of each reporting pedod, CPD Group tests its financial assels or groups of financial assels for objective indications of
impairment,
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Loans and receivables are initially measured &t fair value and subsequently are carried at amortised cost using the effectiveinterest
method, less impairment. impairment of trade receivables and foans is established when there is an objective evidence that CPD
Group will not be able to collect all individual of greup amounts due according to theoriginal terms of the receivables, Significant
financial difficulties of the deblor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable or loan is impaired. The impairment amount is determined as a
difference between the book value of the asset and the present value of estimaled future cash flows discounted using the original
effeclive interest rale for the particular financial asset,

Subsequent recaveries of amounts previously writlen off are credited in the profit and loss.

The category comprises afso cash and ¢ash equivalents. Cash and ¢ash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, other
highly liquid short-tezen investments with orfginal maturity up to three months.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories censist of properties awaiting or in the course of development for sale and residential house bullding projects andsites held
{or sale during normal course of business.

Inventory items are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value on a first-in, first-out basis (FIFO) or market. The net realisable
value is the estimated sales price in 1he ordinary course of business, less the estimated cosls of completion and selling expenses.

Cosls retating to the construction of a project are included in inventaries as follows:
+ costs incurred relating to projects or a phase of a project which are not available for sale {work in progress)
+ costs incurred relating to units unscld associated with a project or a phase of a project that is avaitable for safe {finishedgoods).

Project construction costs include:

a) land or leasehold rights for land

b} construction costs paid to subcontraciors

c) planning and design costs

d} borrowing costs to the extent they are directly attributable to the develcpment of the project
) professionat fees atiributable to the development of the project

f) construction overheads and other direclly related costs.

2,13 Assets held for sale

Investment property held for sale is classified as non-current assets held for sale under IFRS 5. Non-current assets are classified as
assets held for sale if thele carryving amount is recovered principally through a sale iransaction rather than threugh a continuing use.
These assels are available for immediate sale in its present conditien, and the sale is high probable within next 12 months.

The sale is delermined to be highly probable if:

- the management commitied o a plan to sell the invesiment property

- active plan {o locate a buyer and complete the plan was initiated

- investment property was actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation ta its current fair value

- the sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification
- itis unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan wili be withdrawn.

The CPD Group measures investment property classified as held for sale at fair value. Other non-current assets (or disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of: its carrying ameunt and fair value less costs lo sell.

If the CPD Group has classified an asset {or disposal group} as held for sate, but the criteria set above are no longer met, theGroup
ceases fo classify the asset {or disposal group) as asset held for sale.

2.14 Share capital

Qrdinary shares are classified as share capital,
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2.15 Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised iniliafly at fair value and subsequently measured at amorlised cost using the effective interest method,
In case of current liabililies amorised cost value equals nominal value.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized inilially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized
cost.

Boerrawings are classified as current liabiliies unfess the Group has an unconditional right fo defer setilement of the liabiiity for at east
12 months after the balance sheet date.

217 Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifving assel are capitalized during the period of fime that is required
tocomplete and prepare the asset for its intended use.

2.18 Complex financial instruments

2.19

Complex financial instruments issued by the Group include convertible bonds that can be converted inte equity, at the election of their
holder, provided that the number of shares to be issued is not conditional on changes in their fair value.

Wilh regard fo financial instruments, in the fair value of an instrument is different than the transaction price, and the fair value is based
on market data, then the enlity recognizes "day-one-loss” and accounts for it depending on the nature cf ihe transaction. In the case of
bonds that are converlible inlo equity, where the issue is fully placed with the Company’s shareholders, the day-cne-loss is reflected in
equity.

The liability component of the complex financial instrument is initially carried al fair value of a simitar liability, to which no conversion
option relates. The equity component is initially carried at the different between fair value of the complex financial instruments as a
whele and the fair value of the liability component. Any direclly atiributable transaction costs are included in the measurement of the
liability and equity component pro-rata to their initizl carrying amounts.

Cn initial recagnilion, the liability component of the complex financial instrument is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate. The equily component of the complex financial instruments is not measured on first recognition until conversion or expiry. The
equity component is af the same an embedded derivalive that at the balance sheet date is measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

Embedded derivatives

Where a financial instrument is acquired, which contains an embedded derivative,

with the effect that afl or some of the cash fiows of the such instrument vary in a way

similar to a stand-aione derivative, the embedded

derivative is recognised separately from the underlying contract. This takes place when the following
conditions are met jointly.

~the financial instrument is not ¢lassified a5 assels held for frading or avaifable for sale,
whose revaluation effecls are recognised in financial revenues or costs of the reporting period

- the nature of the embedded instrument and related risks do not directly relate to the nature of the underlying contract
and related risks

- a sepa‘ate instrument, whose nature correspends to the characteristics of the embedded derivalive

would meet the definilion of a derivative

- the fair value of the embedded derivative can be refiably estimated.

Embedded derivatives are recognised similarly as stand-alone derivatives
that are not deemed as hedging instruments.

An embedded derivative is classified irto assels or liabilities measured 2t fair value through
profit or loss.

2.20 Income tax

Current tax is calculated based on the tax result {the tax base - in accordance with tocal tax laws) of the reporiing period. Profit (loss)
for tax purposes differs from the net profit {loss) due to exclusion of non-taxable income and temporary costs constituting temporary
deductible cosls and expenses and income items that will not be subject to taxation. Fax is calculated based on the tax rates
applicable in a given financial year.

The 1ax is recognised in the profit and fess account excluding the period in which it relates direclly to the items recognised in other
comprehensive income or in equity. In this case the fax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or in equity, as appropriate.
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2.21 Deferred income tax

Deferrgd income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consclidated financial slalements and carried forward tax losses. However, the
deferced Income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liabifity in a transaction other than a business
combination that at {he lime of ike transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is delermined
using tax rates (and laws} that have been enacled or substantially enacted by the balancesheet dale and are expected to apply when
the refated deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liabilityis setiled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized 1o the extent that it is probable thal fulure taxable profit wil be available againstwhich the
temporary differences can be ufilized.

2.22 Employee henefits

a) Pension obfigation

Polish Companies of the CPDR Group make contributions to the Polish Govemmental retirement benefit scheme at theapplicabte rate
¢during {he period based on gross salary payments {the "State Plan"}. The State Plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, i.e. the CPD
Group is only cbliged fo pay the contributions as they fall due based upon a percentage of salary and if the Group ceases o emplay
members of the State Plan, it will kave no obligation to pay any additional benefits. The State Flan is a defined contribution plan. The
expense for the contributions is charged to the consolidated profit or loss in the same period as the related satary expense.

According to the adopled principle, no provisions for relirement benefits are created that would correspond to a monthly salary in
accordance with the Labour Code. Potential provisions would not have any material impact on the firancial statements. If they do
oceur, they will be recogrised on a cash basis.

b) Share-base paymerils

The Group cperates a remuneralion programme in the form of subscription warranis entifling their holders to purchase shares at a
preferential price. The qualifed programme is setlled in eguily instruments. The fair value of the employes senvices received in
exchange for the grant of the warranls is recognised as an expense and amortised over the vesling period. At the same time, the
Group records an increase in resesves.

At each balance sheet date, the enlity adjusts ils estimates about the number of warranis expecied lo be exercised. The effects of
adjusiments to the original estimates, if any, are recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjusiment 1o owner's equity.

2.23 Provisions

Pravisions are recognised only where CPD has a legal or customary cbligation arising from past events, and it is likely that an outow
of resourges will be required to meel such otligation, and its value can be reliably estimated.

If there is a number of similar cbligations, the likelihood of outflow of resources to meet such obligations shall be determined in
relation to the particular category of obligations as a whole, A provision is recognised even if there is fow likelihood of outflow of
resources in relation to a single item of a parlicular category of obligations. Provisions are recognised at the current value of the
expenditure which is expected to be incurred to meet the obfigation.



2.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue includes proceeds from the sale of inventories, rental income, service charges, property management charges and income
from real estate advisoty services.,

The CPD Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that fulure
economicbenefits will fiow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as described below. The
CPD Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Rental income

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incenlives granfed
are recognised as an integral part of the totaf rental income. Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss over the lease term ona
straight line basis as a reduction in rental income.

(t) Service and managemenf charges

Service and management charges are recognised in the accounting pesiod in which the services are rendered.

() Revenue from the sale of residantial unils and office buildings

Revenues from the sale of residential units and office buildings are recognised upon transfer to the buyer of the significant risksand

rewards (ransfer of ownership after signing a notarial deed) of the residential unit or office building, providing that a vatid building
occupancy permit has been oblained by CPR Group,

Advances received relaled to pre-sales of residential units, which represent deferred income, are deferred to the extent that they do
not meet the criteria to be recognised as revenue.

{d) Inlaresfincome
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

2.25 Expenses

Cast of sales is recognised in the amount of total capitalised cos!s of inventories sold.

Construction costs connected with products that have not been sold are capitalised in inventory as work in pregress or finished goods,
depending on how advanced their construction is. If it is expected that CPD Group may incur a loss on the inventories, 1he refated
impairment is immediately recognised as an expense. [nventory relating 4o units sold is expensed as cost of sales in the same period
as the related sale.

Cost of sales includes mainly the cost of goods sold and other direct property operating expenses.

Property-related administrative costs include day-to-day property administration, ulifities, property taxes, maintenance cos's, insurance
premiums, valuation fees, etc. They are expensed as incurred.

Qther direct property operating expenses, which do not include general and administralive expenses, are expensed as incurred.

Income from services recharged to tenants and relating o the gost of provision ¢f such services are shown separalely as CPD Group
does not act as an agent.

2.26 Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as 2 liability in the financial statements of CPD Group at the end of
the period in which the dividends are approved by the General Meeting.



2.27 Interest expense

Interest expense for horrowings are recognised within "Finance costs” in the consolidaled profit or loss using the effective interest rale
method, except for borrowing cost which is capitalised in the cost of the qualifving asset,

The effective interest melhod is a method of calculating the amorlised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating
Interest income or interest expense during the period. The effeclive interest rate is the rate that exaclly determinesthe present value of
the discounted estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shoderperiod, if necessary, fo the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial fiability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimales cash
flows considering all contractua terms of the financial instrument {eg prepayment oplicns) but doss not include future fosses. The
calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the confract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction cosis and all cther premiums or discounts.

2.28 Share-base payments

The Group recognises an expense of goods or services acquired as consideration for the share-based payment when they are
received. The corresponding entry in the accounling records will either Se a lizbility or an increase in the equity of the company
depending upon whether the fransaction is to be settled in cash or equity shares.

The Group values measures the services received or acquired in a share-based payment iransaction at fair value and amortises the
over the vesting period.

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The CPD Group is exposed to the following financial risks in connection with its operations: market risk {including: including: currency
risk, risk of changes in the fair values or cash fiows due lo changes in interest rates), credit risk and Rouidity risk. Financial risks refate
fo the following firancial instruments: loans and borrewings, trade receivables, cash and cash eguivalents, frade payables and other
liabilities. The accounting principles conceming the abave financial instruments are described in Note 2. CPD Group's overall
programme of risk management focuses on unpredictability of financial markels and seeks to minimize the potential adverse impact of
unforeseen events on the Group's performance.

(a} Market risk
{) Currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to a risk of changes in foreign exchange rates resulting from changes in the
balances denomirated in currencies other that the functionat currency of the parties involved. This risk concemns in particutar the
significant amounts of bank loans raised by subsidiaries, and denominated in EUR, with PLN being the functional currency.
Intercompany setffements are eliminated completely from these consolidaled financial statements, with the exception of
foreignexchange gains and losses affecting the consotidated profit or loss. The risk of changes in exchange rates arises when fulure
commercial fransactions or assets and liabilities recognized are expressed in currencies cther than the Company’s or ils subsidiaties’
functional currency.

The Management Board of the CPD Group moenitors the fluctuations in exchange rales on an on-going basis and responds adequately
to the situalion. The currency sisk arising in connection with foreign currency debt servicing is minimized by generating income from
rental and negoetiating proceeds from the sate of properties held from sale in he currency in which the investment loan was received.
At present the CPD Group is not engaged in any hedging transactions; however, this could ¢hange should the Management Board
decide that the situation so requires.

Year ended Year ended
31 grudnia

M4 31 grudnia 2013

Debt in foreign curency - EUR 156 594 94 045

Expected change in PLN/EUR exchange rale +f=1% +-1%

Tax shield 0 0

Impact on net profit/(loss) 0 0

{if) Price risk
The CPD Group is exposed to price risk in connection with the value of properies and to the risk of rental income, which are not
financial risks.

(i) Inlerest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk the CPD Group is exposed fo in connection with changes in market interest rates. In the case of CPD
Group, the risk of changes in interest rafes is related to long-term bank loans (Mote 13). Variable interest rate loans expose CPD
Group to the risk of fluciuations in future cash flows. CPD Group does not use interest rate hedges. The Management Board keeps
track of fluctualions in interest rales and responds adequately.
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Year ended Year ended
31 grudnia

2014 31 grudnia 2013

Variable interest rate loans 113714 94 045
Cost of interest 5382 4098
Assumed change in interest rales +f-1pp +[-1pp
Impact on the change on the cost of interest 1137 840
Tax shield 216 179
Impact on net profit/{ioss) 921 762

Trade receivables and other receivables and liabilities as at 31 December 2014 bear nointerest and they malure within a year.

(&) Creditrisk

Credit risk arises on cash and cash equivalents and receivables. It is mitigated by depositing cash with highly reliable banks(mainly
HSBEC, m-Bank, BZ WBK, PKO SA). The Company uses banks and other financial institutions with the following IDR ratings from an
independent raling agency (Fitch):

- HEBS - AA-

- PKO 54 - A-

- BZ WBK - BRB+

- m-bank - A

With respect to rental receivables, the Group has collateral in place in the form of cash deposits or bank guarantees and, in the case of
receivables in respect of the sale of bulldings, inthe form of a deposit with an independent agent. The Group is also exposed to credit
risk due to the purchase of unsecured bonds. Credit risk relating to unsecured receivables is assessed based on: evalualion o the
creditor's financial proposals, past cocperation experience and other factors.

No all receivables of the Group are secured with deposits or guarantees. The Group revises the value of receivables taking into
acceunt the likelihood of their payment and recegnises adequate impairment charges.

Impairment charges are recognised as follows:

- for amounts overdue from 91 to 180 days, 50% of the value of the overdue receivables

~ for amounts overdue above 180 days, 100% of the value of the overdue receivables.

{c} Liquidify risk

Liquidity risk arises when the due dates of assets and liabifities do not match. This can raise profitability, but also increases the risk of
less. CPD Group applies procedures designed to reduce such losses by maintaining the proper leve! of cash and olher liquid assels
and the proper access to credit facilities. The level of liquidity of the CPD Greup is monitored by the Management Board on the day-to-
day basis.

Current liabililies amounted to PLN 87,323,000 (including bank loan Tiabilities amounting to PLN 71,493,000) and exceeded current
assels by PLN 52,174,000 as at 31 December 2014. Details of credit fiabilites disclosed in the financial statements as at 31 December
2014 as financial credits and the Board's assessment of related risks are included in note i3 'Credits and Eoans incluging Financia
Leases.”

The table below shows financial liabilities of the Group by due dates according to time remaining 1o the centractual due date on the
balance sheet date. The amounis shown in the table are compoesed of non-discounted coniractual cash fiows:

As at 31 December 2014 Less than 1 year 1-5 years Qver 5 years
Credils and leases 73863 19125 208 346
Trade payables and other payables 15548 1494 o

89 509 20619 208 346
As at 31 December 2013 Less than 1 year 1-5 years Over S years
Credits and [eases 99 079 6941 121 462
Trade payables and olher payables 14 915 a4 0

113 994 7325 121462
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3.2 Capital Management

The purpose of the CPD Group capital management is to preserve CPD Group's ability to continue business 50 as to be able to
generate retura for the shareholders and other stakeholders, the cost of the capital being optimized at the same time,

CPD Group may change the amount of declared dividends payable to shareholders, repay the equity to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assels in order to reduce debt in order 10 maintain or modify the structure of the capital.

The financing structure ratio reflecting the structure of the capital is calculated 2s nel debt divided by folal capital. Net debl is
calculated as the tetal of credits and [oans including current and non-current credils and loans disclosed in the consolidated balance
sheet, trade payables and other payables divided by cash and cash equivalenls. Tolal ¢apital is caleulated as equity discfosed in the
censclidated balance sheet afeng with net debt,

The strategy of CPD Group is to maintain the financing structure ratio below 40%.
31 grudnia 31 grudnia 2013

2014
Kredyty razem {nota 12} 142 977 116 072
Lizbility under bonds issued {ncte 13). 42 880 0
Zobowiazania handlowe i inne (nota 11) 17 324 15 154
Pomniejszene o: Srodki pieniezne i ich ekwiwalenty {nota 9) -i8 770 -11.981
Net Debt 184411 119 845
Equity 404 493 329 362
Total Equity 588 904 449 207
Financing Structure Ratio 31,3% 26,7%

The financing siruciure ratio rose by 4.6 pp compared Lo the preceding year,

Major Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Major estimates and judgments are based on past experience and other factors including anticipation of fulure events ihat seem
reasonable in a given case. Accounting estimates and judgments are assessed on a regular basis.

The Management Board makes estimates and adopts assumpiions concerning the fulure. Accounting estimates so obtained will
seldom match actual results by their very nature. Estimates and assumptions invelving significant risk of & major adjustment of the
carrying value of assets and liabilities during the following Snanciat year being required are discussed below.

Calculation of Fair Value of Embedded Derivatives

The comgany issued bonds designed for the existing shareholders on 26 September 2014, Financial details of the bonds issued are
provided in note 14 (and in the stand-alene FS) to these financial statements. The bonds issued involved an embedded derivative
instrument, ramely, the option of conversion of the bonds into shares at a fixed rate of PUN 4.38 per share. As ihe bonds were issued
in a currency (EUR) different that the functional currency of the company (PLN}, the embedded derivalive involved a currency cap ,
namely, conversion of value of shares received at the conversicn date rate not exceeding, however, EUR 1 = PLN 4.1272.

The fair value of the embedded derivative was estimated at level 1 using a combination of fwo approaches: binomial frees in the share
price variation part and the Monte Carlo approach adopted for the purposes of analysis of volatility of exchange rales.

Assumptions underlying the pricing model include:

- adjustment of the issuer credit risk discount curve: 8%;

- volatility of issuer share price: 65% based on historic quotations of shares of CPD S.A.;

- fixed bond-to-share conversion rate: PLN 4.38;

- exchange rate cap: EUR 1 =PLN 4.1272;

- opporturity to convert bonds te shares from 26 Sepiember 2015 to the day falling 5 days before the maturity date, i.e. 22 Seplember
2017,

The liability under he embedded derivalive amounted to PLN 18.8MM as at 31 December 204 and was the difference between the
price of bonds based on the fair value approach presented above and the value of bonds exclusive of the derivative established based
on the depreciated cost using the effective interest rate approach.

Calculation of Fair Value of investment Class Real Properties

The fair value of investment class real properlies recognized in the balance sheet is calculated based on pricing established annually
by Savills Sp. z 0.0. - {hird party experts - as per Practice Statements of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors® (RICS) Appraisal
and Valuation Standards (the ‘Red Book') pubfshed in February 2003 and valid as of 1 May 2003. Pricing {fees are not related to the
vatue of the real properlies or the cutcome of pricing. Bearing in mind the market environment as at the balance shest date, the
Management Board reviewed and approved experts' assumptions underlying the pricing approaches applied.
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4 Major Accounting Estimates and Judgments (continued)

CPI Group distinguishes the following ¢l. of assels included in ils real property portfolio:

(i) non-developed fand o land developed with tenement houses disclosed as inventory in the consolidated financial statements and
priced at acquisition price or at cost not exceeding their net sate price; these mainly include 1and in Jaktordw, Czosnéw, Lesznowola
and Nowa Piasecznica as well as tenement houses in Warsaw and tédz;

the Group has these real properiies valued annually at fair value as at the balance sheet date and decides to make impairment write-
offs: details of changes in inventory made during the year are provided in note 8;

(i) investment class real properties featuring significant rent income (3 office buildings in Warsaw);

{ill) investment ¢lass land in the district of Ursus in Warsaw designed for development with houses and shops as per the local zoning
plan in force;

{iv} invesiment ¢lass fand in ibe disirict of Ursus in Warsaw designed for development with houses and shops as per the local zoning
plan in force and investment class kand in Wolbérz,

The real property tlasses listed in paragraphs (ii)-(iv) are shown in the financial statement under the 'Investment Class Real
Properties’ header and priced al fair value, Fair value changes are recognized in the result under the 'lnvestment Class Real Property
Valualion Result’ header,

The Group valued individuel reat property classes using the following approaches:

Nen-developed land and land developed with tenement houses were valued using the comparative method (comparison in pairs). The
comparative methed consists in finding out the value of a real properiy asseming that such value is equal to prices obtained for simitar
properties traded in the markel. The value of real properiies is adjusted according to their differentialing features and stated taking into
account volatility of prices in time. The comparative method is used, if prices of real properlies similar o the proparty valued are
known,

The land lo be developed with heuses and shops was valued based on the fellowing assumptions:
- the useful area of apartments to be built amounts to 521,097 sq.m.;

- the useful area of shops to be built on ground floors of the houses amounts to 50,075 sq.m.;

- the useful area of offices to be built amounts to 17,680 sg.m.; the assumed rent for the office space to amount to EUR 11 per sq.m.
and the capitalizaticn rate to be ¥.70%.

The land to be developed with houses and shops was valued using the comparalive method {comparisen in pairs). The income
approach {investment method) was applied to properlies generating income. The income approach consists in defining the value of a
real properiy based on the assumplion that the buyer will pay the price depending on the anticipated income to be eamed on the same
real preperty provided thal such price will nol exceed that of another property featuring the same profitability and risk that it could buy.

The value of the real properlies was calculated based on the average transaction prices of real properiies similar to the property
valued adjusted by fransaction features considered by potential market actors including without imitation situation as well as size and
legal status of the Jand. The valuation reflects diversity of properties and their anticipated use as per provisions of the zoning plan.
The price per square meter is the variable affecting the valuation result the most,

The investment method was applied 1o the reaf property generating rent income that can be defined based on the analysis of rental or
lease market rates in order o delermineg its market value, When direct capitalization is used, the value of areal propertyis the quotient
of a stabte yearly income flow obtainzble from the reat property valued and the capitalization rate.

Net future operating income were estimated separately for each investment glass propery based on rental zgreements existing as at
the balance sheet date, contracted income (or, in the case of IRIS preperty, parlly based on the market conditions for a given property
as established by a third party expert} and the expected cost of operation of the properties. Useful areas underlying the calculations
are based on construction documents in force. As mest rentals concluded by the Group are expressed in EUR, the investraent class
properiies were valued in EUR and values were then franslated into PLN using the NBP average rale as al the balance sheet date.
Capitalization rates were estimated by third party experts separately for each major investment class properly taking into account
situstion and type of the properly. The capitalization rate is reviewed at least annually by third party properly experts and the net
cperating income is updated based on rentals in forge.

The table below includes information about methods used for and assumplions underlying the valualions of the invesiment class
preperties at fair value along with information about major unnotceable enlry data » 31 December 2014,
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4 Major Accounting Estimates and Judgments (continued)

valuation
methaod / fair
velue valuation anticipated rent
Real Property Class leve! capitalization rate rates per sq.m. discount rate
offica buildings income method 5 70/ g o5y 9.26-11.50 NiA
Hevel 3
residual
Land in Ursus designeg for gn:::iod Ievel
housing, commercial and public . N/A NiA 7.00%
urposes comgarative
p method / level
2

The table betow includes information about methods used for and assumptions underlying the valuations of the investment class

properties at fair value along with information about major unnoticeable entry data - 31 December 2013.

valualion
meihod / fair
value valuation anticipated rent
Real Property Class jevel capilatization rate rates per sg.m. discount rate

investment
office buildings method f leve! 1.7% -9.25% 9.93-11.50 N/A

3
L.and in Ursus designed for comparative
housing, commercial and public  approach / NiA N/A NJA
purposes tevel 2

In 2014, the Group changed the melhod of valuation of invesiment class properties situated in Ursus compared to the preceding year,
As {he zoning plan covering the area was adopted in July 2014, the Group shifted from the comparative method to the mixed approach
(residuat method) as far as the land to be built-up with houses and shops. The use of the said method resuited in valuation of that part
of the property as the difference between the value of the real property after the completion of the project {as per Group plans
concerning implementaticn of housing projects based an the purpose of each plot of land as per the zening plan adopled) and the
average cost of implementation taking into account investor's earnings on the market of similar real properies. The shiét in the
valuation method caused the maovernent of that property class from level 2 to fevel 3 where entry data ungerlying valuation of the asset
group are based on unnoticeable data.

The effect of the vatuation method on the fair value of real properiies as at 31 December 2014 is described in note 5 'lnvestment Class
Real Properties.'

b} ingome Tax

CPD Group is an income tax payer in muitiple countries. Determination of global amount of income tax liabilities requires a big amount
of judgment. There are many transactions and calculations where the amount of tax is encertain. CPD Group recognizes expected
doubtfuf 1ax liabilities based on an estimation whelher or not additional tax will be reguired. K the final tax selilements differ from the
amounts nitially recognized, the differences affect current and deferred income {ax assels and liabilities in the period where the
amount of tax is finatly determined.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized 10 the extent thal it is probable that fulure taxable profig will be available againstwhich the
temporary differences can be utilized.
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CPD S.A.

Consolidated financial statemerds for the pericd from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014

(All amounts in PLN thousand unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

5 Investment Class Real Properties

Ended Year Ended Year
31 grudnia 2014 31 grudnia 2013
Balance at the beginning of the year/period 442793 438 016
Capital expenditures 16 547 9776
Disposal of real property 0 (15 100)
0 {2 084)
Perpetual usufruct liabilities tied to the real property sold
Movement in capitalized financial liability 7 236 (7)
Transfer of road plots of fand in Ursus to the municipality of Warsaw 41 485 0
114 810
) . . . . (10 702)
Net profit/(loss) from revaluation of investment class properties to fair value
including the effect of valuation of fransfer of plots of land in Ursus as at 31
December 2014 (41 485) 0
Transfer fromito assets to be sold (Note 26) 0 22894
581 386 442 793

Investment class real properties cwned by CPD Group were valued by Savills Sp. z 0.0., international third party experts who provided
valuations as at 31 Becember 2014 and 31 December 2013 as per the following standards and regulations: Practice Statements of
the Royal [nstitution of Chartered Surveyors' (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Standards (the '‘Red Book') published in February 2003
and valid as of 1 May 2003 and Professional Standards incorporating the Internatienal Valuation Standards published by RICS and
valid as of 30 March 2012.

Based on valuations provided by Savills sp. z 0.0, the total fair value of real properties owned by the Group and disclosed under the
'Investment Class Real Properties' header in the consolidated financial statements amounted to PLN 552MM at the end of 2014
{which value does not include the perpetual usufruct liability of PLN 20MM) exceeding the same value disclosed at the end of 2013
by PLN 132MM. The rise in value of properties was recognized in the investment class real property valuation result that was positive
and amounted to PLN 115MM at the end of 2014.

The increase in value of the Ursus project contributed the most to the rise in value of the real property portfolio of the Group. The
adoption of the zening plan covering the area on 3 July 2014 was the decisive factor increasing the investment value of the entire
area. CPD Group also transferred some of the Ursus properties, namely, the road land, to the municipality of Warsaw free of charge
in 2014. The total area of plets of land transferred or promised to be transferred on the zoning plan adoption date amounted to 9 ha
and its total value amounted to PLN 41MM as per balance sheet valuation as at 31 December 2013. The transfer of the roads
facilitated the decision to adopt the local zoning plan covering the former ZPC Ursus factory by the municipal councilors and,
therefare, increased the investment value of the entire area.

The value of the plots of land transferred to the municipality was disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as capital
expenditures required in order to implement a project and applied to the investment class real property valuation resutt in the
consolidated total income statement.
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Mareover, cne of CPD Group subsidiaries, namely, 4/113 Gaston [nvestments sp. z 0.0. sp. k. ('4/113 Gaston') became the
perpetual user of the land in Ursus constituting the plot of land number 113 along with the ownership of buildings, structures and
facilities situated thereon again in December 2014, The transfer of the perpetual usufruct right to 4/113 Gaston was a result of
cancellation of sale of the said right that took place in 2012 based on which 4/113 Gaston sold the plot of land to an entity interested
in investing in water and sewerage management facilities in, among other things, Ursus As there was no progress of obtaining
official permits enabling the investor to implement the said project, the parties signed a notarized deed canceling the sales agreement
of 2012 in 2014 resulting in the said plot of land being included in CPD Group portfolio again as at 31 December 2014, The plot of
tand was concerned by fair value valuation amounting to PLN 47MM as at 31 December 2014.

Other positive contributors to the value of Group portfolio of real properties included rise in value of lris, Solar and Aquarius buildings
resulting from rising rental income connected with growing commercialization of the space and the improvement in the commercial
property rental market in Warsaw expected by analysts. Its total effect on the consolidated result of the Group for 2014 therefrom
amounted to PL.N 16,986,000,

More details of valuation as at the balance sheet date are provided in note 4 (a).
All the investment class real properties of the CPD Group were covered by a land and mortgage register as at 31 December 2014.

As the valuation of the real properties is reduced by perpetual usufruct fees, the 'fair book value' of the properties was increased by
the value of the usufruct liability. Such recognition causes a rise in balance sheet value of an investment class real property by the
lease liability amount.

31 grudnia 2014 31 grudnia 2013

investment class real property according to third party valuation 552 123 420 766
Perpetual usufruct liabilities 29 263 22027
Investment Class Real Property Disclosed in Financial Standing Statement 581 386 442733

The Group did not conclude any investment class real property sale in the period covered by the statements,
Mandy Inwestments Sp. z ¢.0., a subsidiary, sold an investment class real property at ul. Jana Kazimierza in Warsaw in June 2013,

Expenditures on investment class real properties amounting to PLN 16,547,000 in the period covered by the statements were mainly
connected with finishing works done for [ris lessees in connection with its commercialization.

The preperty at ul. Polezyriska in Warsaw owned by Robin Investments Sp. z 0.0., a subsidiary, was transferred from assets to be
sold to investment class real properties in December 2013 (Note 26).
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5 Investment Class Real Properties {(continued)

investment class real

- generating rent income
- other

6 Fair Value of Securities

Agquarius
Ursus
Cybernetyki 7b
IRIS

12 months ended
31 grudnia 2014

12 months ended
31 grudnia 2013

4025 3 469
117 125
4142 3594

31 grudnia 2014

31 grudnia 2013

27 279 26 542
0 43 080

34 098 34 422
100 590 85018
161 967 189 061

The above-mentioned properties are securities underlying credit agreements including agreements with mBank worth PLN

61,377,000 and with BZ WBK worth PLN 100,590,000.

7 Trade Receivables and Other Receivables

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Prepayments and accruals

Deferred income

Public law liabilities

Short-term loans

Total Trade and Other Receivables

31 grudnia 2014

31 grudnia 2013

#ARGE 295
#ARG! 765
#ARG! 2422
#ARG! 1407

3723 2 881
#ARG! 95
#ARG! 7 865

The estimated fair value of trade receivables and other receivables is the discounted amount of expected future receipis to be
obtained by CPD Group and is close to their boek value. Mast rental receivables are secured. CPD Group expects a security in the
form of 1-3-month rent equivalent from its lessees. Rental receivables are mainly secured with bank deposits.
Prepayments and accruals are the biggest trade receivables and other receivables item, This header mainly includes the balance
connected with the linear settlement of rental income In the case of lessess concerned by no-rent periods at the beginning or by
significantly lower rent rates in the said initial period. The rise in this item in 2014 was mainly coninected with Belise rentals signed in
2014 (the total increase thereunder amounted to PLN 2.3MM). The total balance thergunder amounted to PLN 3.6MM as at 31

December 2014.
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CPD Group recognized a loss of PLN 29,000 by virtue of impairment and write-off of receivables in the period ending on 31
December 2014: (PLN 4,702,000 in the year ending on 31 December 2013). The loss was recognized under the ‘other administrative
costs' header in the consolidated result.

Trade Receivables 31 grudnia 2014 31 grudnia 2013
Current H#ARG! 285
Qverdue and impaired {concerned by a total write-off) 570 5256
Impairment of Receivables 31 grudnia 2014 31 grudnia 2013
- frade receivables:

Opening balance 5256 858
- increases 4] 4398
- decreases {dissolution of write-off} {4 686) 0
Closing balance 570 5256

- other receivables:

(Cpening balance 0 31
- decreases 0 {31)
Closing balance 0 0

The maximum credit risk exposure amount as at the statement date is equal to the carrying value of receivables. The Management
Board believes that there is no significant credit risk concentration with respect to trade receivables as CPD Group has a big group of
lessees.
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8 Inventory

31 grudnia 2014

31 grudnia 2013

Work in progress 4100 5000
Finished products 370 370
Merchandises 2 055 2 403

6 525 7773

The Group did not conclude any inventory sale in 2014.

Real properiies in Czosndw, Jakiordw add Magdalenka (Peofand) presented as finished goods and merchandises were sold in 2013.
Finished goods included the completed Koszykewa project (Poland) and merchandises included the Alsonemedi project (Hungary).
The tenement house in Lodz was classified as work in progress.

31 grudnia 2014 31 grudnia 2013

At the beginning of the year/period 7713 15 496
Capital expenditures 19 244
Sale 0 {4 329}
Revaluation allowance (1172} (3674)
Exchange rate differences ( 95) 36
As at the balance sheet date 6 525 7773

The inventory revaluation allowance concerns properiies in £6dz, Czosndw, Jaktoréw and Mowa Piasecznica. The allowance for the
E&dz properly (PLN 900,000} is the biggest one.



g9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

31 grudnia 2014 31 grudnia 2013

Cash at hand and in banks 16 366 1771
Short-term bank deposits 18630 10 210
18770 11 981

For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks and at hand as weli as short-term bank
deposits.

10 Share Capital

Number of shares Value of shares
31 grudnia 31 grudnia
2014 2013 31 grudnia 2014 31 grudnia 2013
Ordinary shares {in "000) 32 863 34595 3286 3 460
Total 328863 34 595 3286 3 460

10 Share Capital {continued)

The increase in share capital was registered on 8 January 2013. The share capital of the company was raised from PLN
3,423,146.60 to PLN 3,430,748.80, i.e. by PL.N 7,602.20, by means of issuance of 76,022 D-series ordinary bearer's shares with
face value of PLN 0.10 each within the limits of the target capital.

On 10 January 2013, the Extraordinary General Assembly of Celtic Property Developments S.A. adopted resolution No. 3 en
issuance of B-series subscription warrants with the right to take up E-series Company shares and deprivation of the existing
shareholders of the right of subscription of B-series subscription warrants in whole and resolution No. 4 on conditional increase in
share capital of the Company exclusive of rights of subscription of E-series shares, amendment to Company Articles of Association,
deprivation of the existing shareholders of the right of subscription of E-series shares in whole, dematerialization of E-series shares
and application for permit and introduction of C-series shares into the regulated market trading.

The Company issued 88,776 B-series registered subscription warrants (hereinafter: 'Subscription Warrants') including the right to
take up the total of 88,776 ordinary bearer's shares in the Company with face value of PLN 0.10 each and the total face value of PLN
8,877.60 pursuant to the resofution No. 3. The Subscription Warrants were only offered to authorized persons, i.e. members of the
Management Board of the Company fulfiling functions of members at the time of declaration of take-up of the Subscription
Warrants:

» 36,483 Subscription Warrants were offered to Mr. Andrew Morrison Shepherd, President of the Management Board;

» 36,483 Subscription Warrants were offered to Mr. Aled Rhys Jones, Member of Board;

» 15,810 Subscription Warrants were offered to Ms. Elzbieta Wiczkowskia, Member of Board.

Subscription Warrants were issued free of charge. The issuance price per E-series share taken up in the exercise of rights in a
Subscription Warrant was determined at its face value amounting to PLLN 0.10. Each Subscription Warrant gave the right to take up
on E-series share. The right to take up E-series shares was exercised as per Art. 451 of the Commercial Companies Code, i.e. by
means of declarations in writing made in the forms provided by the Company.

The Subscription Warrants and the E-series shares were issued off the public offer referred to in Ast. 3 (3) of the Act on Public Offer
and Conditions for Infroducing Financial Instruments into Organized Trade and on Public Companies of 29 July 2005 {Journal of

Laws No. 184 item 1539 as amended) as the number of persans whom the purchase of Subscription Warrants was proposed did not
excead 99.
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The Management Board of the Company adopted resolution No. 13/11/2013 on increase in share capital of the Company within the
framework of the target capital on 20 March 2013.

Pursuant to the above-mentioned resolution, the share capital of the Company was increased by PLN 19,933.30 by means of
issuance of 189,333.00 F-series ordinary bearer's shares with face value PLN 0.10 (PLN 10/100) each within the limits of the target
capital. The increase in share capital by means of issuance of F-series shares was done upon approval by the Supervisory Board
through private issuance designed for selected Board collaborators exclusive of the existing shareholders' rights of subscription, The
receipts from the issuance of F-series shares were allocated to the financing of the day-to-day business of the Company.

On 27 March 2013, the Company called the shareholders to make offers of sale of its shares on terms specified in the Call for Offers
of Sale. The entire Call for Offers of Sale was published on the Internet site of the Company {www.celtic.pl). The Company offered
purchase of not more than 1,732,394 ordinary bearer's shares marked with ISIN code PLCELPDO9013 ('the Shares') at PLN 7.10
each in connection with the Call. 39 offers of sale covering the total of 15,575,542 Company shares were received in the Share sale
offer acceptance period from 3 to @ April 2013.

10 Share Capital (continued)

The calf was based on the resclution of the Extraordinary General Assembly of the Company of 10 August 2012 on purchase of
Company shares for redemption authorizing the Management Board to purchase a total of not more than 11,541,881 company
shares with face value of PLN 0.10 (PLN 10/100) each and with iotal face value of not more than PLN 1,154,189.10 by 31
December 2013 at the latest. Shares may be purchased on the regulated market (during or oulside sessions) or outside the
regulated market. The Company will purchase the Shares as per Art. 361 (1) (5) of the Commercial Companies Code for a price not
lower than their face value, but not exceeding PLN 15.89 (PLN fifteen 89/100) per share. The General Assembly also autharized the
Management Board to determine detailed terms of purchase of Shares to the extent not regulated in the resolution and to perform all
actual and [egal acts designed to perform the resciution including conclusion of an agreement with an investing business. The
Management Board will convene the General Assembly of the Company with an agenda including at least adoption of resolutions on
redemption of treasury shares, decrease in Company share capital and amendment {o Company Arlicles of Association after the
purchase of all or some of the Shares in order to redeem them.
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The slowdown on the Warsaw Stock Exchange being a part of global capital market trends and resulting in a fall in market price of
Celtic Property Developments S.A. shares was the rationale behind the Management Board recommendation for adoption of the
resclution on purchase of treasury shares in order to redeem them. According to the Management Board, that valuation differs from
lang term Company value growth fundamentals. The purchase of some of the shares is, therefore, the best from the point of view of
all the Company shareholders. The Supervisor Board approved the above-mentioned draft resolution of the Extraordinary General
Assembly of the Company and adopted the relevant resolution adopting draft resolutions of the General Assembly.

The Company decided to accept all the offers of sale and to reduce them proportionatly as per the Call on 11 April 2013. The number
of shares covered by the share sale offers made amounted to 15,575,542, As the offers of sale covered a bigger number of shares
than 1,732,394 shares proposed by the Company, each offer of sale was reduced by 88.88% in the average meaning that the
Company purchased the average of 11.12% of Shares offered. As a result of settlement of the fransaction made on 15 April 2013,
the Company purchased 1,732,394 treasury shares through UniCredit CAIB Peland S.A., a brokerage house in Warsaw. The
purchase price amounted to PLN 7.10 per share. All the shares purchased are ordinary shares with face value of PLN 0.10 sach.
Treasury shares account for 5.01% of the share capital of the Company and 5.01% of the total number of votes in the Company
provided that the Company is not authorized to exercise voting rights in treasury shares as per the regulations in force.

The General Assembly of the Company must be convened and adopt resolutions on decrease in share capital in order to launch the
redemption of the shares purchased as per the legal regulations in force.

The District Court for the capital city of Warsaw in Warsaw, 13th Commercial Department of the National Court Register, registered
a conditional increase in Company share capital by not more than PLN 8,877.60 on 26 Aprit 2013. The conditional increase in capital
was done by means of issuance of not more than 88,776 E-series ordinary bearer's shares with face value of PLN 0.10 (PLN
10/100) each in order to enable the entitled holders of B-series subscription warrants to exercise the rights to take up net more than
88,776 E-series shares.

The subscription warrants were offered to the entitled persons on 8 May 2013. The entitled holders of B-series subscription warrants,
i.e. member of the Management Board, exercised the rights in warrants and declared take-up of E-series shares on the same day. E-
series shares issued in connection with the take-up of B-series subscription warrants by the entitled persons are concerned by a sale
prohibition for 18 months from their admission to the stock exchange trading under agreements concluded concomitantly with the
take-up of the shares.

The share capital of the Company was increased on 5 July 2013 as a result of crediting of E-series shares to the accounts of the
entitled persons and inception of rights in the same shares as per Art. 452 of the Commercial Companies Code. The share capital of
Celtic Property Developments S.A. was therefore increased by PLN 8,877.60 to PLN 3,439,626.40 on 5 July 2013. The share capital
of Ceitic Property Developments S.A. was split into 34,396,264 shares with face value of PLN 0,10 (PL.N 10/100) each representing
100% of votes at the General Assembly of the Company as a result of the increase. The receipts from the issuance of E-series
shares were allocated to the financing of the day-to-day business of the Company.
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10 Share Capital {continued)

88,776 ordinary E-series bearer's shares marked with ISIN code: PLCELPDOCC13 were registered by National Depository on 5 July
2013 as per the resolution of the Management Board of KDPW No. 448/13 of 21 June 2013.

E-series shares were introduced into trading an the parallel market of Gielda Papierow Warlosciowych w Warszawie S.A. on 5 July
2013 as per the resolution No. 745/2013 of the Management Board of GPW S.A. of 3 July 2013.

The District Court for the capital city of Warsaw in Warsaw, 13th Commercial Department of the National Court Register, issued the
decision to enter the increase in share capital of the Company by PLN 8,877.60 by means of issuance of 88,776 E-series ordinary
bearer's shares an 12 August 2013. The share capital of the Company amounted te PLN 3,439,626.40 and was split into 34,396,264
B, C, D and E-series ordinary bearer's shares with face value of PLN 0,10 (PLN 10/100) each entitling to 34,396,264 votes at the
General Assembly of the Company after the entry of the increase.

The District Court for the capitat city of Warsaw in Warsaw, 13th Commercial Departrnent of the National Court Register, issued the
decision to enter the increase in share capital of the Company by PLN 19,933.30 by means of issuance of 199,333 F-series ordinary
bearer's shares on 13 September 2013. The share capital of the Company amounis to PLN 3,459,558.70 and is split into
34,595,587 B, C, D, E and F-series ordinary bearer's shares with face value of PLN 0.10 {PLN 10/100) each entitling to 34,595,597
voles at the General Assembly of the Company after the entry of the increase.

The share capital of CPD SA was conditionally increased by PLN 979,136 pursuant to the resolution of the Exiracrdinary General
Assembly of 5 August 2014,

The share capital was conditionally increased in order to enable holders of bonds convertible to shares to exercise their rights to
convert bonds into not more than 9,791,360 shares. The issuance of bonds enabled CPD S.A. to raise funds for its key growth
projects.

The District Court for the capital city of Warsaw in Warsaw registered the decrease in share capital of the Company by PLN
173,239.40 (say ane hundred and seventy three thousand two hundred and thirty nine 40/100) resulting from the redemplion of
1,732,394 (say one million seven hundred and thirty two thousand three hundred and ninety four) B-series treasury shares of the
Company with face value of PLN 0.10 (say PLN 10/100) each equivalent to 1,732,394 votes at the General Assembly of the
Company. The shares were redesemed pursuant to resolution No. 22 of the General Assembly of the Company of 29 May 2014 (Rall
of Deeds A No. 6337/2014).

11 Trade Payables and Other Payables

Non-current Trade Payables and Other Payables

Lessees’ security deposits

Current Trade Payables and Other Payables

31 grudnia 2014

31 grudnia 2013

1494

31 grudnia 2014

384

31 grudnia 2013

Trade payables 827 1540
Other payables 504 179
Input VAT and other tax liabilities 284 485
Lessees' security deposits 138 512
Prepayments and accruals 14 077 12 684
Total 15830 15 370

Trade payables bear no interest and are payable within a year.
The estimated fair value of trade payables and other payables is the discounted amount of expected future expenses to be made by
CPD Group and is roughly close to their book value.

The provisicn for potential tax risks amounting to PLN 13.6MM was the biggest part of prepayments and accruals as at 31 December
2014.
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12 Credits and loans including financial leases
31 grudnia 2014 31 grudnia 2013

Non-current

Bank credits 42 221 0

Financial lease liabilities 29 263 22 027
71484 22 027

Current

Bank credits 71493 94 004

Loans from non-affiliates 0 41
71493 94 045

Total credits and loans 142 977 116 072

12 Credits and loans including financial leases {continued)

CPD Group disclosed the following bank credit liabilities as at 31 December 2014 in the consolidated financial statements:

- liabilities to mBank Hipoteczny S.A. amounting to PLN 43,106,000 including PLN 884,000 disclosed as the current part and 42,220
disclosed as the non-current part);

- liahilities to Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. amounting to PLN 70,608,000 disclosed entirely as a current liability.

The agreement with Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. was signed on 12 August 2011. The parties included Belise Investments Sp.z 0.0, a
CPD Group subsidiary, as the borrower and guarantors ingluding CPD S.A., Lakia Enterprises Lid and East Europe Property
Financing AB (this business has been sold outside CPD Group and is not a party to the discussed credit agreement}. An investment
credit of up to EUR 20,141,000 was extended under the agreement in order to finance or refinance a part of costs of finishing of IRIS
rental space along with a renewable VAT credit of up to PLN 2,160,000.

The final repayment of the construction credit fell on one of the following dates as per the terms of the agreement including annexes
signed:

- if the construction credit is converted into investment one, the credit will be finally repaid on 12 August 2019 at the latest; otherwise,
- the final repayment date was 31 December 2014.

The VAT credit {credit facility under the agreement with BZ WBK) was finally repaid on 31 December 2014.

Conditions for conversion of the credit and, therefore, postponement of the final repayment date until August 2019 included without
limitation achievement of the debt coverage ratio determined in the credit agreement and a proper amount of space rented out. The
expected deht coverage ratio was achieved as at the balance sheet data and the date of these consclidated financial statements while
the space rental ratio was not. The credit may therefore be converted at the current space rental level upon approval from the bank.
Preparatory works designed to collect all documents allowing the conversion of the credit and, therefere, postponement of the final
repayment date until August 2019 are underway. The relevant agreement has not been signed by the date hereof; the bank is,
therefore, in theory authorized to terminate the agreement and request repayment of the entire debt. Based on the current
discussions with the bank the Management Board believes that the conversion of the credit is the most probable solution based on
current ratios bearing in mind that the proper debt service ratio has been reached and the current Belise rental ratio is close to the
requirements (there is a 1.5% difference). Based on the credit history of CPD Group, past relationships with BZ WBK and the real
ability to obtain refinancing of the credit from another bank bearing in mind current rations reached by Belise Investments sp z o.0.
the Management Board believes that the risk of Group's inability to repay credit liabilities to BZ WBK is strongly limited.



The halance of liability under the credit obtained from BZ WBK S.A, amounting to PLN 70,608,000 as at 31 December 2014 was
disclosed under the current liabilities header as it is repayable within 12 months from the batance sheet date concerned by the

consolidated financial statements under the agreements currently in force.

Lakia Investments and Robin Investments, subsidiaties, concluded credit agreements with mBank Hipoteczny on 18 June 2014, The
above credit was extended in order to refinance the credit taken from HSBC Bank Polska in 2006 and allocated to the financing of
office projects at Cybernetyki 7b and Pelczyriska 31a. The mBank Hipoteczny credit was made available on 1 July 2014, Lakia
Investmenis exposure amounted to EUR 5,695,374.94 and that of Robin Investments amounted to EUR 4,410,343.78 as at the
balance sheet date. The said companies are obliged to repay the entire credit by 20 June 2029 as per the terms of the credit

agreament with mBank Hipoteczny.

Finance lease liabilities refate to the perpetual usufruct right (PUR) and have been recognized as a result of increase in fair value of

an investment class real property for accounting purposes (note 5).

Repayments of lease principal based on the effective interest rate with
maturity falling within:

upto 1 year

1-5 years

over 5 years

Face value of minimum lease payments by maturity:
up to 1 year

1-5 years

over 5 years

Future financial costs

31 grudnia 2014

31 grudnia 2613

7 7

33 33

29 223 21987
29 263 22 027

31 grudnia 2014

31 grudnia 2013

2 470 1735

9 880 6941
175 370 121 482
187 720 130 137
(158 457) {108 110)
29 263 22 027

The exposure of credits and loans of CPD Group including financial leases to the interest rate risk and contractual interest rate

change dates as at the balance sheet date is shown below.
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12 Credits and loans in¢luding financial leases {continued)

6 months or less

31 grudnia 2014

31 grudnia 2013

70 608 40 389

6-12 months 885 53 656
1-5 years g 245 0
over 5 years 32976 1
113 714 94 045

The carrying value of credits and loans is roughly equal to their fair value.

The carrying value of credits and loans of CPD Group is denominated in the following currencies:

31 grudnia 2014

31 grudnia 2013

Currency
EUR 113714 94 045
113 714 94 045

Lakia Enterprises Ltd established a registered pledge on all shares in the capital of Lakia Investments and Raobin Investments
amounting to up to EUR 5.85MM (Lakia) and EUR 4.45MM (Rabin) for the benefit of mBank in connection with the credit taken from

mBank Hipoteczny in 2014.

Lakia Enterprises Ltd established a registered pledge on all shares in the capital of Belise Investmernits amounting to up to EUR

40.3MM and EUR 4.2MM for the benefit of BZ WBK in cannection with the credit taken from BZ WBK in 2011.

13 Bonds Issued

31 grudnia 2014

31 grudnia 2013

Face value of convertible bonds issued on 26 September 2014 22 966 0
Capital part i 27 909 0
Debt part on the initial recognition date of 26 September 2014 50 875 0
Cost of accrued interest 623 0
Valuation as at 31 December 2014 476 0
Valuation of the embedded derivative {9 094) 0
Derivative as at 31 December 2014 42 830 ;
Number of shares
Ended Year Ended Year

Laxey Investors Limited

i 0
LP Alternative LP by Laxey Partners (GP3) as 7 0
I:axey Partners Ltd 1 0
LP Value Ltd 7 0
Laxey Universal Value LP By 1 ]
The Value Catalyst Fund 13 0
QVT Fund LP 17 0
Quintessence Fund LP 3 0
Lars E Bader 7 0
Co-op 33 0
Furseka 17 0
Broadmeadow 3 0

31 December 2014

31 December 2013




The Management Board adopted the resolution on allocation of Tranche | of A-series convertible bonds on 26 September 2014, The
Company therefore issued Tranche | convertible bands. The date of repurchase of Tranche | bonds falls on 26 September 2017, The
issuance of Tranche | bonds was a non-public ene as per Art. 9 {3) of the Act on Bonds pursuant to the resolution of Issuer's
Management Board No. 3/IX/2014 on issuance of D-series bearer's bonds as a part of the bond issuance scheme,

The face value of one bend amounts to EUR 50,000 {say EUR fifty thousand). The issuance price of one bond amounts to EUR
50,000. The bonds bear interest at a fixed rate of 10% (ten per cent} per annum from the Bond kssuance Date. The Company will
repurchase the bonds on the day falling 3 years after the issuance date, 1.e. 27 September 2017, subject to early repurchase cases,
if an Event of Breach of terms of issuance of bonds by the Issuer occurs.

The embedded derivative resuits from:

a} holder’s right to convert the bonds into shares at a fixed rate

in the period from 26 September 2015 to 5 days before the repurchase date, i.e. 22 September 2017;

b} currency cap option concerning transtation of the liability into shares on the conversion date at the EUR/PLN exchange rate of the
sarme day

not exceeding, however, EUR 1 = PLN 4.1272.

The embedded derivative valuation method is described in note 4.

14 Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are subject to offset, if there is an enforceable legal title to set off current income tax assets
against current income tax liabilities and if deferred income tax assets and liabilities concern income taxes charged by the same tax
authorities.

31 grudnia 2014

31 grudnia 2013

Deferred Income Tax Assets before Offset 19 500 14 511
Offset against provision for deferred income tax (19 415) (14 151}
Deferred income Tax Assets 85 360
- receivable after 12 months 0 v
- receivable within 12 months 85 360

85 360
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities before Offset 32 810 27 457
Offset against deferred income tax asset {19 415) (15 151)
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities after Offset including: 13 395 13 306
- payable after 12 months 13395 13 306
~ payable within 12 months 0 0

12 months ended
31 grudnia 2014

Movement in balance of deferred tax asset 4989
Movement in balance of provision for deferred tax 5353
Total movement including: { 364)

Effect on the result - income tax

(364)
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14 Deferred Income Tax
The movement in deferred incorne tax assets and liabilities during the year is as follows:

Deferred Income Tax Liabilities (before offset)

Valuation of real property fo fair

value 16 095 (3 742) 0 12 353
Interest accrued on loans 12 418 2963 0 15 381
Provision for revenues 119 {58) 0 61
Exchange rate differences a7 {34) 0 3
Exchange rate differences from

transiation into the presentation

currency ] 0 0 o
Other 448 0 0 {341)
Total 20117 (871) 0 27 457

Valuation of real property to fair
value 12 353 4111 0 0 16 464
Interest accrued on loans

15 381 499 0 0 15 880
Provision for revenues 61 330 0 0 391
Exchange rate differences 3 59 0 v, 62
Exchange rate differences from
translation inta the presentation
currency ¢ 0 0 0 0
cher { 341) 354 0 0 13
Total 27 457 5353 0 0 32810

Significant amounts of deferred income tax liabilities mainly arise from adjustments of valuation t of investment class real properties
to fair value (note &).



14 Deferred Income Tax {(continued)

Deferred Income Tax Assets (before offset)

Non-repaid interest accrued

278 63 341

Exchange rate differences 949 (124) 825
Provisions 840 (539) 301
Real property fair value vafuation 12875 (11371) 1504
Other 0 9537 9537
Tax losses 3757 {1 754) 2004
18 698 {4 188) 14 511

Non-repaid interest accrued

341 251 0 592

Exchange rate differences 825 (192} 0 633
Provisions 301 ( 288) 0 15
Real property fair value valuation 1604 (1 088) 0 416
Other 9 837 5998 4] 15 535
Tax losses 2004 306 o 2310
14 511 4989 Q0 19 500

31 grudnia 2014 31 grudnia 2013

Tax losses i2 156 10 544
Negative transitary differences concerning loans and credits (interest accrued) 3113 1795
Ofther negative transitory differences 87 363 64 037
Total transitory differences 102 632 76 376
Value of the deferred income tax asset before offset 19 500 14 511
Offset of the asset against deferred tax liability in individual companies (19 415) {14 151}
Met value of the deferred ingome tax asset B85 360

Deferred income tax assets from tax loss and negative transitory differences to seftlement are only recognized {o the extent of
probability that taxable income making use of transitory differences or tax losses can be earned in the future.
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14 Deferred Income Tax (continued)

Expiration of tax losses - balance as at 31 December 2014

2015 2016-2017 2018-2019 Total
- Concerned by deferred tax recognized 1229 5127 9230 15 586
- Nof concerned by deferred tax recognized 9105 117 334 24 581 151 020
Expiration of tax l[osses - balance as at 31 December 2013
2014 2015-2016 2017-2018 Total
- Concerned by deferred {ax recognized
568 5463 4508 10 538
- Nof concerned by deferred fax recognized 4773 36770 172 354 213 897

15 Revenues

Analysis of revenues by category

Rental revenues

Sale of inventory

Real property consulting services
Rental-related services

Rental revenues dominated the revenues in 2014.

12 months ended
31 grudnia 2014

12 months ended
31 grudnia 2013

#ARG! 6792
#ARG! 2537
#ARG! 157
#ARG! 4 394
#ARG! 13 880

Rental revenues dominated the revenues in 2013. Revenues from sale of real properties owned by Gaetan (PLN 2,225,000} and

Antigo (PLN 307,000) were another major item of revenues in 2013.

The Group rents out real properites under operating leases.

The Group has adopted the following rental agreement model:

. rental fees expressed in EUR and indexed by the annual EUR inflation rate (invoiced in PLN),

. determined term of rental with no early termination allowed.
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15 Revenues {continued)

The minimum receipts from Irrevocable rentals include lease payments under agreements concluded for a determined period and
payments for the period of notice in the case of agreements concluded for an undetermined period.

not more than 1 year
more than 1 year, but less than 5 years
more than 5 years

16 Cost of Goods Sold

Cast of inventory sold
Movement in balance of inventory revaluation allowances
Cost of services provided

The cost of inventory sold is its book value at the time of sale.

12 months ended
31 grudnia 2014

12 months ended
31 grudnia 2013

11297 9772

38 389 25 898

4555 3759

54 240 39 429

12 months ended 12 months ended

31 grudnia 2014

31 grudnia 2013

14 4338
1172 3638
2 462 1453
3648 9429

This year, the movement in balance of inventory revaluation allowances resulted from the increase in value of real praperties in Nowa
Piasecznica (PLN 10,000) and Jaktoréw (PLN 30,000) and from the decline in value of real properties in £édz (PLN 900,000) and

Czosndw {PLN 312,000). The value of the Koszykowa property has not changed.

17 Administrative Costs of Real Properties

Personnel costs
Maintenance of the rea!
propetties

Real propertly taxes
Perpetual usufruct

Depreciation of tangible non-current assets and intangible assets

12 months ended 12 months ended
31 grudnia 2014 31 grudnia 2013
#ARG! 2235
#ARG! 3580
#ARG! 3258
#ARG! 2004
H#ARG! 213
#ARG! 11 290
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18 Pozostale przychody

Waived or expired liabilities
Sale of PPE

Contractual penalties received
Other

19 Other Administrative Costs

Consulting services

Auditor's fee

Transport

Taxes

Maintenance of the office .
Other services

Costs of non-deducted VAT
Receivable impairment write-offs
Other costs

12 months ended
31 grudnia 2014

12 months ended
31 grudnia 2013

10 0
47 0
0 172
363 433
420 606

12 menths ended
31 grudnia 2014

12 months ended
31 grudnia 2013

5817 4209
331 N7
45 49
159 216
1953 2893
3z 553
357 441
29 4702
1633 1371
10 645 14 750

As for other administrative costs, the Group recorded a rise in costs of consulting services by PLN 1.6MM in 2014 compared to

2013. Costs of receivable impairment write-offs fell by PLN 4.7MM.

The rise in costs of consulting services is a result of optimization of perscnnel costs (note 18) and the office maintenance costs and

outsourcing of some of the tasks performed by the office personnel in 2013.
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20 Financial Revenues and Costs

21

Cost of interest:

- bank credits

- financial lease interest

- other interest cost

Net exchange rate differences
Other

Financial costs

Interest revenues:
- bank interest

Financial revenues from valuation of the embedded derivative instrument

- interest from non-affiliates
Financial revenues

Net financial result

Income Tax

Current tax
Income tax for past years
Podatek odroczony (Nota 14)

12 months ended
31 grudnia 2014

12 months ended
31 grudnia 2013

(4 068) (3 607)
(2 214) (1652)
(1 314) (491)
(2 574) {1273)
(376) (19)
(10 546) (7 042)
49 269
9094 0
591 640
9734 909
(812) (6 133)

12 months ended
31 grudnia 2014

12 menths ended
31 grudnia 2013

a 0
0 0
364 2527
364 2527
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21 Income Tax {(continued)

Polish subsidiaries are subject to Polish corporate income tax charged at the rate of 19% on the profit or foss of the year adjusted for
tax purposes. Cypriot subsidiaries are subject to local income tax charged on tax profits at the rate of 10%. Realized profit from sale
of shares or other ownership rights are exempted from tax in Cyprus. Interest may be subject fo additional 5% tax in some situations.
If this is the case, 50% of the interest may be exempied from the income tax; the effective tax charge therefore amounts to about
15%. Dividends received from abroad may be subject to additional 15% tax in some situations. Swedish units are subject to 26.3%
income tax on tax profits.

Tax at the rate in  Difference between

Tax rate in force inagiven  tax amounts at the
force Taxable basis country local rate and 18%

Country:
Sweden 26,3% (5 297) 1383 387
Cyprus 10% (5641 564 (508)
Hungary 10% { 354} 35 (32)
{ 153}

The income tax recognized in the result of CPD Group differs from the theoretic amount that would be obtained if the 19% tax rate
applicable to gross accounting profit of companies having their registered offices in Poland was consistently applied as follows.

12 months ended 12 months ended
31 grudnia 2014 31 grudnia 2013

Loss before tax 104 858 {40 534)
Estimated tax charge at the rate of 19% (19 923) 7701
fax:

- various tax rates applicable to Group companies and the tax on consolidation

adjustments {153) {672)
- non-taxable loss (Cyprus) 0 0
- loss of companies where the asset was not recognized {2 146) (4 561)
- goodwill write-off 0 0
- income tax for past years 0 0
- valuation of real properties 21814

- valuation of the embedded instrument (3575) 0
- other { 957) 59

Tax charge 4939 (2 527)
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22 Basic Operating Cash Flow

12 months ended
31 grudnia 2014

12 months ended
31 grudnia 2013

Profit {loss) before tax 104 858 (40 534)
Adjustments for:
- depreciation of tangible non-current assets 203 170
- profitfloss from exchange rate differences (5 858) 2906
- revaluation of investment class real properties to fair value (114 810) 10702
- waiver of foan 143 0
- waiver of interest on the loan 29 0
- cost of interest 4382 3470
- impairment of inventory 1172 3674
- rasult of sale of investment class real properties 0 1970
- result of sale of tangible non-current assets 39 V]
- other adjustments: interest revenues ( 289) {747)
- write-off of shares 0 35
- other adjustments 3 85
Current capital movements:
- movement in receivables {18886) 8 970
- movement in inventory {19} 4 085
- movement in trade payables and other payables 1212 2876
(10 821) (2 338)

23 Contingent lfems

As per the Polish legal regulations, tax authorities may inspect books and records at any time within 5 years following the reporting
petiod and charge additional tax and penalties, if irregularities are found oul. According to the knowledge of the Management Board
of CPD Group member companies there are no circumstances that could result in significant liabilities in this area.

CPD Group companies including Celtic Asset Management (formerly Liliane Investments), Gaefan Investments and Elara
Investments extended guarantee and warranty concerning the legal status and the technical condition of goods sold to the clients as
a result of sale of houses, apariments and plots of land. Liability periods applicable to plots of land amount to 1 year while those
applicable to houses and apartments amount to 3 years from the date of sale.

Celtic Property Developments S.A. extended guarantee covering the following for a period not exceeding 12 August 2022 in
connection with the credit extended by BZ WBK S.A. to Belise Investments Sp. z o.0. , Issuer's subsidiary implementing the IRIS
project at ul. Cybernetyki 9 in Warsaw:

a) amounts that are or may be required in order {o cover all excesses of project implementation costs over the costs defined in the
credit agreement up to EUR 20,666,000;

b} amounts that are or may be required in order to cover the debt service or any other due payments of up to EUR 20,666,000:

¢} amounts that are or may be required in order for the debt service coverage ratic not to be lower than 100%, i.e. receipts from
rental agreements should cover debt service costs, up to EUR 20,666,000,
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24 Transactions with Affiliates and Transactions with Employees

CPD S.A. has no immediate or utimate parent company. Cooperatieve Laxey Worldwide W.A. is a major top level investor exercising
significant influence on the Company.

CPD Group also concludes transactions with key managers and other affiliates controlled by the key managers of the Group.
All transactions with affiliates were made on an arm's-length basis.

CPD Group concluded the following transactions with affiliates:

12 months ended 12 months ended
31 grudnia 2014 31 grudnia 2013

a) Transactions with key managers

Cost of remuneration of members of the Management Board 240 233
Cost of work and services provided by members of the Management Board 4006 729
Cost of remuneration of members of the Supervisary Board 239 202
Total receivables 0 16

b} Transactions with other affiliates managed by key managers

Costs
Ole$ i Rodzynkiewicz Legal Counsels - cost of legal services 130 58

¢) Transactions with shareholders
Laxey Joan 325 ¢
Loan write-down (325) 0

Bonds taken up by CPD shareholders were issued on 26 September 2014. Details are provided in note 13.

25 Seasonal Business

The business of CPD Group is neither seasonal nor cyclical.

26 Assets and Liabilities Making Part of Group for Sale Classified as Designed for Sale

The investment class real property of Robin Investments Sp. z 0.0. was classified as designed for sale as at 31 December 2012. The
Management Board decided to shift the above-mentioned property to the real property portfolio of the Group as at 31 December 2013
and, therefore, to change its classification to investment class property.

27 Sale of Subsidiaries
No subsidiaries were sold in 2013,

in 2014, the Group sold shares in EEPF and a part of shares in GAETAN and realized the following profit:

- EEPF g
- Gaetan Investments Sp. z 0.0. { 50)

{41)
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28 Result of Sale of Investment Class Real Properties
The notarized deed of sale of the real property situated in the district of Wola in Warsaw at ul. Jana Kazimierza by Mandy Sp. z 0.0.,
a subsidiary, for the price of PLN 13.1MM resulting in a loss of PLN 2.6MM was signed in June 2013.

No investment class real properties were sold in 2014,

29 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

The Company issued a total of 30,000 B-series secured bonds (hereinafter ‘Bonds') on 13 January 2015. The Bonds were issued as
per Art. 9 (3) of the Act on Bonds, i.e. as a private offering.
The Bands were issued on the following terms:

The Issuer did not determine the purpose of the issuance in the meaning of the Act on Bonds or the project to be financed with the
issuance of Bonds.

Bonds issued are secured B-series bearer's bonds with face value of PLN 1,000 each, not being documents.

The total face value of all Bonds issued does not excead PLN 30,000,000.

The face value of one Bond amounts to PLN 1,000. The issuance price of one Bond equals its face value and amounts to PLN
1,000.

Bonds will be repurchased by the Company on the date falling 4 years after the Bonds issuance date, i.e. 13 January 2019
(hereinafter ‘the Repurchase Date') subject to events of early repurchase of Bonds, if the Issuer breaches the terms of issuance of
Bonds or if the Issuer so requests.

The Bonds bear interest at a fixed rate amounting te 9.1% per annum,

On, 30 January 2015, Issuer group members including (1} Buffy Holdings No. 1 Limited with its registered office in Nicosia, Cyprus
(hereinafter the Buyer'} and (2) Challange Eighteen spélka z ograniczeng odpowiedzialnoscia with its registered office in Warsaw
{hereinafter '‘Buyer's Subsidiary') signed the agreement {hereinafter 'the Agreement') on sale of 100% of shares in IMES POLAND
spdtka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig with its registered office in Warsaw (hereinafter 'the Purchased Company'} to Buffy
Holdings No. 1 Limited with |.M.E.S. — INDUSTRIA MECCANICA E STAMPAGGIO §.P.A. with its registered office in Sumirago, italy
{hereinafter 'the Seller’).

The Purchased Company has the perpetual usufruct right in the real property composed of the plot of land No. 98, register area No.
2-09-08, with the area of 69,457 sq.m., situated close fo ul. Gierdzigjewskiege in Warsaw (the district of Warszawa-Ursus). The real
property permits the construction of abcut 80,000 sq.m. of apariments and service shops as per the local zoning plan. The purchase
of the above asset was an important part of strategy of CPS SA Group as it is a strategic addition to the portfolio of construction land
with very big housing and service potential in the district of Ursus. The area controlled by the Company exceeds 57 ha as a result of
the said transaction, 80% out of which are housing and service areas. This transaction made the Company the key investor in one of
the most attractive investing areas in Warsaw.



30 Chartered Accountant's Fee

The fee of the authorized reviewer paid or payable for the fiscal year ended on 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2103 was as

follows:
12 months ended 12 months ended
31 grudnia 2014 31 grudnia 2013
Auditor's fee 255 325

31 Payment of Dividend

The Group paid neither dividend nor interim dividend in 2014. No dividend or interim dividend was paid in the preceding fiscal period,
gither.

32 Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated as the quotient of profit falling to the company shareholders and the weighted average of
number of ordinary shares in the year exclusive of shares purchased by the company and disclosed as treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share are calcutated based on profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders in the parent company and
on the profit or loss from the continued business attributable to them, if such data are disclosed.

Far the purposes of calculation of diluted earnings per share the profit or [oss attributable to the ordinary shareholders in the parent

company and the weighted average number of cutstanding shares are adjusted by the effect of all diluting potential ordinary shares.

12 months ended 12 months ended
31 grudnia 2614 31 grudnia 2013

Profit attributable to the shareholders in the parent company 104 494 (43 061)
Woeighted average number of ordinary shares (in '000}) 34330 34023
Earnings per share 3,04 (1.27)
Diluted profit attributable to shareholders 28018 {43 061)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in '000) 36906 34023
Diluted earnings per share 2,66 (1,27)

The weighted average number of shares in 2013 was determined taking into account the following changes in number of shares:
a) repurchase of 1,732,394 treasury shares in the transaction of 15 April 2013,
b) registration of the increase in capital from 34,307,388 to 34,396,64 of 5 July 2013,

The weighted average number of shares in 2014 was determined taking into account the following changes in number of shares:
a) registration of the decrease in capital from 34 595 926 to 32 863 203 of 25 November 2014.
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The issuance of bonds convertible info shares by CPD contributed to the dilution of profit. The amount of adjustmerit of the result
was affected by the amount of interest (PLN 623), valuation of bonds as at the balance sheet date (PLN 476,000} and the valuation
of the embedded derivative instrument (PLN -9,094,000). These amounts will be reduced by the income tax to be paid in the future.

The weighted average number of shares was adjusted due to the possible exercise of right to convert bonds convertible into shares
(not more than 9,791,360 shares). The weighted average number of shares amounted to 36,906,000,

33 Reporting Segments

CPD Group is and is considered by the Management Board to be a single operating segment as per the definition included in IFRS 8.
The breakdown of external operating revenues is provided in note 15.

The parent company of CPD Group had a registered office in Warsaw at the end of the year. It had no PPE in this year or in past
years.

Operating revenues from companies external to CPD Group are broken dawn by country:

12 months ended 12 months ended
31 grudnia 2014 31 grudnia 2013

Poland 15 067 13722
Cyprus 0 158
Hungary 0 0

15 067 13 880

Non-current assets including investment class real properties, non-current tangible assets and intangible assets are allocated as
follows:

31 grudnia 2014 31 grudnia 2013

Poland 585 819 445 983
Cyprus Q o]
Other 3 961

585 822 446 944

These consolidated financial statements were prepared and approved by the Management Board of the Company on 19 March 2015
and signed on its behalf by:

Elzbieta Donata Wiczkowska Colin Kingsnorth
President of the Management Board Member of the Management Board

Iwena Makarewlcz
Member of the Management Board
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